
1

Agenda
  

Contact Officer: Steve Culliford, Democratic Services
Tel: 07895 213735
E-mail: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk
Date: 14 September 2020
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk  www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Joint Audit and Governance Committee

WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY 22 SEPTEMBER 2020  AT 6.30 PM

THIS WILL BE A VIRTUAL, ONLINE MEETING.

Members of the Committee:
South Oxfordshire District Council
Mocky Khan (Co-Chair)
Peter Dragonetti
George Levy
Jane Murphy

Vale of White Horse District Council
Amos Duveen
Andy Foulsham
Simon Howell
Mike Pighills

Preferred Substitutes:
South Oxfordshire District Council
David Bartholomew
Sam Casey-Rerhaye
Sarah Gray
Victoria Haval
Axel Macdonald
Jo Robb
Alan Thompson
Ian White
Celia Wilson

Vale of White Horse District Council
Nathan Boyd
Andy Cooke
Eric de la Harpe
Alison Jenner
Janet Shelley
Elaine Ware

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

1 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

2 Co-chair of the committee  

Councillor Simon Howell has stepped down from his role as co-chair of the 
committee.  The committee is asked to appoint a co-chair from amongst the Vale of 
White Horse District Council’s membership.  

3 Minutes  (Pages 4 - 8)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2020.  

4 Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

5 Urgent business and chairman's announcements  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chairman.  

6 Public participation  

To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.  

7 Internal audit plan 2020/21  (Pages 9 - 30)

To consider the internal audit manager’s report.  

The attached report was considered by the committee at its last meeting, during 
which councillors supported the proposed audit plan for 2020/21.  Following the 
meeting, it became apparent that, due to a technical problem, the live streaming 
of this part of the meeting had failed and that the debate and decision to approve 
the audit plan was not available for the public to view online.  This meant the 
councils were not meeting The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority Police and Crime Panel Meetings) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 No.392, which been issued under 
Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020.  Therefore, the committee could not 
formally resolve to approve the audit plan.  

Following the meeting, the co-chairs concluded that as committee members had 
supported approval of the audit plan in good faith, the internal audit manager 
could proceed with implementing the audit plan for 2020/21.  However, the co-
chairs also concluded that the committee should be asked to confirm its approval 



3

of the audit plan at its next meeting.  Therefore, this item is placed on this 
agenda to seek to committee’s confirmation.  

8 Internal audit activity report quarters 1 and 2, 2020/21  (Pages 
31 - 52)

To consider the internal audit manager’s report.  

9 Internal audit management report quarters 1 and 2, 2020/21  
(Pages 53 - 63)

To consider the internal audit manager’s report.  

10 Annual report on the councillors' code of conduct for 2018-19 
and 2019-20  (Pages 64 - 74)

To consider the monitoring officer’s report.  

11 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 - policy and 
procedures  (Pages 75 - 109)

To consider the head of legal and democratic’s report.  

12 Review of complaints received 2018-19 and 2019-20  (Pages 110 
- 124)

To consider the head of corporate services’ report.  

13 Statement of accounts 2018/19 and 2019/20  

To receive a verbal update from the interim head of finance.  

14 External auditor's audit planning reports for South 
Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse  (Pages 125 - 198)

To consider the report of EY, the councils’ external auditor.  

15 Treasury outturn 2019/20  (Pages 199 - 219)

To consider the interim head of finance’s report.  

16 Audit and governance work programme  (Pages 220 - 221)

To review the attached work programme.  

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 



1

Minutes

OF A MEETING OF THE

Joint Audit and Governance Committee

HELD ON MONDAY 13 JULY 2020 AT 6.30 PM
THIS WAS A VIRTUAL, ONLINE MEETING.

Present 
Members:
South Oxfordshire District Councillors:  Mocky Khan, Simon Howell, Peter Dragonetti, 
George Levy, Eric de la Harpe and Amos Duveen and Alan Thompson (as substitute for 
Jane Murphy)  
Vale of White Horse District Councillors: Mocky Khan, Simon Howell, Peter Dragonetti, 
George Levy, Eric de la Harpe and Amos Duveen and Alison Jenner (as substitute for 
Andy Foulsham) 

Other councillors as guests: Andrew Crawford and Debby Hallett (Vale of White Horse 
District Council) and Andrea Powell and Leigh Rawlins (South Oxfordshire District Council)  

Officers: Steve Culliford, Yvonne Cutler-Greaves, Victoria Dorman-Smith, David Fairall, 
Emily Hamerton, Simon Hewings, Allison Holliday, Paul Howden, Suzanne Malcolm, 
Catrin Mathias, Adrianna Partridge, Richard Spraggett, Ken Trotter, Sally Truman, Simon 
Tuner, and Donna Worrell

External auditor: Kevin Suter (EY)  

1 Apologies for absence 

Councillor Jane Murphy (South Oxfordshire) had sent apologies for absence and 
appointed Councillor Alan Thompson as her substitute.  Councillor Andy Foulsham (Vale 
of White Horse) had sent apologies for absence and appointed Councillor Alison Jenner as 
his substitute.  

2 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to adopt as a correct record the minutes of the committee meeting held on 
27 January 2020 and agree that the chairman signs them as such.  

3 Declarations of interest 

None

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



2

4 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

The chairman re-ordered the agenda items to bring item 9 – internal audit activity report – 
towards the front of the agenda.  

5 Public participation 

None

6 Internal audit activity report - fourth quarter 2019/20 

The committee considered the internal audit manager’s report, which summarised the 
outcomes of internal audit activity at both councils during the fourth quarter of 2019/20.  A 
report on the first and second quarter activity during 2020/21 would be brought to a 
subsequent meeting.  

The committee reviewed the report and the main issues arising and sought assurance that 
action had been or would be taken.  The report set out the detail of four audits with limited 
assurance ratings.  

Capital management and accounting 2019/20

The audit had identified several recommendations for process improvements.  The 
property service manager reported that a strategic property review would be undertaken to 
better manage the councils’ property holdings.  Part of this review involved reconciling the 
data held in the property management system.  The committee noted that this exercise 
should be completed by 1 November 2020.  

Council tax 2019/20 

The committee noted that the actions relating to un-banded properties had been 
postponed during the Covid-19 pandemic as staff had been diverted to work on the 
council’s response.  

Sundry debtors 2019/20 

The committee noted that in relation to Building Control, some invoices had not been 
raised.  This was due to the need to better reconcile the building control records with the 
financial management system.  Manual checks had been introduced to ensure the 
problems experienced did not re-occur.  

Officers reported that in debt recovery generally, no second reminders had been issued 
nor court action progressed during the Covid-19 pandemic.  However, the courts were 
expected to resume operation in the next few months, allowing the council’s normal debt 
recovery procedures to continue.  

Payroll 2019/20 

The committee noted that some of the actions had slipped during the pandemic, but the 
operation of the Payroll service was now back in-house, within the councils’ control.  The 
committee welcomed this.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



3

RESOLVED: to note the internal audit manager’s report on internal audit activity at both 
councils during the fourth quarter of 2019/20.  

7 Risk management - corporate risk register 

The committee considered the head of corporate services’ report.  This reviewed progress 
against the councils’ risk registers.  

Officers reported that some of the risk scores had increased due to the Covid-19 
pandemic, and now there was a separate Covid-19 risk register.  The committee 
welcomed this and noted the risk scores and mitigation.  

Officers provided detail on some of the mitigations being used and planned in the future.  
Examples given were: various measures to maintain staff morale while most worked from 
home; contingency measures to manage issues experienced by third parties, particularly 
during the pandemic; and due diligence checks to manage payments of the business 
grants support scheme.  

The committee welcomed the report and looked forward to a further report in six months’ 
time.  

RESOLVED: to agree to undertake a half-yearly progress review of the corporate risk 
registers, as outlined in the risk management strategy.  

8 Health and safety progress update 

The committee consider the head of corporate services’ report on the key findings and 
recommended actions of a recent strategic review of health and safety.  The aim of the 
review was to provide assurance on health and safety compliance and enable both 
councils to demonstrate adherence to the requirements of health and safety legislation.  

The review exercise had clarified responsibilities and lead to a greater understanding of 
the health and safety risk profile of every team.  There would be bi-annual reports to the 
committee, setting out progress against the actions identified in the report.  The committee 
welcomed this.  

RESOLVED: to 

(a) note the findings of the recent health and safety strategic review and the actions 
being progressed; and 

(b) note that bi-annual health and safety reports will be presented to the committee.  

9 Statement of accounts 2018/19 

The interim head of finance gave a verbal update on progress with signing off the councils’ 
statement of accounts for 2018/19.  

The committee recalled that it had given its approval to the signing off of these accounts at 
its meeting on 27 January 2020 and agreed that the letters of representation were signed.  

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



4

The officer reported that the signing off of these accounts had been delayed by the Covid-
19 pandemic.  However, the councils’ external auditor, EY, had been content with the 
accounts before the pandemic but its staff were given a moratorium on signing-off any 
accounts while the risks of the pandemic were assessed.  

The committee noted that EY was now content with the statement of accounts for both 
councils and that these would be signed-off in the next few weeks.  There was some 
additional work to complete including the addition of Covid-19 as a post balance sheet 
event and to consider the impact of the pandemic on the councils’ going concern status.  
All councils had to do this to demonstrate liquidity for the next 12 months.  Kevin Suter 
from EY was present at the committee meeting and confirmed his agreement to this.  The 
2018/19 accounts should be signed-off shortly as there were no significant changes to 
make.  Therefore, no further resolution was required by the committee to approve the 
statement of accounts; new letters of representation would be signed in due course.  

RESOLVED: to 

(a) note the verbal report on progress with the signing-off of the councils’ statement of 
accounts for 2018/19; and 

(b) ask officers to provide an update later in 2020 on the impact on the council of the 
Covid-19 pandemic.  

10 Internal audit management report - fourth quarter 2019/20 

The committee considered the internal audit manager’s management report for the fourth 
quarter of 2019/20.  This set out progress against the audit plan and summarised the 
priorities for the first quarter of 2020/21; the management report for the first and second 
quarters would be submitted to a future committee meeting.  

The committee noted the internal audit manager’s management report for the fourth 
quarter of 2019/20.  

11 Internal audit plan 2020/21 

The committee considered the internal audit manager’s report on the draft audit plan for 
2020/21.  This had been deferred from the postponed committee meeting in March, 
following the introduction of the Covid-19 lockdown.  The audit plan set out internal audit’s 
priorities for the remainder of the year.  During the first few months of 2020/21, internal 
audit staff had been working the council’s Covid-19 response.  As such little progress had 
been made on internal audits since April 2020.  

Committee members supported the audit plan for the remainder of 2020/21.  

Afterword:
Following the committee meeting it became apparent that, due to a technical 
problem, the live streaming of this part of the meeting had failed and that the 
debate and decision to approve the audit plan was not available for the public to 
view online.  This meant the councils were not meeting The Local Authorities and 
Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority Police and 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



5

Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 No.392, which 
been issued under Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020.  Therefore, the 
committee could not formally resolve to approve the audit plan.  

Following the meeting, the Co-Chairs Councillors Mocky Khan and Simon Howell, 
had concluded that as committee members had supported approval of the audit 
plan in good faith that the decision would be valid, the internal audit manager 
could proceed with implementing the audit plan for 2020/21.  However, the Co-
Chairs had also concluded that members should be asked to confirm their 
approval of the audit plan at the next committee meeting on 22 September 2020.  

12 Audit and governance work programme 

The committee reviewed and noted its work programme.  

The meeting closed at 8.00 pm

Chairman Date

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Internal Audit Manager
Author: Victoria Dorman-Smith
Telephone: 01235 422430
Textphone: 18001 01235 422430
E-mail: victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins
Tel: 01189 722565
E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford
Telephone: 01235 772134
E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 22 September 2020

Internal audit plan 2020/2021
Recommendation

That members approve the internal audit plan 2020/2021

Purpose of Report

1. The purpose of this report is:

 to explain the process for setting the internal audit plan and for calculating 
the resources available; and

 to set out the proposed internal audit plan for 2020/21.

2. The contact officer for this report is Victoria Dorman-Smith, Internal Audit Manager 
for South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District 
Council (VWHDC), telephone 01235 422430.

3. The report was due to be presented at the joint audit and governance committee 
meeting scheduled for 23 March 2020, which was cancelled.  Therefore, the 
revised internal audit is presented at this meeting, which reflects nine months of 
auditable activity (1 July 2020 to 31 March 2021) along with internal audit priorities 
following Covid-19.

Page 9

Agenda Item 7

mailto:victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk


Strategic Objectives

4. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting 
their strategic objectives.

Background 

5. The definition of internal audit is set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS): “Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and 
consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s 
operations.  It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes.  It may also undertake 
consulting services at the request of the councils, subject to there being no impact 
on the core assurance work and the availability of skills and resources.

6. Internal audit supports the interim head of finance (section 151 officer) in 
discharging his/her statutory duties, particularly in relation to the following 
legislation:

 The Local Government Act 1972 states that the section 151 officer is 
responsible for ensuring that there are arrangements in place for the proper 
administration of the authority’s financial affairs.  

 The Accounts and Audit Regulations state that ‘A relevant body must 
maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit of the control 
environment and systems of internal control’.

7. The PSIAS states that the head of internal audit should prepare a risk-based audit 
plan, and for plans to receive input from management.  It also states that the plan 
should outline the assignments to be carried out and the resource requirements to 
deliver the plan.  The PSIAS also states that the audit committee should approve 
the internal audit plan and monitor progress against the plan.  This document sets 
out the proposed audit plan for 2020/21, together with potential audit reviews in 
2021/22 and 2022/23.

The Audit Planning Process

8. The PSIAS refer to the need for the risk-based plan to consider the requirement to 
produce an annual internal audit opinion and report that is used by the 
organisation to inform its governance statement.  The annual internal audit opinion 
must conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control.  

9. To support this, the risk-based plan needs to take into account the risk priorities 
per the SODC and VWHDC corporate risk registers, review of large or significant 
income and budget spend and review of the corporate priorities and objectives.

10. The approach to the audit planning process was agreed by the interim head of 
finance.  The following steps were undertaken:

Step 1: The SODC and VWHDC corporate risk registers have been reviewed 
as the starting point for the audit planning process as this represents 
management’s assessment of the risks to the councils achieving their 
strategic objectives.  Checks have been performed to ensure that high 

Page 10

Agenda Item 7



and medium risks are included as a possible audit area in the 
Schedule of Auditable Activity (SAA).

Step 2: Areas of large or significant income and budget spend across each 
service area have been reviewed to ensure that they are included as a 
possible audit area in the SAA.

Step 3: The SAA is attached in appendix 1 and lists every possible audit area 
at both or either SODC and VWHDC.  The audit areas have been 
reviewed and updated to reflect the current organisational structure 
and division of responsibilities across each service area.  Each audit 
has been rated by the internal audit manager and critically reviewed 
by the interim head of finance on a number of risk factors to give a 
priority score, and this assists in the assessment of what should be 
placed in the annual audit plan.  Although scoring is subjective and no 
two people would score alike the process attempts to introduce a 
degree of objectivity into the assessment process.  

Step 4: Meetings for the original internal audit plan were held between the 
internal audit manager and heads of service, service managers and 
the chief executive in January and February 2020, and meetings for 
the revised internal audit plan were held in June 2020.  The purpose 
of the meetings were to obtain insights into the level of risk exposure 
within each service area across both councils.  In addition, heads of 
service have requested that, where required, specific function(s) 
within their service area are reviewed as part of the planned 
assurance or consultancy work for 2020/21 or future years.

Step 5: The proposed audit plan for 2020/21 has been finalised with the 
interim head of finance.

11. Due to the changing environment that exists in Local Government, there is a need 
for an element of flexibility in the audit plan due to potential changes in the council 
risk profiles and the potential for emerging risks.  The SAA and corporate risk 
registers will be discussed between the internal audit manager and heads of 
service regularly throughout the year, and it is possible that changes to the audit 
plan may be required.  

Allocation of Audit Resources

12. The resources available to deliver the internal audit annual plan 2020/21 are 
arrived at by starting with the number of days available for all internal audit posts 
within the team.  This is then reduced by the estimated numbers of days lost 
through annual leave, bank holidays (planned) and sickness absence 
(unplanned).  The remaining days available are then allocated between the 
various elements of work which are expected to be carried out in the year in order 
to deliver an effective internal audit service.  

13. The calculation of days available and the allocation of days between different 
categories of work is attached as appendix 2.  The different categories of work 
are classed as either chargeable or non-chargeable.  Chargeable means the work 
has an identifiable client or is directly linked to the delivery of internal audit 
services.  Non-chargeable means any other work which is not directly linked to the 
delivery of internal audit services (for example: admin, corporate responsibilities, 
training, staff briefings).

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



14. An explanation of the individual variances against the previous year allocation is 
provided in appendix 2.

Internal Audit Plan 

15. The risk-based audit plan is constructed in such a way that reflects the councils 
risks and key priorities at a single point in time.  However, throughout the year, the 
internal audit manager will perform regular risk assessments.  In the event of 
emerging risks, there is budgeted hours within the audit plan to respond to these 
risks, if required. 

16. Compared to previous years, the 2020/21 proposed audit plan includes a greater 
number of budgeted hours for consultancy audit work, which focuses on risk, 
governance and control matters, and takes into consideration management need 
as opposed to internal audit’s assessment of risk.  In comparison to traditional 
assurance audits, consultancy work enables internal audit to support service 
teams, whilst not assuming management responsibility, to improve risk, 
governance and control on a real time basis, especially in relation to new or 
changes to existing processes and systems. 

17. The outputs from the audit planning and allocation of resources process have 
been prioritised to produce an audit plan that considers the following: 

 the requirement to give an objective and evidenced based opinion on 
aspects of governance, risk management and internal control;

 the requirement for internal audit to add value through improving controls, 
streamlining processes and supporting corporate priorities;

 the need to allocate a suitable number of contingency days to respond to 
emerging risk, governance and control matters;

 the need to allocate a suitable number of investigation days for fraud or 
whistleblowing purposes;

 to support the interim head of finance’s requirement for a cyclical review of 
all financial systems throughout the councils, of which the audit coverage 
shall be determined by the interim head of finance. 

18. The internal audit plan for 2020/21 is designed and constructed in such a way to 
enable the internal audit manager to form an opinion on the adequacy of each 
council’s control environment, taking into consideration available audit resources.  
This opinion forms an important independent view of each council’s operations 
that feeds into and supports each council’s annual governance statement.  

19. The proposed internal audit plan for 2020/21 is attached in appendix 3 and has 
been agreed with the interim head of finance and has been considered by the 
senior management team (SMT).  Any changes to the work programme (e.g. due 
to changes to the council risk profiles or due to management requests) will be 
agreed with the interim head of finance and reported to the audit committee.

Individual Audits

20. For each audit, not all aspects within a specific area are necessarily examined.  
Actual audit coverage is decided at the time of the audit in consultation with key 
management and officers.  This ensures that current issues together with recent 
coverage by internal audit or external bodies determine the scope of the work.

Page 12

Agenda Item 7



21. An estimated start date for each audit is included in the audit plan in appendix 3, 
which aims to ensure the availability of key management and officers.  We will. 
however, seek to agree a date which is convenient to the officers involved during 
the scoping of each review.

22. Upon completion of the audit fieldwork, the auditor will draft a report and arrange 
to meet with the auditees, to ensure factual accuracy of the audit observations and 
findings and to ensure a proper understanding of the risks to which any action 
plan relates.

23. A formal audit report will be issued for all planned assurance audit work, which will 
provide an overall assurance rating, along with key observations and 
recommendations for each audit objective.  However, upon identification of any 
high-risk issues, internal audit will immediately notify management during the 
course of the audit to enable appropriate remedial action to be taken prior to being 
formally published in the audit report.

Follow Up Reviews

24. For annual audits (i.e. key financial topics), follow ups are completed as part of the 
next internal audit review.  For all other planned assurance work, the timing of the 
follow up is dependent upon available audit resources, however, internal audit will 
aim to complete the follow up review within six months of distribution of the final 
audit report.

25. For consultancy work, the completion of follow ups will be agreed with key 
management and officers.

26. For any open recommendations remaining after completion of the follow up, 
regular monitoring of recommended actions will be performed by internal audit and 
reported to committee. 

Reporting to the Audit Committee

27. Monitoring of internal audit’s progress against the audit plan along with 
summarising the outcomes of recent audit and follow up work will be presented 
to the audit committee.
  

28. Following completion of the internal audit plan for 2020/21 we will produce an 
annual internal audit report on the work of internal audit in the year ended 31 
March 2021, and to advise the committee of the internal audit manager’s opinion 
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environments at 
SODC and VWHDC.

Financial Implications

29. The audit plan can be delivered from within the approved 2020/21 budget, 
therefore there are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal Implications

30. None

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



Risk Implications

31. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

VICTORIA DORMAN-SMITH
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



Appendix 1

Page 1

Schedule of Auditable Activity (SAA) 2020/2021 - by Service Area Yes
OFFICER REQUEST RISK SCORING THREE YEAR AUDIT PLAN

No. SERVICE AREA SERVICE TEAM AUDIT AREA COUNCIL LAST AUDITED
SODC LAST
AUDIT RATING

VWHDC LAST
AUDIT RATING

PLANNED
ASSURANCE
AUDIT

PLANNED
CONSULTANCY
AUDIT

FINANCIAL RISK
(x2)

FRAUD RISK
(x2)

REPUTATIONAL
RISK LEGAL RISK

CORPORATE
RISK

OFFICER
REQUEST
(1 FOR YES)

PRIORITY
SCORE
(MIN.7, MAX.22)

2020/21
PLANNED
ASSURANCE

2020/21
PLANNED
CONSULTANCY 2020/21 AUDIT PLANNING NOTES 2021/22 2022/23

1 Partnerships Strategic Partnership Oxfordshire Housing & Growth Deal and
Growth Board

Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 2 1 2 0 11 No No No No

2 Partnerships Strategic Partnership 5C Partnerships Joint Not audited N/A N/A Yes No 1 2 2 1 2 1 12 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 as part of the contract
management audit

Yes No

3 Partnerships Strategic Partnership Ox-Cam Arc Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

4 Partnerships Strategic Partnership Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership
(OxLEP) (incl. Enterprise Zones)

Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 2 1 1 0 10 No No No No

5 Partnerships Strategic Partnership Science Vale Brand Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

6 Development &
Regeneration

Economic Development Economic Development Joint Not audited N/A N/A Yes No 2 2 3 1 2 1 15 Yes No Covid-19 response to the discretionary grants scheme
will be audited in the Covid-19 Response Governance
Audit

No No

7 Development &
Regeneration

Economic Development Leader Project Assurance SODC 2017/2018 Full N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

8 Development &
Regeneration

Economic Development Leisure & Active Communities Joint 2015/2016
(Leisure Facilities)

Satisfactory Satisfactory No Yes 3 1 3 2 2 1 16 No No No No

9 Development &
Regeneration

Economic Development Market Towns Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

10 Development &
Regeneration

Property Management Property Management Joint 2018/2019 Limited Limited No No 3 1 3 3 3 0 17 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

11 Development &
Regeneration

Property Management Moorings VWHDC
only

2019/20 N/A Satisfactory No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

12 Development &
Regeneration

Property Management Corporate Landlord (NEW) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No Yes 3 1 3 3 3 1 18 No Yes Corporate Landlord Approach consultancy review No No

13 Development &
Regeneration

Property Management Estates & Facilities Management Joint 2016/2017 Limited Limited Yes No 3 2 3 1 2 1 17 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

14 Development &
Regeneration

Infrastructure &
Development

Affordable Housing (previously Housing
Development)

Joint 2018/2019 Full Full No No 1 1 3 1 1 0 9 No No No No

15 Development &
Regeneration

Infrastructure &
Development

S106 agreement Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 3 1 3 2 2 0 15 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

16 Development &
Regeneration

Infrastructure &
Development

CIL spending Joint 2016/2017 Full Limited No No 3 1 3 2 2 0 15 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

17 Development &
Regeneration

Infrastructure &
Development

Community Centres Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 3 2 2 0 13 No No No No

18 Development &
Regeneration

Infrastructure &
Development

Infrastructure Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 3 2 2 0 11 No No No No

19 Development &
Regeneration

Garden Communities Didcot Garden Town Delivery SODC Not audited N/A N/A No Yes 2 1 2 1 2 1 12 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

20 Development &
Regeneration

Garden Communities Development (incl. Berinsfield and Dalton
Barracks Garden Village)

Joint 2018/2019 Full Full No No 1 1 3 1 1 0 9 No No No No

21 Planning Planning Policy Local Plan / Transport Infrastructure Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 3 1 3 2 3 0 16 No No No No

22 Planning Planning Policy S106/CIL Policy and Collection Joint 2016/17 Full Limited No No 3 2 3 2 2 0 17 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

23 Planning Planning Policy Neighbourhood Planning Grants Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited Yes No 1 1 2 1 1 1 9 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

24 Planning Development Management -
Large Sites

Development Management (Planning
Applications - Large Sites) incl.
Conservation & Listed Buildings

Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 2 2 3 1 2 1 15 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

25 Planning Development Management -
Large Sites

Planning Enforcement Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 2 2 3 1 3 1 16 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

26 Planning Development Management -
Large Sites

Planning Appeals Joint 2018/19 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 3 1 2 0 14 No No No No

27 Planning Development Management -
Applications

Building Control Joint 2016/17 Limited Limited Yes No 2 2 3 1 2 1 15 Yes No No No

28 Planning Development Management -
Applications

Development Management (Planning
Applications) - Minor/Other incl.
Conservation & Listed Buildings

Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 2 2 3 1 2 1 15 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

29 Planning Planning Business Registration Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

30 Planning Planning Business Footpaths Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

31 Planning Planning Business Business Support Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

32 Planning Planning Business Conservation Area Appraisals Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

33 Planning Planning Business Ecology Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

34 Planning Planning Business Urban Design Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

35 Planning Planning Business Trees Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

36 Housing & Environment Licensing & Community
Safety

Licensing Joint 2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 3 2 1 0 14 No No No Yes

37 Housing & Environment Licensing & Community
Safety

Community Safety Joint Prior to 2010/11
(VWHDC only)

N/A Unknown - hard
copy audit files

No No 1 1 3 1 1 0 9 No No No No

38 Housing & Environment Licensing & Community
Safety

Safeguarding Children, Young People &
Vulnerable Adults

Joint 2016/17 Substantial Substantial No No 2 1 3 3 1 0 13 No No No Yes

39 Housing & Environment Licensing & Community
Safety

VFM from CCTV Contract Joint 2009/10 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 2 1 1 0 10 No No No No

40 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Housing Allocations Joint 2012/13 Full Full No No 1 2 3 2 1 0 12 No No No Yes

41 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Temporary Accommodation Joint 2014/15 Satisfactory Limited No No 1 1 3 1 2 0 10 No No No Yes

42 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Private Housing (Licensing HMO) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

43 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Disabled Facility Grants Joint 2019/20 Full Full No No 2 2 2 1 2 0 13 No No No No

44 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Environmental Protection Joint 2016/17 Limited Satisfactory No No 1 1 3 2 1 0 10 No No No No

45 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Waste Management & Recycling
(incl. Litter & Street Cleaning, Fly Tipping)

Joint 2015/16 Substantial Substantial No No 3 1 3 1 3 0 15 No No No Yes

46 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Brown Bins Joint 2018/19 Limited Limited No Yes 3 1 3 1 3 1 16 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix 1

Page 2

47 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Food & Safety Joint 2013/14 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 1 1 3 2 2 1 12 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

48 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Stray Dogs Contract Joint 2010/11
(VWHDC only)

N/A Satisfactory No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

49 Housing & Environment Technical Services Engineering Services
(Sewerage, Flooding, Drainage)

Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

50 Housing & Environment Technical Services Car Parks Joint 2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 2 1 1 0 12 No No No Yes

51 Housing & Environment Technical Services Mobile Home Parks Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 2 1 1 0 12 No No No No

52 Housing & Environment Technical Services Grounds & Parks Maintenance Joint 2017/18 Full Full No Yes 3 2 3 2 2 1 18 No Yes No No

53 Housing & Environment Technical Services Toilets Joint Not audited N/A N/A No Yes 2 2 2 2 2 1 15 No Yes In-sourcing of public convenience cleaning will be
audited in the Grounds & Parks Maintenance In-
Sourcing consultancy review

No No

54 Housing & Environment Technical Services Cemeteries SODC 2017/18 Full Full No No 1 1 2 1 2 0 9 No No No No

55 Housing & Environment Technical Services Tree Management & Inspections Joint 2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 3 2 1 0 12 No No No No

56 Housing & Environment Technical Services Public Realm Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

57 Finance Strategic Finance Capital Management & Accounting Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited Yes No 3 2 2 1 2 1 16 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes

58 Finance Strategic Finance Creditor Payments Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited No No 3 3 3 2 2 0 19 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes Yes

59 Finance Strategic Finance General Ledger Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 3 3 2 1 3 1 19 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes

60 Finance Strategic Finance Payroll Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited Yes No 3 3 3 3 3 1 22 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes

61 Finance Strategic Finance Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited Yes No 3 3 3 1 2 1 19 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes

62 Finance Strategic Finance Sundry Debtors Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited No No 3 3 2 2 2 0 18 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes Yes

63 Finance Strategic Finance Treasury Management Joint 2019/20 Substantial Substantial Yes No 3 3 2 1 2 1 18 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes

64 Finance Strategic Finance Bank Contract & Arrangements Joint 2014/15 Full Full No No 2 1 1 2 3 0 12 No No No No

65 Finance Strategic Finance Budgetary Control Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 1 3 1 3 0 15 No No No No

66 Finance Strategic Finance Community Loans Scheme SODC 2013/14 Full Full No No 2 2 2 1 1 0 12 No No No No

67 Finance Strategic Finance Council Fees & Charges Joint 2013/14 Limited Limited Yes No 3 1 3 1 3 1 16 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

68 Finance Strategic Finance Credit Card Usage Joint 2017/18 Limited Limited No No 2 3 1 1 1 0 13 No No No No

69 Finance Strategic Finance Internal Recharges Joint 2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 1 1 1 2 0 12 No No No No

70 Finance Strategic Finance Petty Cash Procedures Joint 2018/19 Limited Limited No No 2 2 1 1 1 0 11 No No No No

71 Finance Strategic Finance Petty Cash Spot Checks Joint 2017/18 Full Full No No 2 2 1 1 1 0 11 No No No No

72 Finance Strategic Finance Receipt of Income Arrangements Joint 2015/16 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 2 2 1 2 0 15 No No No No

73 Finance Strategic Finance Contract Management Joint 2014/15 Full Full No No 3 2 3 2 3 0 18 No No See corporate audits No No

74 Finance Strategic Finance Procurement Joint 2019/20 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 3 3 2 2 3 0 19 No No No No

75 Finance Revenues & Benefits Council Tax Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited Yes No 3 3 3 2 2 1 20 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes

76 Finance Revenues & Benefits Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction
Scheme (HBCTRS)

Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited Yes No 3 3 3 2 2 1 20 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes

77 Finance Revenues & Benefits National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 3 3 3 3 3 1 22 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually. Will include a
review of the Covid business grants

Yes Yes

78 Legal & Democratic
Services

Legal Services Land Charges Joint 2019/20 Audit in progress Audit in progress - Q4 2019/20No No 2 1 3 1 1 0 11 No No No No

79 Legal & Democratic
Services

Legal Services Regulation of Investigatory Powers (RIPA) Joint 2013/14 Full Full No No 2 1 3 1 2 0 12 No No No No

80 Legal & Democratic
Services

Democratic Services Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policies Joint 2014/15 Limited Limited No No 1 3 2 1 1 0 12 No No No No

81 Legal & Democratic
Services

Democratic Services Whistleblowing Joint 2014/15 Limited Limited No No 1 3 2 1 1 0 12 No No No No

82 Legal & Democratic
Services

Democratic Services Corporate Governance Joint 2014/15 Full Full No No 1 2 3 1 2 0 12 No No No Yes

83 Legal & Democratic
Services

Democratic Services Democratic Services Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 2 3 2 2 0 13 No No No No

84 Legal & Democratic
Services

Democratic Services Elections & Elections Payments Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited No No 1 2 3 2 3 0 14 No No No No

85 Legal & Democratic
Services

Democratic Services Gifts and Hospitality (Councillors) Joint 2016/17 Substantial Substantial No No 1 2 3 1 1 0 11 No No No No

86 Corporate Services Community Enablement Voluntary & Community Sector Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

87 Corporate Services Community Enablement Town & Parish Liaison Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

88 Corporate Services Community Enablement Assets of Community Value Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 2 2 1 0 11 No No No No

89 Corporate Services Community Enablement Community Grants Joint 2018/19 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 3 1 1 0 13 No No No No

90 Corporate Services Community Enablement Community Partnerships Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

91 Corporate Services Community Enablement Young People Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

92 Corporate Services Community Enablement Arts Development Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

93 Corporate Services Community Enablement SODC Online Lottery SODC Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 2 2 1 1 0 12 No No No No

Schedule of Auditable Activity (SAA) 2020/2021 - by Service Area Yes
OFFICER REQUEST RISK SCORING THREE YEAR AUDIT PLAN

No. SERVICE AREA SERVICE TEAM AUDIT AREA COUNCIL LAST AUDITED
SODC LAST
AUDIT RATING

VWHDC LAST
AUDIT RATING

PLANNED
ASSURANCE
AUDIT

PLANNED
CONSULTANCY
AUDIT

FINANCIAL RISK
(x2)

FRAUD RISK
(x2)

REPUTATIONAL
RISK LEGAL RISK

CORPORATE
RISK

OFFICER
REQUEST
(1 FOR YES)

PRIORITY
SCORE
(MIN.7, MAX.22)

2020/21
PLANNED
ASSURANCE

2020/21
PLANNED
CONSULTANCY 2020/21 AUDIT PLANNING NOTES 2021/22 2022/23

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix 1

Page 3

94 Corporate Services Community Enablement Cornerstone SODC 2019/20 Satisfactory N/A No Yes 3 2 3 1 3 1 18 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

95 Corporate Services Community Enablement The Beacon VWHDC 2017/18 N/A Satisfactory No Yes 3 2 3 1 3 1 18 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

96 Corporate Services Community Enablement Communications Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 3 1 2 0 10 No No No No

97 Corporate Services Community Enablement Consultation (Public & Staff) &
Community Engagement

Joint 2015/16 Substantial Substantial No No 1 1 3 1 2 0 10 No No No No

98 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Risk Management Joint 2018/19 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 3 3 3 3 0 21 No No No No

99 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Performance Management (Corporate Plan) Joint 2016/17 Limited Limited No No 1 1 2 1 2 0 9 No No No Yes

100 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Health & Safety Joint 2016/17 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 3 1 3 3 2 1 17 Yes No No No

101 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Lone Working Joint 2019/20 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 2 1 3 2 3 1 15 No No No No

102 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Insurance Joint 2018/19 Substantial Substantial No No 3 2 3 3 3 0 19 No No No No

103 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Equalities & Diversity Joint 2011/12 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No Yes

104 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Business Continuity Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited No No 3 2 3 1 3 0 17 No No No Yes

105 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Emergency Planning Joint 2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 3 1 3 0 13 No No No Yes

106 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Customer Services Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

107 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Comments & Complaints Process Joint 2016/17 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 3 1 2 0 10 Yes No Covid response to comments and complaints will be
covered in the corporate Covid-19 Response
Governance Audit.

No Yes

108 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Information Governance Joint 2012/13 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 1 2 3 3 3 1 16 Yes No Covid-19 response to information governance will be
audited in the Covid-19 Response Governance Audit

Yes No

109 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Data Protection / GDPR Joint 2019/20 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 3 2 3 3 2 0 18 No No No No

110 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Freedom of Information Requests (FOI) Joint 2012/13 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 3 2 2 0 11 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

111 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Environmental Information Regulations (EIR) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 3 2 1 0 10 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

112 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Executive & Business Support Team Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

113 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Cash Offices Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited No No 3 3 2 1 2 0 17 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

114 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Gifts & Hospitality (Officers) Joint Annual review of
entries on register

N/A N/A No No 1 2 3 1 1 0 11 No No No No

115 Corporate Services HR & Payroll HR Policy Framework Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 2 2 0 10 No No No No

116 Corporate Services HR & Payroll HR Management & Reporting Joint 2018/19 Limited Limited Yes No 2 1 2 2 2 1 13 Yes No No No

117 Corporate Services HR & Payroll HR Advisory Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 2 2 2 0 12 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

118 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Annual Leave (incl. annualised hours policy) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 2 2 2 1 0 13 Yes No Will be covered in the HR Management audit. No No

119 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Payroll Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited Yes No 3 3 3 3 3 1 22 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually - see Finance
service area

No No

120 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Pension Administration Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 3 2 2 2 1 0 15 Yes No Will be covered in the Payroll audit. No No

121 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Recruitment & Selection (incl. Disclosure &
Barring Service (DBS))

Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited No No 2 2 2 2 2 0 14 No No No No

122 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Travel & Subsistence (Expenses) Joint 2018/19 Limited Limited No No 2 3 2 1 1 0 14 Yes No Will be covered in the Payroll audit. No No

123 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Training & Development Joint 2016/17 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 2 1 2 0 11 No No No No

124 Corporate Services HR & Payroll HR Culture Project (incl. policy, performance
management, wellbeing, training, recruitment,
induction)

Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 2 2 2 0 12 No No No No

125 Corporate Services IT IT Operations
(incl. IT helpdesk, asset management, Active
Directory)

Joint 2015/16 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 3 3 2 3 0 20 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

126 Corporate Services IT IT Infrastructure
(incl. network setup and security)

Joint Not audited N/A N/A Yes No 3 3 3 2 3 1 21 Yes No Covid-19 response to IT equipment will be audited in the
Covid-19 Response Governance Audit

No No

127 Corporate Services IT Mobile Telephony Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 3 3 2 2 0 17 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

128 Corporate Services IT Information Security (incl. Cyber Security) Joint 2019/20 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 3 3 3 2 3 0 20 No No No No

129 Corporate Services IT Data Capture / Geographical Information
Systems (GIS)

Joint 2008/09 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

130 Corporate Services IT Street Naming & Numbering Joint 2018/19 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

131 Corporate Services IT Disaster Recovery Joint 2013/14 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 3 1 3 0 13 No No No No

132 Policy & Programmes Programmes Corporate Projects Management Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited No No 2 1 3 2 3 0 14 No No No Yes

133 Policy & Programmes Programmes Office Accommodation (NEW) Joint Not audited N/A N/A Yes No 3 1 3 3 3 1 18 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

134 Policy & Programmes Programmes Community Hub & Recovery (NEW) Joint Not audited N/A N/A Yes No 2 1 3 1 3 1 14 Yes No The community hub will be audited in the Covid-19
Response Governance Audit

No No

135 Policy & Programmes Programmes Transformation Program Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 3 2 2 0 13 No No No No

136 Policy & Programmes IT Programmes IT Programme Support (NEW) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 3 3 3 2 3 0 20 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

137 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy Insight Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

138 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy Policy Framework Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

139 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy Corporate Plan Development Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 2 1 2 0 11 No No No No

Schedule of Auditable Activity (SAA) 2020/2021 - by Service Area Yes
OFFICER REQUEST RISK SCORING THREE YEAR AUDIT PLAN

No. SERVICE AREA SERVICE TEAM AUDIT AREA COUNCIL LAST AUDITED
SODC LAST
AUDIT RATING

VWHDC LAST
AUDIT RATING

PLANNED
ASSURANCE
AUDIT

PLANNED
CONSULTANCY
AUDIT

FINANCIAL RISK
(x2)

FRAUD RISK
(x2)

REPUTATIONAL
RISK LEGAL RISK

CORPORATE
RISK

OFFICER
REQUEST
(1 FOR YES)

PRIORITY
SCORE
(MIN.7, MAX.22)

2020/21
PLANNED
ASSURANCE

2020/21
PLANNED
CONSULTANCY 2020/21 AUDIT PLANNING NOTES 2021/22 2022/23

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix 1

Page 4

140 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy External Funding Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 1 1 1 0 9 No No No No

141 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy 5CP Transition Programmes (NEW) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 2 2 1 2 0 13 No No No No

142 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy Climate Action (incl. Strategic Energy) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

143 Corporate Audits Corporate Stationery System Joint 2011/12 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 1 1 1 0 9 No No No No

144 Corporate Audits Corporate Contract Management Joint 2014/15 Full Full Yes No 3 2 3 2 3 1 19 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

145 Corporate Audits Corporate Partnership Performance Monitoring Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited No No 2 1 2 1 2 0 11 No No No No

Schedule of Auditable Activity (SAA) 2020/2021 - by Service Area Yes
OFFICER REQUEST RISK SCORING THREE YEAR AUDIT PLAN

No. SERVICE AREA SERVICE TEAM AUDIT AREA COUNCIL LAST AUDITED
SODC LAST
AUDIT RATING

VWHDC LAST
AUDIT RATING

PLANNED
ASSURANCE
AUDIT

PLANNED
CONSULTANCY
AUDIT

FINANCIAL RISK
(x2)

FRAUD RISK
(x2)

REPUTATIONAL
RISK LEGAL RISK

CORPORATE
RISK

OFFICER
REQUEST
(1 FOR YES)

PRIORITY
SCORE
(MIN.7, MAX.22)

2020/21
PLANNED
ASSURANCE

2020/21
PLANNED
CONSULTANCY 2020/21 AUDIT PLANNING NOTES 2021/22 2022/23

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix 1

Page 5

Schedule of Auditable Activity (SAA) 2020/2021 - by Priority Score Yes
OFFICER REQUEST RISK SCORING THREE YEAR AUDIT PLAN

No. SERVICE AREA SERVICE TEAM AUDIT AREA COUNCIL LAST AUDITED
SODC LAST
AUDIT RATING

VWHDC LAST
AUDIT RATING

PLANNED
ASSURANCE
AUDIT

PLANNED
CONSULTANCY
AUDIT

FINANCIAL RISK
(x2)

FRAUD RISK
(x2)

REPUTATIONAL
RISK LEGAL RISK

CORPORATE
RISK

OFFICER
REQUEST
(1 FOR YES)

PRIORITY
SCORE
(MIN.7, MAX.22)

2020/21
PLANNED
ASSURANCE

2020/21
PLANNED
CONSULTANCY 2020/21 AUDIT PLANNING NOTES 2021/22 2022/23

60 Finance Strategic Finance Payroll Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited Yes No 3 3 3 3 3 1 22 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes

77 Finance Revenues & Benefits National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 3 3 3 3 3 1 22 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually. Will include a
review of the Covid business grants

Yes Yes

119 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Payroll Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited Yes No 3 3 3 3 3 1 22 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually - see Finance
service area

No No

98 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Risk Management Joint 2018/19 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 3 3 3 3 0 21 No No No No

126 Corporate Services IT IT Infrastructure
(incl. network setup and security)

Joint Not audited N/A N/A Yes No 3 3 3 2 3 1 21 Yes No Covid-19 response to IT equipment will be audited in the
Covid-19 Response Governance Audit

No No

75 Finance Revenues & Benefits Council Tax Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited Yes No 3 3 3 2 2 1 20 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes

76 Finance Revenues & Benefits Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction
Scheme (HBCTRS)

Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited Yes No 3 3 3 2 2 1 20 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes

125 Corporate Services IT IT Operations
(incl. IT helpdesk, asset management, Active
Directory)

Joint 2015/16 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 3 3 2 3 0 20 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

128 Corporate Services IT Information Security (incl. Cyber Security) Joint 2019/20 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 3 3 3 2 3 0 20 No No No No

136 Policy & Programmes IT Programmes IT Programme Support (NEW) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 3 3 3 2 3 0 20 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

58 Finance Strategic Finance Creditor Payments Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited No No 3 3 3 2 2 0 19 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes Yes

59 Finance Strategic Finance General Ledger Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 3 3 2 1 3 1 19 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes

61 Finance Strategic Finance Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited Yes No 3 3 3 1 2 1 19 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes

74 Finance Strategic Finance Procurement Joint 2019/20 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 3 3 2 2 3 0 19 No No No No

102 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Insurance Joint 2018/19 Substantial Substantial No No 3 2 3 3 3 0 19 No No No No

144 Corporate Audits Corporate Contract Management Joint 2014/15 Full Full Yes No 3 2 3 2 3 1 19 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

12 Development &
Regeneration

Property Management Corporate Landlord (NEW) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No Yes 3 1 3 3 3 1 18 No Yes Corporate Landlord Approach consultancy review No No

52 Housing & Environment Technical Services Grounds & Parks Maintenance Joint 2017/18 Full Full No Yes 3 2 3 2 2 1 18 No Yes No No

62 Finance Strategic Finance Sundry Debtors Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited No No 3 3 2 2 2 0 18 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes Yes

63 Finance Strategic Finance Treasury Management Joint 2019/20 Substantial Substantial Yes No 3 3 2 1 2 1 18 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes

73 Finance Strategic Finance Contract Management Joint 2014/15 Full Full No No 3 2 3 2 3 0 18 No No See corporate audits No No

94 Corporate Services Community Enablement Cornerstone SODC 2019/20 Satisfactory N/A No Yes 3 2 3 1 3 1 18 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

95 Corporate Services Community Enablement The Beacon VWHDC 2017/18 N/A Satisfactory No Yes 3 2 3 1 3 1 18 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

109 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Data Protection / GDPR Joint 2019/20 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 3 2 3 3 2 0 18 No No No No

133 Policy & Programmes Programmes Office Accommodation (NEW) Joint Not audited N/A N/A Yes No 3 1 3 3 3 1 18 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

10 Development &
Regeneration

Property Management Property Management Joint 2018/2019 Limited Limited No No 3 1 3 3 3 0 17 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

13 Development &
Regeneration

Property Management Estates & Facilities Management Joint 2016/2017 Limited Limited Yes No 3 2 3 1 2 1 17 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

22 Planning Planning Policy S106/CIL Policy and Collection Joint 2016/17 Full Limited No No 3 2 3 2 2 0 17 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

100 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Health & Safety Joint 2016/17 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 3 1 3 3 2 1 17 Yes No No No

104 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Business Continuity Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited No No 3 2 3 1 3 0 17 No No No Yes

113 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Cash Offices Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited No No 3 3 2 1 2 0 17 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

127 Corporate Services IT Mobile Telephony Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 3 3 2 2 0 17 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

8 Development &
Regeneration

Economic Development Leisure & Active Communities Joint 2015/2016
(Leisure Facilities)

Satisfactory Satisfactory No Yes 3 1 3 2 2 1 16 No No No No

21 Planning Planning Policy Local Plan / Transport Infrastructure Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 3 1 3 2 3 0 16 No No No No

25 Planning Development Management -
Large Sites

Planning Enforcement Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 2 2 3 1 3 1 16 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

46 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Brown Bins Joint 2018/19 Limited Limited No Yes 3 1 3 1 3 1 16 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

57 Finance Strategic Finance Capital Management & Accounting Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited Yes No 3 2 2 1 2 1 16 Yes No Key financial audit performed annually Yes Yes
67 Finance Strategic Finance Council Fees & Charges Joint 2013/14 Limited Limited Yes No 3 1 3 1 3 1 16 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

108 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Information Governance Joint 2012/13 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 1 2 3 3 3 1 16 Yes No Covid-19 response to information governance will be
audited in the Covid-19 Response Governance Audit

Yes No

6 Development &
Regeneration

Economic Development Economic Development Joint Not audited N/A N/A Yes No 2 2 3 1 2 1 15 Yes No Covid-19 response to the discretionary grants scheme
will be audited in the Covid-19 Response Governance
Audit

No No

15 Development &
Regeneration

Infrastructure &
Development

S106 agreement Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 3 1 3 2 2 0 15 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

16 Development &
Regeneration

Infrastructure &
Development

CIL spending Joint 2016/2017 Full Limited No No 3 1 3 2 2 0 15 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

24 Planning Development Management -
Large Sites

Development Management (Planning
Applications - Large Sites) incl.
Conservation & Listed Buildings

Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 2 2 3 1 2 1 15 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

27 Planning Development Management -
Applications

Building Control Joint 2016/17 Limited Limited Yes No 2 2 3 1 2 1 15 Yes No No No

28 Planning Development Management -
Applications

Development Management (Planning
Applications) - Minor/Other incl.
Conservation & Listed Buildings

Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 2 2 3 1 2 1 15 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

45 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Waste Management & Recycling
(incl. Litter & Street Cleaning, Fly Tipping)

Joint 2015/16 Substantial Substantial No No 3 1 3 1 3 0 15 No No No Yes

53 Housing & Environment Technical Services Toilets Joint Not audited N/A N/A No Yes 2 2 2 2 2 1 15 No Yes In-sourcing of public convenience cleaning will be
audited in the Grounds & Parks Maintenance In-
Sourcing consultancy review

No No

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix 1

Page 6

65 Finance Strategic Finance Budgetary Control Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 1 3 1 3 0 15 No No No No

72 Finance Strategic Finance Receipt of Income Arrangements Joint 2015/16 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 2 2 1 2 0 15 No No No No

101 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Lone Working Joint 2019/20 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 2 1 3 2 3 1 15 No No No No

120 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Pension Administration Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 3 2 2 2 1 0 15 Yes No Will be covered in the Payroll audit. No No

26 Planning Development Management -
Large Sites

Planning Appeals Joint 2018/19 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 3 1 2 0 14 No No No No

36 Housing & Environment Licensing & Community
Safety

Licensing Joint 2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 3 2 1 0 14 No No No Yes

84 Legal & Democratic
Services

Democratic Services Elections & Elections Payments Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited No No 1 2 3 2 3 0 14 No No No No

121 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Recruitment & Selection (incl. Disclosure &
Barring Service (DBS))

Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited No No 2 2 2 2 2 0 14 No No No No

122 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Travel & Subsistence (Expenses) Joint 2018/19 Limited Limited No No 2 3 2 1 1 0 14 Yes No Will be covered in the Payroll audit. No No

132 Policy & Programmes Programmes Corporate Projects Management Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited No No 2 1 3 2 3 0 14 No No No Yes

134 Policy & Programmes Programmes Community Hub & Recovery (NEW) Joint Not audited N/A N/A Yes No 2 1 3 1 3 1 14 Yes No The community hub will be audited in the Covid-19
Response Governance Audit

No No

17 Development &
Regeneration

Infrastructure &
Development

Community Centres Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 3 2 2 0 13 No No No No

38 Housing & Environment Licensing & Community
Safety

Safeguarding Children, Young People &
Vulnerable Adults

Joint 2016/17 Substantial Substantial No No 2 1 3 3 1 0 13 No No No Yes

43 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Disabled Facility Grants Joint 2019/20 Full Full No No 2 2 2 1 2 0 13 No No No No

68 Finance Strategic Finance Credit Card Usage Joint 2017/18 Limited Limited No No 2 3 1 1 1 0 13 No No No No

83 Legal & Democratic
Services

Democratic Services Democratic Services Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 2 3 2 2 0 13 No No No No

89 Corporate Services Community Enablement Community Grants Joint 2018/19 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 3 1 1 0 13 No No No No

105 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Emergency Planning Joint 2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 3 1 3 0 13 No No No Yes

116 Corporate Services HR & Payroll HR Management & Reporting Joint 2018/19 Limited Limited Yes No 2 1 2 2 2 1 13 Yes No No No

118 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Annual Leave (incl. annualised hours policy) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 2 2 2 1 0 13 Yes No Will be covered in the HR Management audit. No No

131 Corporate Services IT Disaster Recovery Joint 2013/14 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 3 1 3 0 13 No No No No

135 Policy & Programmes Programmes Transformation Program Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 3 2 2 0 13 No No No No

141 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy 5CP Transition Programmes (NEW) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 2 2 1 2 0 13 No No No No

50 Housing & Environment Technical Services Car Parks Joint 2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 2 1 1 0 12 No No No Yes

2 Partnerships Strategic Partnership 5C Partnerships Joint Not audited N/A N/A Yes No 1 2 2 1 2 1 12 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 as part of the contract
management audit

Yes No

19 Development &
Regeneration

Garden Communities Didcot Garden Town Delivery SODC Not audited N/A N/A No Yes 2 1 2 1 2 1 12 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

40 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Housing Allocations Joint 2012/13 Full Full No No 1 2 3 2 1 0 12 No No No Yes

47 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Food & Safety Joint 2013/14 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 1 1 3 2 2 1 12 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

51 Housing & Environment Technical Services Mobile Home Parks Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 2 1 1 0 12 No No No No

55 Housing & Environment Technical Services Tree Management & Inspections Joint 2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 3 2 1 0 12 No No No No

64 Finance Strategic Finance Bank Contract & Arrangements Joint 2014/15 Full Full No No 2 1 1 2 3 0 12 No No No No

66 Finance Strategic Finance Community Loans Scheme SODC 2013/14 Full Full No No 2 2 2 1 1 0 12 No No No No

69 Finance Strategic Finance Internal Recharges Joint 2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 1 1 1 2 0 12 No No No No

79 Legal & Democratic
Services

Legal Services Regulation of Investigatory Powers (RIPA) Joint 2013/14 Full Full No No 2 1 3 1 2 0 12 No No No No

80 Legal & Democratic
Services

Democratic Services Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policies Joint 2014/15 Limited Limited No No 1 3 2 1 1 0 12 No No No No

81 Legal & Democratic
Services

Democratic Services Whistleblowing Joint 2014/15 Limited Limited No No 1 3 2 1 1 0 12 No No No No

82 Legal & Democratic
Services

Democratic Services Corporate Governance Joint 2014/15 Full Full No No 1 2 3 1 2 0 12 No No No Yes

93 Corporate Services Community Enablement SODC Online Lottery SODC Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 2 2 1 1 0 12 No No No No

117 Corporate Services HR & Payroll HR Advisory Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 2 2 2 0 12 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

124 Corporate Services HR & Payroll HR Culture Project (incl. policy, performance
management, wellbeing, training, recruitment,
induction)

Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 2 2 2 0 12 No No No No

1 Partnerships Strategic Partnership Oxfordshire Housing & Growth Deal and
Growth Board

Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 2 1 2 0 11 No No No No

18 Development &
Regeneration

Infrastructure &
Development

Infrastructure Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 3 2 2 0 11 No No No No

70 Finance Strategic Finance Petty Cash Procedures Joint 2018/19 Limited Limited No No 2 2 1 1 1 0 11 No No No No

71 Finance Strategic Finance Petty Cash Spot Checks Joint 2017/18 Full Full No No 2 2 1 1 1 0 11 No No No No

78 Legal & Democratic
Services

Legal Services Land Charges Joint 2019/20 Audit in progress Audit in progress - Q4 2019/20No No 2 1 3 1 1 0 11 No No No No

85 Legal & Democratic
Services

Democratic Services Gifts and Hospitality (Councillors) Joint 2016/17 Substantial Substantial No No 1 2 3 1 1 0 11 No No No No

88 Corporate Services Community Enablement Assets of Community Value Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 2 2 1 0 11 No No No No

Schedule of Auditable Activity (SAA) 2020/2021 - by Priority Score Yes
OFFICER REQUEST RISK SCORING THREE YEAR AUDIT PLAN

No. SERVICE AREA SERVICE TEAM AUDIT AREA COUNCIL LAST AUDITED
SODC LAST
AUDIT RATING

VWHDC LAST
AUDIT RATING

PLANNED
ASSURANCE
AUDIT

PLANNED
CONSULTANCY
AUDIT

FINANCIAL RISK
(x2)

FRAUD RISK
(x2)

REPUTATIONAL
RISK LEGAL RISK

CORPORATE
RISK

OFFICER
REQUEST
(1 FOR YES)

PRIORITY
SCORE
(MIN.7, MAX.22)

2020/21
PLANNED
ASSURANCE

2020/21
PLANNED
CONSULTANCY 2020/21 AUDIT PLANNING NOTES 2021/22 2022/23

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix 1

Page 7

110 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Freedom of Information Requests (FOI) Joint 2012/13 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 3 2 2 0 11 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

114 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Gifts & Hospitality (Officers) Joint Annual review of
entries on register

N/A N/A No No 1 2 3 1 1 0 11 No No No No

123 Corporate Services HR & Payroll Training & Development Joint 2016/17 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 2 1 2 0 11 No No No No

139 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy Corporate Plan Development Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 2 1 2 0 11 No No No No

145 Corporate Audits Corporate Partnership Performance Monitoring Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited No No 2 1 2 1 2 0 11 No No No No

4 Partnerships Strategic Partnership Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership
(OxLEP) (incl. Enterprise Zones)

Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 2 1 1 0 10 No No No No

39 Housing & Environment Licensing & Community
Safety

VFM from CCTV Contract Joint 2009/10 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 2 1 1 0 10 No No No No

41 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Temporary Accommodation Joint 2014/15 Satisfactory Limited No No 1 1 3 1 2 0 10 No No No Yes

44 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Environmental Protection Joint 2016/17 Limited Satisfactory No No 1 1 3 2 1 0 10 No No No No

96 Corporate Services Community Enablement Communications Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 3 1 2 0 10 No No No No

97 Corporate Services Community Enablement Consultation (Public & Staff) &
Community Engagement

Joint 2015/16 Substantial Substantial No No 1 1 3 1 2 0 10 No No No No

107 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Comments & Complaints Process Joint 2016/17 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 3 1 2 0 10 Yes No Covid response to comments and complaints will be
covered in the corporate Covid-19 Response
Governance Audit.

No Yes

111 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Environmental Information Regulations (EIR) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 3 2 1 0 10 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

115 Corporate Services HR & Payroll HR Policy Framework Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 2 2 0 10 No No No No

14 Development &
Regeneration

Infrastructure &
Development

Affordable Housing (previously Housing
Development)

Joint 2018/2019 Full Full No No 1 1 3 1 1 0 9 No No No No

20 Development &
Regeneration

Garden Communities Development (incl. Berinsfield and Dalton
Barracks Garden Village)

Joint 2018/2019 Full Full No No 1 1 3 1 1 0 9 No No No No

23 Planning Planning Policy Neighbourhood Planning Grants Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited Yes No 1 1 2 1 1 1 9 No No Will be audited in 2021/22 Yes No

37 Housing & Environment Licensing & Community
Safety

Community Safety Joint Prior to 2010/11
(VWHDC only)

N/A Unknown - hard
copy audit files

No No 1 1 3 1 1 0 9 No No No No

54 Housing & Environment Technical Services Cemeteries SODC 2017/18 Full Full No No 1 1 2 1 2 0 9 No No No No

99 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Performance Management (Corporate Plan) Joint 2016/17 Limited Limited No No 1 1 2 1 2 0 9 No No No Yes

140 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy External Funding Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 2 1 1 1 1 0 9 No No No No

143 Corporate Audits Corporate Stationery System Joint 2011/12 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 1 1 1 0 9 No No No No

3 Partnerships Strategic Partnership Ox-Cam Arc Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

5 Partnerships Strategic Partnership Science Vale Brand Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

7 Development &
Regeneration

Economic Development Leader Project Assurance SODC 2017/2018 Full N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

11 Development &
Regeneration

Property Management Moorings VWHDC
only

2019/20 N/A Satisfactory No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

42 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Private Housing (Licensing HMO) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

48 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Stray Dogs Contract Joint 2010/11
(VWHDC only)

N/A Satisfactory No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

49 Housing & Environment Technical Services Engineering Services
(Sewerage, Flooding, Drainage)

Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

56 Housing & Environment Technical Services Public Realm Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

86 Corporate Services Community Enablement Voluntary & Community Sector Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

87 Corporate Services Community Enablement Town & Parish Liaison Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

90 Corporate Services Community Enablement Community Partnerships Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

91 Corporate Services Community Enablement Young People Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

92 Corporate Services Community Enablement Arts Development Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

103 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Equalities & Diversity Joint 2011/12 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No Yes

106 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Customer Services Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

130 Corporate Services IT Street Naming & Numbering Joint 2018/19 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No No No No

9 Development &
Regeneration

Economic Development Market Towns Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

29 Planning Planning Business Registration Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

30 Planning Planning Business Footpaths Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

31 Planning Planning Business Business Support Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

32 Planning Planning Business Conservation Area Appraisals Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

33 Planning Planning Business Ecology Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

34 Planning Planning Business Urban Design Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

35 Planning Planning Business Trees Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

112 Corporate Services Customer Assurance Executive & Business Support Team Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

Schedule of Auditable Activity (SAA) 2020/2021 - by Priority Score Yes
OFFICER REQUEST RISK SCORING THREE YEAR AUDIT PLAN

No. SERVICE AREA SERVICE TEAM AUDIT AREA COUNCIL LAST AUDITED
SODC LAST
AUDIT RATING

VWHDC LAST
AUDIT RATING

PLANNED
ASSURANCE
AUDIT

PLANNED
CONSULTANCY
AUDIT

FINANCIAL RISK
(x2)

FRAUD RISK
(x2)

REPUTATIONAL
RISK LEGAL RISK

CORPORATE
RISK

OFFICER
REQUEST
(1 FOR YES)

PRIORITY
SCORE
(MIN.7, MAX.22)

2020/21
PLANNED
ASSURANCE

2020/21
PLANNED
CONSULTANCY 2020/21 AUDIT PLANNING NOTES 2021/22 2022/23

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix 1

Page 8

129 Corporate Services IT Data Capture / Geographical Information
Systems (GIS)

Joint 2008/09 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

137 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy Insight Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

138 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy Policy Framework Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

142 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy Climate Action (incl. Strategic Energy) Joint Not audited N/A N/A No No 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No No No No

Schedule of Auditable Activity (SAA) 2020/2021 - by Priority Score Yes
OFFICER REQUEST RISK SCORING THREE YEAR AUDIT PLAN

No. SERVICE AREA SERVICE TEAM AUDIT AREA COUNCIL LAST AUDITED
SODC LAST
AUDIT RATING

VWHDC LAST
AUDIT RATING

PLANNED
ASSURANCE
AUDIT

PLANNED
CONSULTANCY
AUDIT

FINANCIAL RISK
(x2)

FRAUD RISK
(x2)

REPUTATIONAL
RISK LEGAL RISK

CORPORATE
RISK

OFFICER
REQUEST
(1 FOR YES)

PRIORITY
SCORE
(MIN.7, MAX.22)

2020/21
PLANNED
ASSURANCE

2020/21
PLANNED
CONSULTANCY 2020/21 AUDIT PLANNING NOTES 2021/22 2022/23

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix 1

Key: Description
Audit allocation days Total budgeted days, split by SODC and VWHDC used for the last audit.
Last reviewed Audit year last reviewed

Last audit rating Audit rating of last audit

Financial risk score (x2)* Any risk which has a potential adverse financial consequence.

Fraud risk score (x2)* The risk of a person/persons using deception to make a personal gain which has an impact on the organisation.

Reputational risk score Risk of negative perception by the public and stakeholders.

Legal risk score Risk of non-compliance to laws and regulations.  Any financial consequence of such a breach is scored in the
financial risk element.

Corporate risk score Risk of operational disruption resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.

Officer request
Review requested by Head of Service for 2020/21 audit plan.
Requested: 1
Not requested: 0

Priority score Sum of all the risk scores, with a minimum score of 7 and a maximum score of 22
Key financial audit Key financial audit, reviewed annually
* Financial and fraud risk has been weighted (x2), due to higher level of impact if risk materialised.

Risk Definitions & Scoring
Low Risk: 1 Consequences will not be severe and any associated losses relatively small.

Medium risk: 2 Significant impact to council operations and services.

High risk: 3 Major impact to council operations and services.

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7



Internal Audit Allocation 2020/2021                         APPENDIX 2

DESCRIPTION
(analysis of description overleaf)

DAYS 
2020/21

1 July 2020 to 
31 March 2021

DAYS 
2019/20

1 April 2019 to 
31 March 2020 VARIANCE

NOTES
(overleaf)

Total available days 780 953 (173)
1 internal audit manager (52 weeks x 5 
days) x 9/12 months

195 260 (65)

1 auditor (52 weeks x 5 days) x 9/12 months 195 260 (65)
1 auditor (52 weeks x 5 days) x 9/12 months 
(2-month vacancy in 2019/20)

195 217 (22)

1 auditor (52 weeks x 5 days) x 9/12 months 
(2-month vacancy in 2019/20)

195 217 (22)

1

Total lost days 134 151 (17)
Annual leave entitlement (planned) 86 95 (9)
Public holidays, office Christmas closure 
(planned)

28 36 (8)

Sickness absence (unplanned) 20 20 0

2

Total non-chargeable days 54 82 (28)
Administration 30 40 (10)
Training and development 12 32 (20)
Corporate and internal audit team meetings 12 10 2

3

Total chargeable days 592 720 (128)
Internal audit plan 2019/20 55 0 55
Internal audit plan 2020/21 (planned 
assurance)

315 452 (137)

Internal audit plan 2020/21 (planned 
consultancy)

40 0 40

Consultancy (unplanned) 45 32 13
Contingency/investigations (unplanned) 27 58 (31)
Ad-hoc advice 27 42 (15)
Internal audit follow up 18 28 (10)
Audit management 65 100 (35)
Town and parish council audits 0 8 (8)

4

Total lost, non-chargeable, chargeable 
days

780 953 (173)

Proportion of chargeable days 76% 76% 0%
Proportion of non-chargeable days 7% 9% (2%)
Proportion of lost days 17% 16% 1%

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



Analysis of description  APPENDIX 2

Administration 
 Appraisals
 Progress and 1-2-1 meetings
 Filing
 Timekeeping (timesheets, time allocation, individual work plans)
 Staff briefings
 E-mails/correspondence
 Recruitment

Training and development
 In-house corporate training (IT, new systems, HR training programme)
 External role related training (management, fraud, audit)
 Study leave for professional qualifications or other role specific training

Team meetings
 Internal audit, finance managers, operational management group, statutory officers, 

portfolio holders

Audit management
 Preparation and attendance at committee
 Revision of audit procedures
 Quality assurance/file reviews
 Liaising with external audit
 Raising the profile of internal audit
 Attendance at corporate internal and external networking meetings
 Internal audit presence on the website and intranet at both sites
 Preparation and monitoring of the internal audit plan
 Budgetary control
 Delivery of training
 Performance management
 Recommendations database (maintenance and non-audit specific work)
 Corporate fraud

Ad-hoc advice
 Informal responsive advice to queries from officers

Consultancy/system development
 Formal governance, risk and control project work based on agreed terms of reference (i.e. 

project member for implementation of new systems, system mapping, delivery of training to 
members and staff)

Contingency/investigations
 Responsive work issued and agreed by the S151 officer, joint audit and governance 

committee, members or management team

Town and parish councils
 Provision of internal audit services to town and parish councils

Five Councils Partnership
 Audit assistance in relation to Capita services (i.e. Exchequer services and IT) as 

requested by senior management

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



Notes and explanations for variances against previous year  APPENDIX 2

1. Total available days decreased by 173 from 953 to 780
 The calculation of available auditor days is based on a fully staffed internal audit team 

for the remaining nine months of the year (July 2020 to March 2021).  During quarter 
one of 2020/21, the internal audit team assisted in the councils’ response to Covid-19 
(i.e. business and discretionary grant work).  The 2019/20 calculation allowed for two 
auditor vacancies for two months.

2.  Total lost days decreased by 17 days from 151 to 134
 Annual leave entitlement (less 9 days): one long serving auditor has additional 

annual leave entitlement (five days) and one auditor has purchased additional annual 
leave (five days). The 2020/21 annual leave days is pro-rated for the remaining nine 
months.  In 2019/20 the two-month auditor vacancies reduced the total annual leave 
days. 

 Public holidays and office closure (less 8 days): allocation of seven public holidays 
per auditor in 2020/21. The two auditor vacancies in April and May of 2019/20 reduced 
the total public holidays by eight days.

 Sickness absence (no change): allowance of five sick days per auditor. 

3. Total non-chargeable days decreased by 28 days from 82 to 54
 Administration (less 10 days): allocation based on the average number of days used 

over the last three years, pro-rated for the remaining nine months in 2020/21. In 
2019/20 the two auditor vacancies reduced the allocation of administration days.

 Training and development (less 20 days): allocation of three days per auditor for in-
house and external training, based on the average number of days used over the last 
three years. 

 Corporate/team meetings (plus 2 days): allocation of three days per auditor, based 
on the average number of days used over the last three years.

4. Total chargeable days decreased by 128 days from 720 to 592
 Internal audit plan 2019/20 (plus 55 days): allocation of 55 days for the completion 

of four 2019/20 audits, which have not been finalised by 31 March 2020. 
 Internal audit plan 2020/21 (planned assurance) (less 137 days): the number of 

planned assurance audits has decreased to accommodate the remaining nine months 
of 2020/21, due to Covid-19.

 Internal audit plan 2020/21 (planned consultancy) (plus 40 days): there are two 
planned consultancy audits in 2020/21 - no planned consultancy audits were 
scheduled for 2019/20.

 Consultancy (unplanned) (plus 13 days): allocation of five days per service area 
(four days in 2019/20), based on audit planning discussions.  

 Contingency/investigations (unplanned) (less 31 day): allocation of three days per 
service area, which is based on the average number of days used over the last three 
years. 

 Ad-hoc advice (less 15 days): allocation of three days per service area, which is 
based on the average number of days used over the last three years. 

 Internal audit follow up (less 10 days): allocation of 10 days for 2019/20 follow ups 
and eight days for 2020/21 follow ups. 

 Audit management (less 35 days): allocation is in line with the average number of 
days used over the last three years, pro-rated for the remaining nine months.  

 Five Councils Partnership (no change): 20 days budgeted for audit assistance in 
relation to services coming back in-house.  

 Town and parish councils (less 8 days): internal audit services are no longer 
offered to town and parish councils.

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



Proposed Internal Audits 2020/21                     APPENDIX 3                                                                                                         

No. Service Area Audit Area
Priority 
Score

SODC
Days

VWHDC
Days

1 Payroll (incl. travel & subsistence, pension administration, annual leave 
payments) 22 20 20

2 National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) (incl. Covid-19 Business Grants) 22 15 15

3 Council Tax 20 16 16

4 Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction Scheme (HB & CTRS) 20 17 17

5 Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review 19 10 10

6 General Ledger - limited review 19 7.5 7.5

7 Treasury Management 18 10 10

8

Finance

Capital Management & Accounting 16 8 8

9 Planning Building Control 15 10 10

10 Policy & Programmes Covid-19 Response Governance Review N/A* 20 20

11 Health & Safety 17 10 10

12

Corporate Services

HR Management & Reporting (incl. annual leave calculation) 13 14 14

Planned Assurance Work Total Days 157.5 157.5

13 Housing & Environment Grounds & Parks Maintenance In-Sourcing N/A 10 10

14 Development & 
Regeneration Corporate Landlord Approach N/A 10 10

Planned Consultancy Work Total Days 20 20
*the audit covers many topics, all with varying priority scores.

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 7



Proposed Audit Coverage and Start Dates      APPENDIX 3
Proposed Start 

DateNo. Audit Area Proposed Audit Coverage
Q2 Q3 Q4

1 Payroll 

 Amendments to standing data (starters, leavers, overtime, variations).
 Monthly payroll processing.
 Payroll records, including reconciliations between systems.
 Annual leave calculations (incl. full time, part time employees).

Nov

2 NNDR (incl. Covid-
19 Business Grants)

 Valuation records for new and amended properties.
 NNDR billing, payment and refund transactions.
 Debt recovery and write offs.

Oct

3 Council Tax
 Liabilities, including discounts and exemptions.
 Payments, credits, refunds and suspense transactions.
 Recovery, enforcement and write-offs. 

Sep

4 HB & CTRS 
 Housing benefits and CTRS payments.
 Benefits assessments and subsidy claims.
 Benefit overpayments.

Oct

5 Pro-Active Anti-
Fraud Review

 Series of tests designed to evaluate the effectiveness of fraud and anti-corruption controls within 
key financial processes. Ongoing

6 General Ledger 
(limited review)

 Policies, procedures and assignment of roles and responsibilities, including segregation of duties.
 Bank reconciliations.
 Suspense account management.
 Journal processing and recording.

Nov

7 Treasury 
Management

 Investments and borrowings (including authorisation, counterparty limits, coding).
 Treasury management performance.
 Access level controls within treasury management and banking systems.

Jan

8 Capital Management 
& Accounting

 Capital financial strategy and asset management plan.
 Capital contracts and budget monitoring.
 Completeness and accuracy of asset register, including reconciliations.

Jan

9 Building Control  Building control fee billings and collection.
 ISO readiness assessment and review progress against ISO recommendations. Feb

10 Covid-19 Response 
Governance Review

 Review of the councils’ response to Covid-19, including decision making, grant funding, 
information governance, community hub activities, officer well-being, IT asset management, data 
protection and comments and complaints.

Aug

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 7



APPENDIX 3

Proposed Start 
DateNo. Audit Area Proposed Audit Coverage

Q2 Q3 Q4

11 Health & Safety
 Review of health and safety activities across the councils, including policies and procedures, risk 

identification and assessments, contractors, premises and land management, incident reporting 
and training and awareness.

Oct

12
HR Management & 
Reporting (incl. 
annual leave 
calculation)

 Policies, procedures and training.
 Starters, leavers, and increment/change processes.
 Administration, management and access controls within HR systems.
 Management of HR data. 
 Annual leave entitlement balances and calculations.
 Statutory reporting, including pay policy statements, equalities, staff surveys. 

Aug

13
Grounds & Parks 
Maintenance In-
Sourcing

 Development of processes and procedures due to the in-souring of grounds maintenance and 
public convenience cleaning, with a focus on compliance, efficiency and cost effectiveness. Ongoing

14 Corporate Landlord 
Approach

 Independent and objective assessment of the project to centralise the management of council 
assets. Jan

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 7



APPENDIX 3
Key:
Audits in bold text are key financial audits, performed every year.

Planned Assurance Audits:
Planned assurance audits are rated within the schedule of auditable activity taking into consideration the following factors:

 Risk scores for the level of exposure to financial, fraud, reputational, legal and corporate risk; and

 Officer requests for a review.
This generates a priority score which, together with internal audit and the section 151 officer’s opinion on key risk areas, determines which 
planned assurance audits are placed in the annual audit plan.

Planned Consultancy Audits:
Consulting services are defined as advisory and client related service activities, the nature and scope of which are agreed with the client, 
are intended to add value and improve an organisation’s governance, risk management and control processes without the internal auditor 
assuming management responsibility.  Examples include counsel, advice, facilitation and training.  As planned consultancy audits are 
performed at the request of senior management these reviews are not assigned a priority score.

Proposed Audit Coverage:
The proposed audit scope, based on planning activities and previous audit reviews is detailed above.  Prior to the start of each individual audit a 
risk assessment and scoping exercise will be performed by the auditor, which will be agreed with the auditee(s).

Audit Start Date
The audit start date indicates the estimated month the audit fieldwork is due to commence; however, some audits may be performed over more 
than one month/quarter.  We will seek to agree a date which ensures the availability of key management and officers.

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 7



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Internal Audit Manager
Author: Victoria Dorman-Smith
Telephone: 01235 422430
Textphone: 18001 01235 422430
E-mail: victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins
Tel: 01189 722565
E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford
Telephone: 01235 772134
E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 22 September 2020

Internal audit activity report quarters one 
and two 2020/21 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report

Purpose of report 

1. The purpose of this report is to summarise the outcomes of recent internal audit activity 
at both councils for the committee to consider.  The committee is asked to review the 
report and the main issues arising, and seek assurance that action will be/has been taken 
where necessary. 

2. The contact officer for this report is Victoria Dorman-Smith, Internal Audit Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council 
(VWHDC), telephone 01235 422430.

Page 31

Agenda Item 8

mailto:victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk


Strategic objectives
 
3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting their 

strategic objectives.

Background 

4. Internal audit is an independent assurance function that primarily provides an objective 
opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes 
the achievements of the council’s objectives.  It assists the councils by evaluating the 
adequacy of governance, risk management, controls and use of resources through its 
planned audit work, and recommending improvements where necessary.  After each 
audit assignment, internal audit has a duty to report to management its findings on the 
control environment and risk exposure, and recommend changes for improvements 
where applicable.  Managers are responsible for considering audit reports and taking the 
appropriate action to address control weaknesses. 

5. Assurance ratings given by internal audit indicate the following:

Full assurance: There is a good system of internal control designed to meet the system 
objectives and the controls are being consistently applied. 

Substantial assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to meet 
the system objectives and the controls are being applied.

Satisfactory assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal control although 
there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence that the level of non-
compliance may put some minor system objectives at risk.

Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the internal control 
system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level of non-compliance puts 
some of the system objectives at risk.

Nil assurance: Control is weak leaving the system open to significant error or abuse 
and/or there is significant non-compliance with basic controls.

6. Each recommendation is given one of the following risk ratings:

High Risk: Fundamental control weakness for senior management action

Medium Risk: Other control weakness for local management action

Low Risk: Recommended best practice to improve overall control

Completed audit reports

7. As at 11 September 2020, since the last joint audit and governance committee meeting 
the following audits and follow up reviews have been completed:

Completed Audits: 5
Full Assurance: 0
Substantial Assurance: 0
Satisfactory Assurance: 3

Page 32

Agenda Item 8



Limited Assurance: 2
Nil Assurance: 0

Audit Area
Assurance 
Rating To

ta
l R

ec
s

H
ig

h 
R

is
k 

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

M
ed

iu
m

 R
is

k

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Lo
w

 R
is

k

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Joint
1. Housing Benefits and CTRS 
19/20 (appendix 1) Limited* 3 1 1 0 0 2 2

2. Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 
19/20 (appendix 1) Limited* 3 2 2 0 0 1 1

3. National Non-Domestic Rates 
19/20 Satisfactory 6 0 0 2 2 4 4

4. Assets of Community Value 
19/20 Satisfactory 2 0 0 2 2 0 0

SODC 
None
VWHDC
5. Moorings 19/20 Satisfactory 8 0 0 6 6 2 2

* Under normal circumstances, Capita would be invited to the JAGC to discuss any limited 
assurance audit reports for Capita service offerings.  However, Capita are not in attendance at 
this virtual meeting. The internal audit manager will take away any questions the committee may 
have for Capita and will obtain responses in due course.

Follow Up Reviews

Audit Area

Initial 
Assurance 
Given N

o.
 o

f R
ec

s

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

Pa
rt

ly
 

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

N
ot

 
Im

pl
em

en
te

d

O
ng

oi
ng

N
o 

lo
ng

er
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le

Joint
None
SODC
None
VWHDC
None

8. Appendix 1 of this report sets out the key points and findings relating to the completed 
audits which have received limited or nil assurance, and satisfactory or full assurance 
reports which members have asked to be presented to committee. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



9. Members of the committee are asked to seek assurance from the internal audit reports 
and/or respective managers that the agreed actions have been or will be undertaken 
where necessary.  

10. A copy of each report has been sent to the appropriate service manager, the section 151 
officer and the relevant member portfolio holder.  In addition, reports are now published 
on the councils’ intranet and limited assurance reports are reviewed by the strategic 
management team.

11. Internal audit continues to carry out a six month follow up on all non-key financial audits 
to establish the implementation status of agreed recommendations.   All key financial 
system recommendations are followed up as part of the annual assurance cycle.

Financial implications

12. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal implications

13. None.

Risks

14. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

VICTORIA DORMAN-SMITH
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 1

APPENDIX 1

1. Housing Benefits and Council Tax Reduction Scheme 19/20

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report details the internal audit review of procedures, controls and the 
management of risk in relation to housing benefits (HB) and council tax 
reduction scheme (CTRS).  The audit has been undertaken in accordance 
with the 2019/2020 audit plan agreed with the audit and governance 
committee of South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White 
Horse District Council (VWHDC).  The audit has a priority score of 21.  The 
audit approach is provided in the audit framework in Appendix 1.

1.2 The following areas have been covered during the course of this review to 
provide assurance that:

 the administration of benefits is up to date, including guidance, 
procedures and training for officers carrying out assessments, so the 
process runs smoothly;

 benefits assessments are correctly calculated, promptly undertaken 
and adequate quality checks take place;

 payments of housing benefits and CTRS are managed appropriately 
with suitable supporting documentation;

 there is a suitable mechanism to identify and recover benefit 
overpayments;

 there is an adequate audit trail to substantiate the figures on the 
housing benefits subsidy claim, the claim is properly completed, and 
the figures included are accurate;

 processes are in place to prevent and detect fraud and for fraud 
referrals to the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP); and

 performance is appropriately recorded, monitored and reported.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Housing benefits and CTRS are means tested schemes to help those on low 
income pay their rent and/or council tax.  The DWP set the rules for the 
housing benefits calculations which is dependent upon income and prescribed 
needs allowances.  CTRS is the councils’ own scheme that utilises the same 
rules as for housing benefits.  The DWP has been introducing Universal 
Credit to replace housing benefits and other state benefits with a single 
payment, at SODC and VWHDC since 2015. 

2.2 Capita continues to provide the HB and CTRS service for the councils and, 
since 1 August 2016 this is delivered within the 5 Councils Partnership (5CP).  
A client team was in place providing HB and CTRS oversight for all of the 
5CP councils at the outset of the 5CP contract.  During November 2018, this 
was scaled down and resources returned to the council to retain oversight 
and perform functions that cannot be outsourced, such as 10% checks on 
assessments.  The councils’ now have an in-house revenues and benefits 
team and, as far as the 5CP contract overall, there is still oversight managed 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 2

through the Client Relationship Director.  The councils’ representative for 
issues affecting all councils in the contract is the Head of Partnerships and 
Insight.

2.3 Housing benefits and CTRS is managed through the Advantage system.  As 
at January 2020 the case reported caseload was:

SODC VWHDC
Housing benefits 5,214 5,246
CTRS 5,375 5,214
Net (some claims are for both housing 
benefits and CTS)

6,181 6,104

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS

3.1 Housing benefits and CTRS was last subject to an internal audit review in 
March 2019 and seven recommendations were raised.  All seven 
recommendations were agreed.  A substantial assurance opinion was issued.

3.2 Of the seven recommendations, five have been implemented and two have 
not been implemented and are restated as part of this review (Recs 1 and 2).

4. 2019/2020 AUDIT ASSURANCE

4.1 Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the 
internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level 
of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.

4.2 One recommendation has been raised and two previous recommendations 
have been restated in this review.  One high risk and two low risk.

5. MAIN FINDINGS

5.1 Procedures

5.1.1 Capita maintain a comprehensive set of 32 training manuals, which also act 
as procedures.  The training manuals describe how to use the Advantage 
system to process housing benefits and CTRS claims.  Capita has a training 
programme ranging from full new starter training to ongoing refresher training.  
There have been no new starters since the previous audit review.  The five 
Councils Partnership (5CP) contract specification sets out service delivery 
requirements including performance indicators.

5.1.2 The councils’ revenues and benefits team maintain oversight of housing 
benefits and CTS service delivery, perform statutory checks and manage 
discretionary housing payments (DHP).  It is noted that the DHP is an award 
to people in receipt of HB or the housing element of Universal Credit to help 
with housing costs where extra financial assistance is needed.  The 
government allocates an annual allocation and sets a maximum that can be 
spent.

5.1.3 An online housing benefits and CTRS application form is made available 
through each council’s website in addition to a PDF version of the application 
form.  Claimants can apply for HB through DWP but that will not be a claim for 
CTRS.  Therefore, claimants are asked to sign a single page stating their 

Page 36

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 3

intention to claim CTRS as well as HB.  It was noted that there is no reference 
to privacy notices or other data protection information on either the housing 
benefits/CTRS or DHP application or the councils’ webpages.

5.1.4 Applicants are encouraged to personally bring sensitive documents 
supporting their claim to the council offices rather than send them via post.  
Should items be received through the post at either the council offices or at 
Capita’s Erith offices they are returned by recorded delivery.  

5.1.5 Area assurance: Substantial
One previous recommendation has been restated as a result of our work (Rec 
1).

5.2 Benefit assessments

5.2.1 All housing benefits and/or CTRS applicants are required to complete an 
application form and provide supporting evidence attached to help prove 
identity and financial status (see 5.1.3).  This information is assessed and 
input onto the Advantage system by Capita’s benefits assessors’ teams.  
Once the required financial information is entered onto Advantage, it 
automatically calculates the housing and CTRS for approved claimants.  The 
calculation of benefits depends upon specific values (benefits parameters) 
which are saved within the benefits system and are used in benefit 
calculations, e.g. personal allowances for those aged 18-25.  Internal audit 
selected a sample of 20 housing benefits uprating’s, from DWP circular 
A8/2018, against housing benefits annual billing parameters and review 
confirmed that the housing benefits parameters were appropriately uploaded 
onto Advantage for both SODC and VWHDC.

5.2.2 In 2019/2020 to date (February 2020), there were 914 (455 SODC and 459 
VWHDC) new housing benefits and/or council tax reduction scheme (CTRS) 
claims.  A random sample of 40 (20 SODC and 20 VWHDC) new housing 
benefit claims and CTRS claims were to ensure that the assessments were 
undertaken in line with the relevant guidelines.  Review confirmed that all 
claim forms were signed accordingly by the claimant, adequate supporting 
documentation was submitted to support the claim, and, Capita assessed and 
responded to all claimants within 14 days of receiving all supporting 
documentation.

5.2.3 Capita provide the councils’ revenues and benefits team with a daily report of 
the claims that have been assessed and a random 10 per cent sample is 
selected to quality check.  Review of quality checks for one week (January 
2020) confirmed that 10% are undertaken by the councils’ revenues and 
benefits team, in line with The Contracting Out Order 2002.

5.2.4 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.3 Housing benefits and CTRS payments

5.3.1 Payments of HB and CTRS are made via BACS or cheque at varying 
frequencies (e.g. fortnightly, four weekly or monthly) depending on the 
claimant.  Payment runs are undertaken on a weekly basis and review of two 
(one SODC and one VWHDC) payment runs confirmed that there is adequate 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 4

segregation of duties in place, as Capita process the payments and the 
councils’ revenues and benefits team review and authorise the payment runs.

5.3.2 A review of the returned cheques process identified that a stop is placed 
when the cheque is not physically held and marked as void.  Payments are 
re-issued where necessary once the stop has been confirmed by the bank.  
Internal audit is satisfied that all returned and replacement cheques are dealt 
with appropriately with a satisfactory audit trail retained in the respective 
SODC and VWHDC benefits systems. 

5.3.3 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.4 Benefits overpayment recovery

5.4.1 Overpayments may occur in cases where changes of circumstances that 
affect the previously awarded payments are not declared to the council in a 
timely manner by the claimant.  At the time of the audit review (February 
2020), there were 4,499 (2,290 SODC and 2,209 VWHDC) outstanding 
overpayment invoices.  A sample of 40 (20 SODC and 20 VWHDC) 
overpayment invoices was selected to ensure recovery action had progressed 
in accordance with the timescales set out in the Corporate Debt Recovery 
Strategy (CDRS).  Review found that 15 (11 SODC and four VWHDC) 
invoices had not had recovery action taken in accordance with the councils’ 
corporate debt recovery strategy.  Of the 40 overpayment invoices selected, 
eight (six SODC and two VWHDC) were referred to the legal team for 
possible prosecution action.  Review of the eight invoices confirmed that 
appropriate legal action was taken to try and recoup the outstanding 
overpayment debt.

5.4.2 Not all debts are recoverable, e.g. low values which are uneconomical to 
pursue, and therefore may need to be written off.  In 2019/2020 to date 
(February 2020), there were 267 (140 SODC and 127 VWHDC) overpayment 
invoices written off.  A sample of 40 (20 SODC and 20 VWHDC) invoices 
were selected and review confirmed that all write offs were:
 reviewed by the councils’ revenues and benefits team;
 authorised appropriately, in line with the councils’ constitution.

5.4.3 Monthly reconciliations of overpayment invoices that have been written off by 
Capita in the Advantage system are performed, once the councils authorise 
the write off.  Review of the reconciliation process identified no issues.

5.4.4 Area assurance: Limited
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area (Rec 
3).

5.5 Housing benefits subsidy claim

5.5.1 The councils claim government subsidy to cover eligible benefit expenditure.  
In 2018/2019, the councils’ external auditors (Ernst and Young) gave both 
SODC and VWHDC an unqualified opinion on their subsidy return.  As Ernst 
and Young review the benefit claims for subsidy purposes as prescribed by 
the Department of Works and Pensions (DWP), no additional checks have 
been made as a part of this review.

5.5.2 Area assurance: Full
Page 38

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 5

No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.6 Prevent and detect fraud

5.6.1 The councils follow the guidance provided in the following policies regarding 
detection and referral of fraud:
 joint anti-fraud and corruption policy;
 joint anti-fraud and corruption policy response plan;
 joint prosecutions and sanctions policy (specifically for benefit fraud). 
Internal audit reviewed each policy and concluded they are adequately 
detailed and provide details of the key decision makers and tools available for 
council prosecutions.

5.6.2 There are three ways the councils’ fraud and investigation team are notified of 
any suspected fraud by:
 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) database;
 Capita benefits assessors; or
 members of the public.
Both councils also publicise the council’s stance against benefit fraud and 
encourage members of the public to report any suspected fraud on their 
respective websites.  Capita benefits assessors refer any potential fraud to 
the fraud and investigation team either via I@W (electronic document and 
records management system) or email for further scrutiny.  It is noted that 
housing benefit fraud is investigated by DWP’s single fraud investigation 
service; however, are routed through the councils’ fraud and investigation 
team and checked for any potential work regarding CTRS prior to passing the 
referral to the DWP.

5.6.3 A data sharing agreement is in place between DWP and the councils in 
Oxfordshire, and any information required is requested by completing a local 
authority information exchange form, if DWP require information, or a single 
fraud investigation referral, if the councils require information from DWP.  
Quarterly liaison meetings also take place between DWP and the Oxfordshire 
councils, with the last one being 14 January 2020.  

5.6.4 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.7 Performance

5.7.1 The councils send their performance statistics (i.e. performance indicators 
that measure the speed and accuracy with which applications are 
administered) obtained from the Advantage system and report these monthly 
to the DWP.  The DWP also publish the councils’ performance statistics (e.g. 
speed of processing) on their website.  From 1 August 2016, Capita provide 
the benefits service under the 5CP contract and there is an output 
specification, key performance indicators (KPI’s) and performance indicators 
(PI) for the services within the contract.  These targets are a part of managing 
the contract with Capita who provide benefits services to both SODC and 
VWHDC.  At the time of audit (March 2020), the most recent report was for 
January 2020.  Review of the performance report found that there is no 
explanation for any variances occurred.

5.7.2 Area assurance: Substantial

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 6

One previous recommendation has been restated as a result of our work (Rec 
2).

6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

6.1 Internal audit would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff involved for 
their assistance with the audit.

7. CATEGORISATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To assist management in using our reports, we have categorised our 
recommendations according to their level of priority as follows:

High risk Fundamental control weakness for 
senior management action

Rec 3

Medium risk Other control weakness for local 
management action

Low risk Recommended best practice to 
improve overall control

Recs 1 and 2

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

PREVIOUS RECOMMENDATIONS RESTATED

1. GDPR compliance (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Application forms and website information for 
DHP, housing benefits and CTRS contain, or 
link to, GDPR information and privacy notices.

Findings
There is no reference to data protection privacy 
notices or the councils’ data protection 
information on the following:
 DHP application form;
 Council webpages for applying for DHP or 

housing benefits and CTRS

Risk
Non-compliance to GDPR legislation, which 
could result in fines and reputational damage.

Review and update housing 
benefits/CTRS and DHP 
information on the councils’ 
webpages and on application 
forms to include GDPR 
information, e.g. privacy 
notices.

Revenues and 
Benefits Manager

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The requirements are confusing.  Although there are general statements on the 
websites the exact requirements are being determined by the 5C’s forum.  As 
soon as requirements are specified, I will ensure they are implemented.

Management response: Revenues and Benefits Manager

30 September 2020

2. Performance reports (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility

Page 40

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 7

Best Practice
The councils receive regular reports on all 
agreed performance indicators with 
explanations of variances.

Findings
A monthly spreadsheet is provided by Capita 
recording performance for housing benefit and 
CTRS as well as council tax and NNDR.  
However, review of January 2020 spreadsheet 
found that explanation of variances is not 
recorded.

Risk
Areas of underperformance may remain 
unidentified and uncorrected.

Monthly performance reports 
should include explanations of 
variances and include all 
required KPI and PI figures.

Revenues and 
Benefits Manager

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
Unfortunately, our councils are now part of the 5C’s arrangements, and the 
performance reports are produced in accordance with those governing 
requirements.  Saying that, our councils have previously agreed a shortened 
bespoke report similar to what we received in the past.  This would provide 
commentary on performance and I will ask for it to be produced again (as it has 
lapsed).  It should be noted however that commentary is provided our councils 
Board Report in respect of collections and benefit processing.

Management response: Revenues and Benefits Manager

30 September 2020

BENEFITS OVERPAYMENT RECOVERY

3. Recovery process (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All overpayments are progressed through the 
recovery process in a timely and efficient 
manner.

Findings
In 2019/2020 to date (January 2020), there 
were 4,499 (2,290 SODC & 2,209 VWHDC) 
outstanding housing benefits overpayment 
invoices totalling £5,082,457 (£2,622,227.97 
SODC & £2,460,229 VWHDC).

A sample of 40 (20 SODC and 20 VWHDC) 
outstanding housing benefits overpayment 
invoices was selected and review found that 15 
(11 SODC and four VWHDC) overpayment 
invoices had not been progressed through the 
recovery process efficiently and in line with the 
corporate debt recovery strategy.

Risk
If overpayments are not reviewed and 
progressed through the recovery process in a 
timely and efficient manner, it may prove 
difficult to recover the overpayment resulting in 
writing off the account.

A reminder should be sent to 
Capita benefits team to 
attempt to recover 
overpayments in line with the 
councils’ corporate debt 
recovery strategy.

Revenues and 
Benefits Manager

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 8

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendation is Agreed
It is fair to say that the from the commencement of the 5C’s contract, it was 
immediately evident that the new 5C’s overpayment recovery function was in 
need of a review of resourcing and processes as it was not conducive for the 
“maximisation of overpayment income” as specified in the contract.

However, in the last year, as far as South and Vale is concerned, we have seen 
a significant improvement in recovery rate performance, which has been 
confirmed by DWP statistics.  We have collected more than we have raised, 
which is probably down to a combination of increased recovery action by the 
team (a combination of the new and committed Capita team and our own expert 
legal services and we use every recovery tool allowed) and fewer overpayments 
being created as Universal Credit kicks in.

We need to sustain and even try to improve on this, so in the next few months 
(COVID allowing) we will consider the best way forward, including an 
independent review of the caseload.

Management response: Revenues and Benefits Manager

31 October 2020

Page 42

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 9

2. Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 19/20
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report details the internal audit review of procedures, controls and the 
management of risk in relation to pro-active anti-fraud review.  The audit has 
been undertaken in accordance with the 2019/2020 audit plan agreed with the 
audit and governance committee of South Oxfordshire District Council 
(SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council (VWHDC).  The audit has a 
priority score of 21.  The audit approach is provided in the audit framework in 
Appendix 1.

1.2 The following areas have been covered during the course of this review to 
provide assurance that:
 anti-fraud and corruption controls with the councils’ systems and 

associated functions are sufficient to identify and reject false 
transactions/exceptions/data entry errors;

 upon a data entry being identified as inappropriate/unauthorised, 
management review the data and the appropriate action is taken within 
the system;

 any remedial action is taken promptly by management, clearly 
documented and where appropriate reported to the Section 151 Officer 
and internal audit;

 management are taking action to enhance the anti-fraud and corruption 
controls within the system where ongoing issues are identified.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The councils have a joint anti-fraud, bribery and corruption policy, which was 
approved by SODC’s Cabinet member on 8 February 2010 and VWHDC’s 
Cabinet member on 16 March 2010.  The policy was last reviewed and 
updated in November 2019.  This is supported by an anti-fraud and corruption 
response plan covering how the councils should respond to suspected or 
apparent irregularities, fraud or corruption.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS

3.1 Pro-active anti-fraud was last subject to an internal audit review in March 
2019 and three recommendations were raised.  The recommendations were 
all agreed and a limited assurance opinion was issued.

3.2 One recommendation has been implemented.  Two recommendations have 
not been implemented and are restated as part of this review.

4. 2019/2020 AUDIT ASSURANCE

4.1 Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the 
internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level 
of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 10

4.2 Three recommendations have been raised in this review. Two high risk and 
one low risk.

5. MAIN FINDINGS

5.1 Overall

5.1.1 A set of eight tests were agreed and undertaken in order to check that adequate 
controls are in place to identify and appropriately manage exposures to 
fraudulent activities across key financial and IT processes.  The tests were 
discussed and approved by the internal audit manager and interim head of 
finance (s151 officer), prior to their initiation.

5.1.2 The following eight tests were instigated:
Test 1: Submission of two (one SODC and one VWHDC) invoices for two 

fictitious suppliers, for payment through the Agresso accounts 
payable (AP) module. 

Test 2: Submission of two (one SODC and one VWHDC) fraudulent invoices 
for two existing suppliers, for payment through the Agresso accounts 
payable (AP) module.

Test 3: Submission of two (one SODC and one VWHDC) duplicate invoices 
for two existing suppliers, for payment through the Agresso accounts 
payable (AP) module.

Test 4: Fictitious request to change an existing supplier’s bank details.
Test 5: Submission of a dummy member expense claim through MyView. 
Test 6: Submission of a dummy officer expense claim through MyView.
Test 7: A request to change an officer’s bank details within MyView.
Test 8: A dummy request for a new IT user.

5.1.3 From the standard eight tests undertaken, internal audit established control 
weaknesses for two tests, where changes were applied as per the false 
requests.  Six tests were appropriately checked and identified as suspicious and 
were not fulfilled.  

5.2 Test 1: Fictitious supplier invoice

5.2.1 Two (one SODC and one VWHDC) dummy invoices for two fictitious businesses 
were submitted directly to Capita.  During the review, the Agresso accounts 
payable (AP) module was monitored to check if any actions had been taken.  
After five months of monitoring, no details were found on Agresso regarding 
these fictitious businesses.  On a weekly basis, the councils’ revenues and 
benefits team receive a returned invoices spreadsheet.  Review of the 
spreadsheet confirmed that the VWHDC invoice had been reported, in 
accordance with agreed procedures; however, the SODC invoice was not 
recorded.  Although internal audit is satisfied that Capita did not register the 
dummy invoices onto the Agresso AP module, hence no payments were made, 
there is no formal audit trail to support the actions taken by Capita upon receipt 
of the SODC audit request. 

5.2.2 Area assurance: Full
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area (Rec 
3).

Page 44

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 11

5.3 Test 2: Dummy invoice for an existing supplier

5.3.1 Two (one SODC and one VWHDC) dummy invoices for two existing suppliers 
were submitted directly to Capita.  Monitoring of the Agresso AP module found 
that the VWHDC invoice had been registered as “parked”, awaiting authorisation 
for payment by the requesting service area, and the invoice had also been 
recorded on the parked invoices spreadsheet.  The SODC invoice had not been 
found on Agresso, or the returned invoice spreadsheet.  Although internal audit 
is satisfied that the dummy invoices had not been paid, there is no formal audit 
trail to support the actions taken by Capita upon receipt of the SODC audit 
request. 

5.3.2 Area assurance: Full
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area (Rec 
3).

5.4 Test 3: Duplicate invoice for an existing supplier

5.4.1 Two (one SODC and one VWHDC) duplicate invoices were submitted directly to 
Capita, with changes having been made to the bank details and invoice 
amounts.  During the review, the Agresso AP module was monitored to check if 
any actions had been taken.  Following two months of monitoring, the bank 
account details for both suppliers remained unchanged within Agresso.  In 
addition, both invoices had not been recorded on the weekly returned invoice 
spreadsheet.  Internal audit is satisfied that Capita did not action the requested 
bank account changes in Agresso; however, there is no formal audit trail to 
support the actions taken by Capita upon receipt of the audit requests. 

5.4.2 Area assurance: Full
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area (Rec 
3).

5.5 Test 4: Dummy request to change existing supplier bank details

5.5.1 A request was submitted to Capita to change the bank details of an existing 
VWHDC supplier.  Regular reviews of the supplier details on the Agresso AP 
module were undertaken.  Following two months of monitoring, the supplier bank 
account details remained unchanged within Agresso.  Internal audit is satisfied 
that Capita did not action the requested change of bank details within Agresso; 
however, there is no formal audit trail to support the actions taken by Capita 
upon receipt of the audit request.

5.5.2 Area assurance: Full
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area (Rec 
3).

5.6 Test 5: Dummy member expense claim

5.6.1 The constitution includes a section covering the members’ allowances scheme, 
which states that expense claims will not be paid unless claiming for official 
business.  In this test, a member agreed to submit an expense claim within 
MyView, which included two false expense items for attendance at a meeting.  
Following submission of the dummy claim, the false expense items were queried 
with the member, by the democratic services team.  Internal audit is satisfied 

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 12

that appropriate checks were carried out on the false expense items and were 
therefore not approved for payment.

5.6.2 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.7 Test 6: Dummy officer expense claim

5.7.1 A non-finance officer agreed to submit an expense claim within MyView, which 
included an inflated expense item for business mileage.  Following submission 
of the dummy claim, the inflated expense item was queried with the officer, by 
their line manager.  Internal audit is satisfied that appropriate checks were 
carried out on the inflated expense item and was therefore not approved for 
payment. 

5.7.2 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.8 Test 7: Dummy request to change an officer’s bank details

5.8.1 A request to change an officer’s bank details was submitted by internal audit to 
Capita payroll via AskHR.  During the test, the officer’s MyView account was 
monitored to establish if the bank details had been changed.  In addition, internal 
audit made enquiries of the officer to confirm whether Capita had validated the 
request with the officer, prior to processing.  Based on our review, we confirmed 
that the officer’s bank details had been changed on the payroll system without 
validation. 

5.8.2 Area assurance: Limited
One previous recommendation has been restated as a result of our work in this 
area (Rec 1).

5.9 Test 8: Dummy request for a new IT user

5.9.1 A request for network, email, and telephone access was submitted by the 
auditor to Capita IT helpdesk for a fictitious user.  Capita IT helpdesk actioned 
the request without validating the legitimacy of the request with the authorisation 
matrix provided by the council, or the auditor’s service manager and/or head of 
service.  

5.9.2 Area assurance: Limited
One previous recommendation has been restated as a result of our work in this 
area (Rec 2).

6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

6.1 Internal audit would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff involved for 
their assistance with the audit.

Page 46

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 13

7. CATEGORISATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To assist management in using our reports, we have categorised our 
recommendations according to their level of priority as follows:

High risk Fundamental control weakness for 
senior management action

Recs 1 and 2

Medium risk Other control weakness for local 
management action

Low risk Recommended best practice to 
improve overall control

Rec 3

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

PREVIOUS RECOMMENDATIONS RESTATED

1. Test 7: Employee bank account change (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Employee change requests (e.g. personal 
information, bank details) are validated 
with the individual prior to processing. 

Findings
A request to change another officer’s bank 
details was submitted by the auditor to 
Capita payroll, via AskHR.  During the 
test, the officer’s payroll system was 
reviewed to establish if their bank details 
were changed, and the officer was asked 
if they were notified of the change.  The 
bank details were changed on the payroll 
system without validating the request with 
the officer concerned.

Risk
If requests to change employee personal 
details are not verified with the individual, 
there is a risk of false requests being 
undertaken fraudulently.

a) Capita HR should remind 
staff to ensure that all 
requests to change personal 
details on behalf of another 
individual are validated with 
the appropriate officer, prior 
to completion.

b) Capita HR should remind 
staff that if a request to 
change details is received 
from another source which 
cannot be validated, this 
should be reported 
immediately to the council’s 
HR team and Internal Audit.

Strategic HR Manager

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendation is Agreed

The Payroll service transferred back to being an in-house provision from 1 
April 2020. Therefore, the above references to the Capita service are now 
obsolete. With immediate effect, the team will check any requests to change 
personal details with the individual if received from a third party.

Management response: Strategic HR Manager

31 August 2020

2. Test 8: New user access set up (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice a) Remind Capita IT helpdesk 

of the requirement to verify 
Head of IT Service – 5 
Councils (Capita)

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 14

Requests to set-up a new user onto the IT 
network are validated with the 
authorisation matrix, relevant service 
manager and/or head of service, prior to 
authorisation and processing.

Findings
A request was submitted by the auditor via 
the IT helpdesk for network, email, and 
telephone access for a fictitious, new 
starter.  

Capita IT helpdesk actioned the request 
without validating the legitimacy of the 
officer request with the authorisation 
matrix, service manager or head of 
service.  

Risk
Non-authorised personnel may have the 
opportunity to access council systems 
surreptitiously, with a view to disrupt, de-
fraud or disable systems, functions and 
associated information. This could lead to 
a breach of sensitive data and subsequent 
reputational damage.

requests for IT changes or 
new starter set-up with the 
authorisation matrix 
provided by the council, 
and/or the appropriate 
service manager.

b) Review and update the 
authorisation matrix 
provided by the councils to 
Capita.

c) Capita to introduce a 
process to update the 
authorisation matrix upon 
receipt of any verified user 
change of details request.

d) Remind Capita IT helpdesk 
of the requirement to report 
any unauthorised requests 
to the councils’ IT Manager, 
the officer’s line manager 
and internal audit.

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendations a), b) c) & d) are Agreed 

a) Email reminder sent to the service desk team lead. Follow call will be 
conducted to ensure receipt and understanding. 

b) The councils IT manager has provided an updated authorisation list in 
July 2020.

c) Suggested that the authority send updated lists directly to the service 
desk and a REQ record is created to confirm receipt.

d) The service desk have been reminded to escalate where they are not 
100% certain if a request is legitimate. This will be covered in the session 
mentioned in point a).

Management response: Chris Milburn, Head of IT Service - 5 Councils

31 August 2020

2019/2020 RECOMMENDATIONS

3. Tests 1-4: Reporting of supplier invoicing anomalies (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
A record of all invoicing anomalies is 
maintained by Capita and provided to the 
councils’ finance team.

Findings
As part of tests 1 to 3, six fictitious 
invoices were submitted to Capita by 
internal audit for payment through the 
Agresso accounts payable (AP) module.  
In addition, for test 4 a fictitious request to 
change an existing supplier’s bank details 
were made.
For test 2, Capita had entered the fictious 
invoice onto the Agresso system under a 

a) Capita to continue to 
provide regular information 
to support financial reporting 
to the council’s revenue and 
benefits officer; ensuring a 
clear audit trail is maintained 
for fraudulent requests for 
payment.  
 

b) Perform a review of the 
VWHDC request submitted 
as part of test 2 and take 
corrective actions within 
Agresso, as required. 

Business Partner for 5 
Councils Exchequer 
(Capita)

Page 48

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 2019/2020 15

parked status, awaiting further review by 
the service team. 

Although internal audit validated that the 
requests had not been processed within 
Agresso and no payments were made, 
there was no formal audit trail to support 
the actions taken by Capita upon receipt 
of the audit requests.  Internal audit 
reviewed the parked and returned invoice 
listings; however, four of the six fictitious 
audit invoices were not found.

Risk
Lack of formal audit trail to record fictitious 
or fraudulent requests for payment may 
limit management’s ability to validate 
whether fraud controls are operating 
effectively.  Furthermore, management 
may be unable to analyse the nature and 
frequency of fraudulent requests. 

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Non-PO invoices must have a department code before being sent to Council 
Officers for approval.  PO invoices must be goods receipted, if not they are 
parked, and a notification is sent to council officers.

Without a department code or PO number, invoices will be rejected and sent 
back to the supplier with a letter explaining the cause.  
This is then documented on the rejected list and circulated.  Capita will 
ensure the rejected list is comprehensive.

A weekly “Status A” report that captures outstanding transactions is sent to 
the councils and includes all parked invoices for officer review.

Capita will continue to provide information, though council officers are 
required to be vigilant for identifying potentially fraudulent transactions.  This 
will continue to be communicated to Officers during Agresso training sessions

Management response: Fiona Amor, Capita Business Partner for 5 Councils 
Exchequer and Ben Watson, Finance Systems and Procurement Team 
Leader

1 September 2020

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



Joint Internal Audit

            

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud 2019/2020 16

APPENDIX 1 - TESTING MATRIX

  Test 1 Test 2 Test 3 Test 4 Test 5 Test 6 Test 7 Test 8

System or 
Application:

Agresso/Capita Agresso/Capita Agresso/Capita Agresso/Capita MyView MyView MyView/Capita IT Network/Capita

Process: Accounts Payable Accounts Payable Accounts Payable Accounts Payable Legal Monitoring Online Expenses IT/HR IT Security

Area: Finance Finance Finance Finance Legal/Payroll HR/Payroll HR/Payroll IT

A
nt

i-F
ra

ud
 T

es
ts

Specific Test  
(including any 
associated 
documentation, date 
of entry and initial 
contacts for the 
transactions)

a) To submit to Capita, a 
dummy invoice for a new 
company to generate a 
fraudulent payment.

b) If payment completed 
(or partially), request to 
delete supplier and check 
for audit trail on transaction 
history.

a) To submit to Capita, a 
dummy invoice for a 
slight variant on an 
existing supplier with 
different address and 
bank details.

b) If payment completed 
(or partially), request to 
delete supplier and 
check for audit trail on 
transaction history.

a) To submit to Capita, a 
duplicate invoice on a 
current supplier/invoice.

b) If payment completed 
(or partially), request to 
delete supplier and 
check for audit trail on 
transaction history.

To submit to Capita, a 
dummy paper request to 
change supplier's bank 
details.

As part of the monthly 
member's expense 
claim process, internal 
audit is to ask a 
councillor, to submit a 
fraudulent expense 
claim (one or two 
lines) for travel and/or 
subsistence. The 
claim is to be in line 
with mileage rates but 
for a ghost 
meeting/event.

A non-finance officer to 
submit claim for inflated 
mileage.

To submit a request 
for a change of 
another officer's bank 
details.

Ensure processing 
well before pay run.

Check for:
a) HR check and 
approval
b) Payroll check.

To submit a request 
to Capita IT for setup 
of a fictitious new 
user.

Background and Contacts
What are the known/ 
possible process 
controls for 
highlighting 
fraudulent activities 
in this area?

AP Procedure AP Procedure AP Procedure AP Procedure Constitution.
Democratic Services 
approval within 
MyView.

Line manager approval 
within MyView.

Capita HR approval. Capita IT approval, in 
line with the authority 
matrix.

Who are the key 
contacts and data 
administrators for 
the process and 
system?

Janice Case, Accounts 
Payable Manager (Capita) 
Emma Foy, Head of 
Finance (Capita) 
Matt Goodwin, Senior 
Client Executive / Deputy 
Client Relationship Director
(5Cs Partnership Client 
Relationship Team)

Janice Case, Accounts 
Payable Manager 
(Capita) 
Emma Foy, Head of 
Finance (Capita) 
Matt Goodwin, Senior 
Client Executive / 
Deputy Client 
Relationship Director
(5Cs Partnership Client 
Relationship Team)

Janice Case, Accounts 
Payable Manager 
(Capita) 
Emma Foy, Head of 
Finance (Capita) 
Matt Goodwin, Senior 
Client Executive / 
Deputy Client 
Relationship Director
(5Cs Partnership Client 
Relationship Team)

Janice Case, Accounts 
Payable Manager 
(Capita) 
Emma Foy, Head of 
Finance (Capita) 
Matt Goodwin, Senior 
Client Executive / 
Deputy Client 
Relationship Director
(5Cs Partnership Client 
Relationship Team)

Margaret Reed, Head 
of Legal and 
Democratic Services

Matt Goodwin, Senior 
Client Executive / Deputy 
Client Relationship 
Director
(5Cs Partnership Client 
Relationship Team)
David Fairall, Strategic 
HR Manager 

Matt Goodwin, 
Senior Client 
Executive / Deputy 
Client Relationship 
Director
(5Cs Partnership 
Client Relationship 
Team)
David Fairall, 
Strategic HR 
Manager 

Chris Milburn, IT 
Operations Manager 
(Capita)
Simone Morris, 
Account Director 
(5CP)
Lee Brown, IT 
Application Manager

K
ey

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Who has been 
made aware of the 
testing being 
performed?

Simon Hewings, Interim 
Head of Finance

Simon Hewings, Interim 
Head of Finance

Simon Hewings, Interim 
Head of Finance

Simon Hewings, Interim 
Head of Finance

Simon Hewings, 
Interim Head of 
Finance

Simon Hewings, Interim 
Head of Finance

Simon Hewings, 
Interim Head of 
Finance

Simon Hewings, 
Interim Head of 
Finance

Fi
n Initial Test Results

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 8



Joint Internal Audit

            

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud 2019/2020 17

Define the process 
controls and/or point 
in the process that 
the fraudulent 
transaction was 
identified and 
rejected or not 
pursued?

Internal audit created two 
fictitious invoices that were 
posted to Capita on 
23/09/19 for SODC and 
16/09/19 for VWHDC.  
Regular checks were made 
to ensure it was not 
registered on Agresso.

Internal audit used two 
images of an existing 
invoices to make slight 
changes and posted the 
invoices to Capita on 
02/11/19 for SODC and 
09/11/19 for VWHDC.  
Regular checks were 
made to ensure it was 
not registered on 
Agresso.

Internal audit submitted 
two duplicate invoices to 
Capita on 12/12/19 for 
SODC and 27/12/19 for 
VWHDC.  Regular 
checks were made to 
ensure it was not 
registered in the 
Agresso accounts 
payable system.

A letter was sent to 
Capita on 03/01/20 
pretending to be an 
existing supplier 
requesting to change 
their bank details.  
Regular checks were 
made to ensure it was 
not registered in the 
Agresso accounts 
payable system.

A member of the 
council submitted a 
fraudulent expense 
claim which included 
two expense items for 
attendance at 
meetings they do not 
attend or sit on.

A non-finance officer 
submitted an inflated 
mileage expense claim.

Internal audit 
submitted a request 
via AskHR, to 
change another 
council officer's bank 
details.  The request 
went to Capita HR on 
21/02/20.

Internal audit 
submitted a request 
on 16/01/20 through 
Capita IT helpdesk to 
create a fictitious 
new audit user for 
email and network 
access.

Management Actions

Management review 
of transaction and 
actions taken?

As at 2 March 2020, the 
invoices were not 
registered on Agresso. A 
review of the returned 
invoices spreadsheet found 
that one of the invoices 
were not reported as 
returned.

As at 2 March 2020, the 
VWHDC invoice had 
been registered as 
"parked "on the system, 
awaiting service area 
review. The SODC 
invoice was not 
registered on the 
system. A review of the 
returned invoices 
spreadsheet found that 
one of the invoices were 
not reported as returned.

As at 2 March 2020, the 
invoices were not 
registered on the 
system. A review of the 
returned invoices 
spreadsheet found that 
the invoices were not 
reported as returned.

The change request was 
not processed.  
However, the letter 
supporting the request 
was not reported to the 
councils' finance 
department.

Democratic services 
queried the expense 
claim with the council 
member.  The bogus 
expense items were 
removed prior to 
processing the 
legitimate expense 
payment.

The bogus expense 
claim was rejected by 
the officer's line 
manager.

Capita HR notified 
internal audit that the 
bank details had 
been changed on 
MyView, without 
validating the request 
with the officer.

Capita IT helpdesk 
set up the fictitious 
new user on the 
system, without 
verification from the 
relevant officer, per 
the authorisation 
matrix.

Remedial action 
taken by 
management, 
documented and 
reported 
accordingly?

The invoices were not 
registered on Agresso; 
however, the invoices were 
not consistently recorded 
as returned on the reports 
sent to the revenues and 
benefits team.  

The invoice that was 
"parked" on Agresso to 
be resolved. However, 
the invoices were not 
consistently recorded as 
returned on the reports 
sent to the revenues and 
benefits team.  

The invoices were not 
registered on Agresso; 
however, the invoices 
were not consistently 
recorded as returned on 
the reports sent to the 
revenues and benefits 
team.  

Capita did not change 
the suppliers' bank 
details; however, the 
request was not 
reported to the revenues 
and benefits team.  

Democratic services 
queried the bogus 
expense claim with 
the officer.  Therefore, 
no remedial action 
was required.

The line manager 
queried and rejected the 
expense claim with the 
officer.  Therefore, no 
remedial action was 
required.

Capita HR changed 
back the officer's 
bank account details 
within MyView, upon 
notification from 
internal audit.

Capita IT helpdesk 
cancelled the new 
user request upon 
notification from 
internal audit.

Any enhancement 
actions to the 
control 
mechanisms?

Capita to continue to 
provide regular information 
to support financial 
reporting to the council’s 
revenue and benefits 
officer; ensuring a clear 
audit trail is maintained for 
fraudulent requests for 
payment.  
(See Rec 3)

Capita to continue to 
provide regular 
information to support 
financial reporting to the 
council’s revenue and 
benefits officer; ensuring 
a clear audit trail is 
maintained for 
fraudulent requests for 
payment.  
(See Rec 3)

Capita to continue to 
provide regular 
information to support 
financial reporting to the 
council’s revenue and 
benefits officer; ensuring 
a clear audit trail is 
maintained for 
fraudulent requests for 
payment.  
(See Rec 3)

Capita to continue to 
provide regular 
information to support 
financial reporting to the 
council’s revenue and 
benefits officer; ensuring 
a clear audit trail is 
maintained for 
fraudulent requests for 
payment.  
(See Rec 3)

None Required None Required a) Capita HR should 
remind staff to 
ensure that all 
requests to change 
personal details on 
behalf of another 
individual are 
validated with the 
appropriate officer, 
prior to completion.
b) Capita HR should 
remind staff that if a 
request to change 
details is received 
from another source 
which cannot be 
validated, this should 
be reported 
immediately to the 
council’s HR team 
and Internal Audit.

a) Remind Capita IT 
helpdesk of the 
requirement to verify 
requests for IT 
changes or new 
starter set-up with 
the authorisation 
matrix and/or officer’s 
line manager.
b) Review and 
update the 
authorisation matrix 
provided by the 
councils to Capita.
c) Remind Capita IT 
helpdesk of the 
requirement to report 
any unauthorised 
requests to the 
councils’ IT Manager, 
the officer’s line 
manager and internal 
audit.

di n gsConclusion Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass Fail (See Rec 1) Fail (See Rec 2)

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 8



Joint Internal Audit

            

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Internal Audit Manager
Author: Victoria Dorman-Smith
Telephone: 01235 422430
Textphone: 18001 01235 422430
E-mail: victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins
Tel: 01189 722565
E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford
Telephone: 01235 772134
E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 22 September 2020

Internal audit management report 
quarters one and two 2020/21
 
Recommendation(s)

(a) That members note the content of the report.

Purpose of report

1. The purpose of this report is:

 to report on management issues within internal audit;

 to summarise the progress against the 2020/21 audit plan up to 11 
September 2020; and

 to summarise the priorities for quarter three 2020/21.

Page 53

Agenda Item 9

mailto:victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk


2. The contact officer for this report is Victoria Dorman-Smith, Internal Audit 
Manager for South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White 
Horse District Council (VWHDC), telephone 01235 422430.

Strategic objectives

3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in 
meeting their strategic objectives.

Background 

4. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), effective from 1 April 2017, 
state that the head of internal audit should prepare a risk-based audit plan, 
which should outline the assignments to be carried out and the resource 
requirements to deliver the plan, for audit committee approval. The Joint Audit 
and Governance Committee approved the 2019/20 annual internal audit plan 
on 25 March 2019.

5. The PSIAS also states that the head of internal audit must periodically report on 
performance relative to the plan.  

Management issues

6. During quarters one and two, the internal audit team undertook the following 
work, in support of the councils’ response to Covid-19:

 Business Grants: the three internal auditors assisted the business rates 
team in the processing of the government Covid-19 business grants, 
during the months of April and May 2020.

 Discretionary Grant Fund: in June and July 2020, the internal auditors 
assisted the economic development team in carrying out validation 
checks on evidence supporting the discretionary grant applications.

Progress against the 2020/21 audit plan

7. Progress against the approved audit plan for 2020/21 has been calculated for 
the quarter and year to date and is summarised in appendix 1 attached.  A 
summary of the progress against the 2019/20 audit plan is summarised in 
appendix 2.

8. Performance figures to date are as follows:

Actuals by Quarter

Target YTD
Q1 

20/21
Q2 

20/21
Q3 

20/21
Q4 

20/21
Chargeable
(identifiable client and/or specific 
IA deliverable)

76% 40% 0% 31% - -

Non-Chargeable 
(corporate, not IA deliverable)

7% 46% 83% 42% - -

Planned Lost
(i.e. leave)

14.5% 11% 12% 23% - -

Unplanned Lost
(i.e. study, sickness)

2.5% 3% 5% 4% - -

Page 54

Agenda Item 9



9. As at 11 September 2020 the status of audit work against the 2020/21 audit 
plan is as follows:

Planned 
Strategic, operational and financial assurance work known and approved by the 
joint audit and governance committee.  

2020/21 Planned Completed Draft Out
In 

progress
To 

commence
Total 14 0 0 4 10
Joint 14 0 0 4 10
SODC 0 0 0 0 0
VWHDC 0 0 0 0 0

Ad-hoc
Unplanned project work based on agreed terms of reference with the audit 
manager (i.e. implementation of new systems) and responsive work issued and 
agreed by the section 151 officer, members or senior management team (i.e. 
investigations).

2020/21 Requested Complete Draft
In 

progress
To 

commence
Ad-hoc 0 0 0 0 0
Joint 0 0 0 0 0
SODC 0 0 0 0 0
VWHDC 0 0 0 0 0

Follow up 
Work undertaken to ensure that agreed recommendations have been 
implemented.  The number of follow-up audits is a rolling number, all internal 
audit reports are followed up after six months unless the area is subject to an 
annual review.

2020/21 Requested Complete Draft
In 

progress
To 

commence
Follow up 0 0 0 3 0
Joint 0 0 0 2 0
SODC 0 0 0 1 0
VWHDC 0 0 0 0 0

Priorities for 2020/21 quarter three (October 2020 - December 2020)

10. The priorities for quarter one are to:
 
 Finalise the remaining six 2019/20 planned audits;
 Continue the planned audit work for 2020/21, in line with the audit plan;
 Review and update internal audit methodology (e.g. procedures and 

templates for internal use).

11. Remaining 2020/21 planned audit work can be reviewed in appendix 3. 

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



Financial implications

12. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal implications

13. None.

Risk implications

14. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

VICTORIA DORMAN-SMITH
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER

Page 56

Agenda Item 9



PLANNED AUDIT 2020/2021 APPENDIX 1

Audit Area Status

A
ud

it
A

llo
ca

tio
n

To
ta

l D
ay

s
U

se
d

Exception Issues Audit Opinion

N
o.

 o
f R

ec
s

H
ig

h

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

M
ed

iu
m

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Lo
w

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

To
ta

l N
ot

A
gr

ee
d

As at 11 September 2020

KEY FINANCIAL AUDITS
Capital Management & Accounting (16) To Commence Q3
SODC 8 0.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 8 0.0 Not yet applicable
Council Tax (20) In Progress
SODC 16 0.5 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 16 0.5 Not yet applicable
General Ledger (19) To Commence Q3
SODC 7.5 0.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 7.5 0.0 Not yet applicable
Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction Scheme (20) To Commence Q3
SODC 17 0.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 17 0.0 Not yet applicable
National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR)
(incl. COVID-19 Business Grants) (22)

To Commence Q3

SODC 15 0.5 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 15 0.5 Not yet applicable
Payroll (incl. Travel & Subsistence, Pension
Administration, Annual Leave Payments) (22)

To Commence Q3

SODC 20 0.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 20 0.0 Not yet applicable
Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review (19) To Commence Q3
SODC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable
Treasury Management (18) To Commence Q3
SODC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable
PLANNED ASSURANCE AUDITS
Building Control (15) To Commence Q4
SODC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable
COVID-19 Response Governance Review In Progress
SODC 20 3.5 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 20 3.5 Not yet applicable
Health & Safety (17) To Commence Q3
SODC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable
HR Management & Reporting
(incl. Annual Leave Calculation) (13)

In Progress

SODC 14 0.5 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 14 0.5 Not yet applicable
PLANNED CONSULTANCY AUDITS
Grounds & Parks Maintenance In-Sourcing In Progress
SODC 10 1.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 10 1.0 Not yet applicable
Corporate Landlord Approach To Commence Q4
SODC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 10 0.0 Not yet applicable
JOINT PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 355 12.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Completed 0 Full 0
Draft Out 0 Substantial 0

In Progress 4 Satisfactory 0
To Commence 10 Limited 0

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2020/21 APPENDIX 1

Audit Area
Total Days

Used Original Audit Opinion Issued
Total No. of

Recs Agreed Im
pl

em
en

te
d

Pa
rt

ly
Im

pl
em

en
te

d

N
ot

 Im
pl

em
en

te
d

O
ng

oi
ng

N
o 

Lo
ng

er
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

N
ew

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n

s

JOINT
None

SODC
None

VWHDC
None

IA FOLLOW UP DURING 20/21 TOTALS #REF! #REF! #REF
!

#REF
!

#REF
!

#REF
!

#REF
!

#REF
!

JOINT FOLLOW UP TOTALS #REF! #REF! #REF
!

#REF
!

#REF
!

#REF
!

#REF
!

#REF
!

SODC FOLLOW UP TOTALS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
VWHDC FOLLOW UP TOTALS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Page 58

Agenda Item 9



UNPLANNED WORK 2020/21 APPENDIX 1

CONSULTANCY
Description Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By
JOINT
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

SODC
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

VWHDC
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

CONTINGENCY
Description Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By
JOINT
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

SODC
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

VWHDC
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT
System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By
JOINT
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

SODC
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

VWHDC
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

AD-HOC ADVICE 
System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By
JOINT
General audit advice to service teams (incl
chasing for information) N/A N/A 3 N/A

SODC
General audit advice to service teams (incl
chasing for information) N/A N/A 1.5 N/A

VWHDC
General audit advice to service teams (incl
chasing for information) N/A N/A 1.5 N/A

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



PLANNED AUDIT 2019/2020 APPENDIX 1

Audit Area Status

A
ud

it
A

llo
ca

tio
n

To
ta

l D
ay

s
U

se
d

Exception Issues Audit Opinion

N
o.

 o
f R

ec
s

H
ig

h

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

M
ed

iu
m

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Lo
w

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

To
ta

l N
ot

A
gr

ee
d

As at 11 September 2020

JOINT
Budgetary Control (16) Completed
SODC 5 3.0 Satisfactory 3 0 0 2 2 1 1 0
VWHDC 5 3.0 Satisfactory 3 0 0 2 2 1 1 0
Capital Management and Accounting (22) Completed
SODC 7 10.0 Limited 10 1 1 8 8 1 1 0
VWHDC 7 9.5 Limited 10 1 1 8 8 1 1 0
Council Tax (24) Completed
SODC 10 20.5 Limited 12 2 2 5 5 5 5 0
VWHDC 10 20.5 Limited 12 2 2 5 5 5 5 0
Creditor Payments (26) Completed
SODC 10 10.0 Satisfactory 5 0 0 3 3 2 2 0
VWHDC 10 10.0 Satisfactory 5 0 0 3 3 2 2 0
Data Protection / GDPR (20) Draft Out
SODC 7 7.5 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 7 7.5 Not yet applicable
Development Management (20) Completed
SODC 10 6.0 Satisfactory 8 0 0 4 4 4 4 0
VWHDC 10 6.0 Satisfactory 8 0 0 4 4 4 4 0
Disabled Facility Grants (16) Completed
SODC 8 13.0 Full 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0
VWHDC 8 13.0 Full 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0
Elections and Election Payments (22) Completed
SODC 15 17.0 Limited 5 1 1 2 2 2 2 0
VWHDC 15 17.0 Limited 5 1 1 2 2 2 2 0
General Ledger (23) Draft Out
SODC 10 10.5 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 10 10.0 Not yet applicable
Health and Safety (21) Audit Delayed Audit delayed pending the outcome of the

strategic review of health and safety by an
external consultant.

SODC 10 0.0
VWHDC 10 0.0
Housing Benefits and CTRS (21) Completed
SODC 15 15.0 Limited 3 1 0 0 0 2 0 3
VWHDC 15 15.0 Limited 3 1 0 0 0 2 0 3
Information Security (Inc. Cyber Security) (21) In Progress Audit work impacted by Covid-19 response work.
SODC 10 8.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 10 8.5 Not yet applicable
Leisure Development (8) Audit Delayed Audit delayed - no new projects for review.
SODC 10 0.0
VWHDC 10 0.0
Lone Working / Officer Security (24) In Progress Audit work impacted by Covid-19 response work.
SODC 7 2.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 7 2.0 Not yet applicable
Mobile Home Parks (25) Completed
SODC 12 12.0 Satisfactory 10 0 0 4 4 6 6 0
VWHDC 12 12.0 Satisfactory 10 0 0 4 4 6 6 0
National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) (22) Completed
SODC 10 11.5 Satisfactory 6 0 0 2 0 4 0 6
VWHDC 10 11.0 Satisfactory 6 0 0 2 0 4 0 6
Payroll (28) Completed
SODC 18 15.0 Limited 8 4 4 3 3 1 1 0
VWHDC 18 15.0 Limited 8 4 4 3 3 1 1 0
Performance Management (17) Audit Delayed Audit delayed until the SODC and VWHDC

corporate plans 2020-2024 are implemented.SODC 8 0.0
VWHDC 8 0.0
Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review (21) Completed
SODC 7 6.5 Limited 3 2 0 0 0 1 0 3
VWHDC 7 6.5 Limited 3 2 0 0 0 1 0 3
Procurement (27) In Progress Audit work impacted by Covid-19 response work.
SODC 10 5.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 10 5.0 Not yet applicable
Sundry Debtors (23) Completed
SODC 10 9.5 Limited 4 2 2 1 1 1 1 0
VWHDC 10 9.5 Limited 4 2 2 1 1 1 1 0
Treasury Management (21) Completed
SODC 7 5.5 Satisfactory 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 0
VWHDC 7 5.5 Satisfactory 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 0
Potential Audits for 2019/2020
Assets of Community Value (11) Completed
SODC 7 9.0 Satisfactory 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 0
VWHDC 7 9.0 Satisfactory 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 0
Land Charges (19) In Progress Audit work impacted by Covid-19 response work.
SODC 10 2.0 Not yet applicable
VWHDC 10 1.5 Not yet applicable
Engineering Services (8) Audit Delayed Audit delayed - insufficient resources to complete

the audit due to Covid-19.SODC 7 0.0
VWHDC 7 0.0
SODC
Cornerstone (21) Completed
SODC 10 13.0 Satisfactory 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0
VWHDC
Moorings (9) Completed
VWHDC 10 3.0 Satisfactory 8 0 0 6 0 2 0 8
JOINT PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 480 395.5 164 26 20 76 72 62 48 24

Completed 15 Full 2
Draft Out 2 Substantial 0

In Progress 4 Satisfactory 14
To Commence 0 Limited 14
Audit Delayed 4 Nil 0

SODC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 10 13.0 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0
Completed 1 Full 0

Draft Out 0 Substantial 0
In Progress 0 Satisfactory 1

To Commence 0 Limited 0
Audit Delayed 0 Nil 0

VWHDC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 10 3.0 8 0 0 6 0 2 0 8
Completed 1 Full 0

Draft Out 0 Substantial 0
In Progress 0 Satisfactory 1

To Commence 0 Limited 0
Audit Delayed 0 Nil 0

Page 60

Agenda Item 9



FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2018/2019 APPENDIX 1

Audit Area
Total Days

Used Original Audit Opinion Issued
Total No. of

Recs Agreed Im
pl

em
en

te
d

Pa
rt

ly
Im

pl
em

en
te

d

N
ot

 Im
pl

em
en

te
d

O
ng

oi
ng

N
o 

Lo
ng

er
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

N
ew

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n

s

Insurance 18/19 1 Substantial 5 0 1 3 1 0 0
Risk Management 18/19 1 Satisfactory 6 2 0 3 1 0 0
Property Management 18/19 1 Limited 6 0 0 3 3 0 0

SODC
None

VWHDC
None

FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2019/2020

Audit Area
Total Days

Used Original Audit Opinion Issued
Total No. of

Recs Agreed Im
pl

em
en

te
d

Pa
rt

ly
Im

pl
em

en
te

d

N
ot

 Im
pl

em
en

te
d

O
ng

oi
ng

N
o 

Lo
ng

er
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

N
ew

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n

s

JOINT
Disabled Facility Grants 19/20 1 Full 1 1 0 0 0 0 0

Mobile Home Parks 19/20 1 Satisfactory 10 4 0 1 5 0 0

SODC
None

VWHDC
None

IA FOLLOW UP DURING 19/20 TOTALS 2.0 16 4 0 4 8 0 0
JOINT FOLLOW UP TOTALS 2.0 16 4 0 4 8 0 0
SODC FOLLOW UP TOTALS 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
VWHDC FOLLOW UP TOTALS 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Page 61

Agenda Item 9



UNPLANNED WORK 2019/2020 APPENDIX 1

CONSULTANCY
Description Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By
JOINT
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

SODC
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

VWHDC
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

CONTINGENCY
Description Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By
JOINT
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

SODC
Planning investigation Completed As required 12 Development Manager

Confidential investigation Completed As required 2 Acting Deputy Chief Executive

VWHDC
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT
System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By
JOINT
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

SODC
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

VWHDC
None N/A N/A N/A N/A

AD-HOC ADVICE 
System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By
JOINT
General audit advice to service teams (incl
chasing for information) N/A N/A 7 N/A

SODC
General audit advice to service teams (incl
chasing for information) N/A N/A 0 N/A

VWHDC
General audit advice to service teams (incl
chasing for information) N/A N/A 0 N/A

Page 62

Agenda Item 9



AUDIT PLAN SCHEDULE 2019/2020 (As at 31 March 2020) APPENDIX 2
Key:
Key financial audit
Projected Start Date
In Progress
Draft Out
Completed
No longer applicable/ revised arrangements
Confidential
PLANNED AUDITS

2019/20 JOINT AUDITS PRIORITY
April May June July August September October November December January February March

1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2

JA
G

C

3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3

JA
G

C

4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3

JA
G

C

4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4

JA
G

C

5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3

JA
G

C

4
Information Security 19/20 21

Sh
ut

do
w

nProcurement 19/20 27
Data Protection / GDPR 19/20 20
General Ledger 19/20 23
Land Charges 19/20 19
Lone Working / Officer Security 19/20 24

2020/21 JOINT AUDITS PRIORITY
April May June July August September October November December January February March

1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2

JA
G

C

3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3

JA
G

C

4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3

JA
G

C

4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4

JA
G

C

5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3

JA
G

C

4
Covid-19 Response Work (e.g. business grant, discretionary grant)N/A

C
hr

is
tm

as
 O

ffi
ce

 S
hu

td
ow

n

Capital Management & Accounting 16
Council Tax 20
General Ledger 19
Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction Scheme 20
National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) (incl. COVID-19
Business Grants) 22

Payroll (incl. Travel & Subsistence, Pension
Administration, Annual Leave Payments) 22

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review 19
Treasury Management 18
Building Control 15
COVID-19 Response Governance Review N/A
Health & Safety 17
HR Management & Reporting (incl. Annual Leave
Calculation) 13

Grounds & Parks Maintenance In-Sourcing N/A
Corporate Landlord Approach N/A

FOLLOW UP AUDITS

JOINT PRIORITY
April May June July August September October November December January February March

1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2

JA
G

C

3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3

JA
G

C

4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3

JA
G

C

4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4

JA
G

C

5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3

JA
G

C

4
Assets of Community Value 19/20 N/A

C
hr

is
tm

as
 O

ffi
ce

 S
hu

td
ow

nData Protection / GDPR 19/20 N/A
Development Management 19/20 N/A
Elections & Election Payments N/A
Information Security 19/20 N/A
Land Charges 19/20 N/A
Lone Working / Officer Security 19/20 N/A
Procurement 19/20 N/A
SODC
Cornerstone 19/20
VWHDC
Moorings 19/20
UNPLANNED AUDITS

PRIORITY April May June July August September October November December January February March
JOINT 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2

JA
G

C

3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3
JA

G
C

4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3

JA
G

C

4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4

JA
G

C

5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3

JA
G

C

4
None

Sh
ut

do
w

n

SODC
None
VWHDC
None

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 9



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of the Monitoring Officer
Author: Margaret Reed
Telephone: 07801 203603
E-mail: margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
DATE: 22 September 2020

Annual Report on the Councillors’ Code of 
Conduct for 2018-19 and 2019-20

Recommendation

To note the annual report on the councillors’ code of conduct for the 2018-19 and 
2019/20 municipal years.

Purpose of Report
1. The purpose of this report is to update the Joint Audit and Governance Committee on 

code of conduct work during 2018-19 and 2019-20, including the number of district 
and parish code of conduct complaints processed. The report also includes 
information on significant potential changes to the code of conduct regime.

Strategic Objectives 
2. High standards of conduct underpin all of the councils’ work and the achievement of 

both councils’ strategic objectives.

Background
3. District councils have direct responsibility for standards in public life, not only for our 

district councillors, but also for all parish councillors in our districts. In 2012, the 
Oxfordshire Secretaries and Monitoring Officers’ Group recommended a code of 
conduct which has been adopted by all of the district councils, the county council and 
almost all of the parish councils across both districts. At the current time, no changes 
are proposed but potential national changes are explained in paragraph 16 of the 
report.

4. The code of conduct is based on the seven principles of public life, or “Nolan” 
principles, which are: Selflessness, Integrity, Objectivity, Accountability, Openness, 
Honesty and Leadership.

Page 64

Agenda Item 10

mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk


5. Although the councils have the responsibility for maintaining these standards, we are 
currently very limited in terms of sanctions, particularly when it comes to parish 
councillors. This, together with the fact that a number of parish complaints are 
between councillors and/or political activists, and the need to balance the public 
interest with the public purse, means that we often take a pro-active and/or alternative 
way to resolve disputes. This includes:

 giving advice to councillors/clerks which enables them to resolve their own 
difficulties or to use an alternative form of dispute resolution

 requiring evidence of an attempt to resolve the matter informally or a reasonable 
explanation of why this has not been explored before a formal complaint is 
progressed

 imposing a “high bar” when it comes to disputes between councillors and/or political 
activists

 being clear when a matter is not a code of conduct matter and referring 
complainants to the relevant organisation such as the Oxfordshire Association of 
Local Councils

 offering alternative forms of dealing with conflict, such as mediation, police 
involvement or training (after we have made an assessment of the circumstances)

6. On most occasions alternative interventions or advice are offered before a formal 
complaint is received, on others we use the alternatives as a form of “local resolution”.

7. The procedures were last ratified by the Joint Audit and Governance Committee in 
March 2016 and are operating well. No changes are proposed at the present time but 
a further report will be brought to the committee once the way forward on the potential 
national changes is known.

8. Much of the code of conduct work (apart from registers of interests) is done informally 
and consists of giving advice over the telephone or by email. We do not routinely 
record this work but it is reasonably significant and is often valuable in avoiding more 
substantial problems later on.

9. Each council retains the services of two “independent persons” to assist in maintaining 
and promoting high ethical standards in the district councils and the parish councils in 
South and Vale. The role of “independent person” was created by the Localism Act 
2011. The independent persons both provide advice to the subject councillor and 
guidance to the monitoring officer. The terms of office of the current independent 
persons are due to expire on 31 October 2020 but the Councils will be asked at their 
October meetings to authorise the Monitoring Officer to extend their terms of office 
until May 2021 pending the receipt of further information on potential changes to the 
standards framework.

10. We do record all complaints which come in to us formally (we insist that all are made 
on a complaint form that provides all the necessary information, unless there is a 
proper reason why this cannot be done). 

11. A short summary of the formal complaints dealt with in the 2018-19 and 2019-20 
municipal years is included in the appendix to this report.  A report was prepared for 
the March meeting of the committee but as that was cancelled and the volume of  
committee business prevented consideration of the report at the July meeting, the 
opportunity has been taken to cover both 2018-19 and 2109-20 in this report.

Page 65

Agenda Item 10



12. There was a pattern of disagreements between parish councillors in the lead up to the 
parish council elections.  Since the elections, the councils have held several training 
sessions with parish and town councils on the code of conduct.  

Register of Interests
13. All councillors and co-optees at both district and parish level, are required to submit a 

register of their interests to the Monitoring Officer which is publicly available. All of 
these registers are signed off and published by the district council. Councillors and co-
optees are also required to keep their registers up to date. The democratic services 
team requests these documents from parish clerks (on behalf of their councillors) as 
well as from district councillors after election/co-option and sends reminders bi-
annually for amendments to be registered.

14. There is an option for councillors/co-optees to request that their addresses and similar 
identifiers are removed from the public register if this is “sensitive information”. Over 
the past year the Monitoring Officer has continued to receive a number of these 
requests. The Monitoring Officer has granted all requests in order to reduce potential 
risks to both the councils and to individual councillors. With current trends in making 
contact (via email, messaging and social media), home addresses are becoming less 
relevant as a means of the public contacting a councillor. The original forms have the 
home addresses, but are not put in the public domain. 

Potential changes in legislation
15. On 30 January 2019, the Committee on Standards in Public Life published its review 

report on local government ethical standards. The full report is available at this link: 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachme

nt_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_
Standards_v4_WEB.PDF 

16. The report recommends the following changes to the code of conduct regime:

 The Local Government Association should create an updated model code of 
conduct, in consultation with representative bodies of councillors and officers of 
all tiers of local government

 The government should ensure that candidates standing for or accepting public 
offices are not required publicly to disclose their home address. The Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 should be 
amended to clarify that a councillor does not need to register their home 
address on an authority’s register of interests

 Councillors should be presumed to be acting in an official capacity in their 
public conduct, including statements on publicly-accessible social media. 
Section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011 should be amended to permit local 
authorities to presume so when deciding upon code of conduct breaches

 Section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011 should be amended to state that a local 
authority’s code of conduct applies to a member when they claim to act, or give 
the impression they are acting, in their capacity as a member or as a 
representative of the local authority

 The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 
should be amended to include: unpaid directorships; trusteeships; management 

Page 66

Agenda Item 10

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF


roles in a charity or a body of a public nature; and membership of any 
organisations that seek to influence opinion or public policy

 Local authorities should be required to establish a register of gifts and 
hospitality, with councillors required to record any gifts and hospitality received 
over a value of £50, or totalling £100 over a year from a single source; this 
requirement should be included in an updated model code of conduct

 Section 31 of the Localism Act 2011 should be repealed, and replaced with a 
requirement that councils include in their code of conduct that a councillor must 
not participate in a discussion or vote in a matter to be considered at a meeting 
if they have any interest, whether registered or not, “if a member of the public, 
with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard the interest as so 
significant that it is likely to prejudice your consideration or decision-making in 
relation to that matter”

 The Localism Act 2011 should be amended to require that Independent 
Persons are appointed for a fixed term of two years, renewable once

 The Local Government Transparency Code should be updated to provide that 
the view of the Independent Person in relation to a decision on which they are 
consulted should be formally recorded in any decision notice or minutes

 A local authority should only be able to suspend a councillor where the 
authority’s Independent Person agrees both with the finding of a breach and 
that suspending the councillor would be a proportionate sanction

 Local authorities should provide legal indemnity to Independent Persons if their 
views or advice are disclosed; the government should require this through 
secondary legislation if needed

 Local authorities should be given the discretionary power to establish a 
decision-making standards committee with voting independent members and 
voting members from dependent parishes, to decide on allegations and impose 
sanctions

 Councillors should be given the right to appeal to the Local Government 
Ombudsman if their local authority imposes a period of suspension for 
breaching the code of conduct

 The Local Government Ombudsman should be given the power to investigate 
and decide upon an allegation of a code of conduct breach by a councillor, and 
the appropriate sanction, on appeal by a councillor who has had a suspension 
imposed and the Ombudsman’s decision should be binding on the local 
authority

 The Local Government Transparency Code should be updated to require 
councils to publish annually: the number of code of conduct complaints they 
receive; what the complaints broadly relate to (e.g. bullying; conflict of interest); 
the outcome of those complaints, including if they are rejected as trivial or 
vexatious; and any sanctions applied

 Local authorities should be given the power to suspend councillors, without 
allowances, for up to six months

Page 67

Agenda Item 10



 The government should clarify if councils may lawfully bar councillors from 
council premises or withdraw facilities as sanctions and these powers should be 
put beyond doubt in legislation if necessary

 The criminal offences in the Localism Act 2011 relating to Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests should be abolished

 Parish council clerks should hold an appropriate qualification, such as those 
provided by the Society of Local Council Clerks

 Section 27(3) of the Localism Act 2011 should be amended to state that parish 
councils must adopt the code of conduct of their principal authority, with the 
necessary amendments, or the new model code

 Section 28(11) of the Localism Act 2011 should be amended to state that any 
sanction imposed on a parish councillor following the finding of a breach is to be 
determined by the relevant principal authority

 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 
2015 should be amended to provide that disciplinary protections for statutory 
officers extend to all disciplinary action, not just dismissal

 The Local Government Transparency Code should be updated to provide that 
local authorities must ensure that their whistleblowing policy specifies a named 
contact for the external auditor alongside their contact details, which should be 
available on the authority’s website

 Councillors should be listed as ‘prescribed persons’ for the purposes of the 
Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998

 Councillors should be required to attend formal induction training by their 
political groups and national parties should add such a requirement to their 
model group rules

 Local Government Association corporate peer reviews should also include 
consideration of a local authority’s processes for maintaining ethical standards

17. It is not yet clear whether the government will accept all of these recommendations 
and, if so, what will be the timetable for implementation. However, the Local 
Government Association (LGA) is working on a revised model code of conduct based 
on the recommendations set out in paragraph 16 above (insofar as the 
recommendations can be incorporated without legislation) and this is expected to be 
launched in October 2020. A further report will be brought to the committee and the 
Councils when any changes to the current arrangements are proposed.

Issues

18. As noted in paragraph 16 of this report, legislative changes may require councils to 
publish annually: the number of code of conduct complaints they receive; what the 
complaints broadly relate to (e.g. bullying; conflict of interest); the outcome of those 
complaints, including if they are rejected as trivial or vexatious; and any sanctions 
applied. It would be helpful to know what new legislative requirements will be 
introduced on publishing individual code of conduct complaints before making any 
changes to current procedures. In the meantime, the Monitoring Officer continues to 
consider and respond to any public or media requests for information on individual 

Page 68

Agenda Item 10



complaints on their merits and in accordance with freedom of information and data 
protection legislation. 

Financial Implications

19. Code of conduct work and the administration of code of conduct complaints is met 
from existing budgets. The Independent Persons undertake their role voluntarily 
although occasional expenses and training costs are met. No external investigators 
were engaged during 2018-19 or 2019-20. The potential costs of the proposed 
changes to the code of conduct regime will be assessed when the way forward is 
clearer.

Legal Implications

20. The Localism Act 2011 requires councils to have a code of conduct which sets out the 
standards expected of councillors when acting in their official capacity. Councils must 
also have in place procedures to investigate and determine allegations against 
councillors. 

21. The government’s response to the recommendations of the Committee on Standards 
in Public Life is awaited and a further report will be brought forward when any changes 
are known and/or when the LGA model code has been published.

Risks

22. If the councils fail to adopt and maintain a code of conduct and processes for the 
investigation of complaints, there is a risk of failure to comply with the statutory 
requirements, to the councils’ reputation and also to the integrity of their corporate 
governance and decision-making processes. Both councils have these in place.

23. Using alternative methods of dispute resolution where there is no formal complaint, or 
where the parties agree, or where the Monitoring Officer suggests local resolution 
reduces the cost of dealing with formal complaints and often provides a more 
satisfactory outcome for all parties involved.

Other Implications

24. None.

Conclusion

25. This report is for the Joint Audit and Governance Committee to note and to be aware 
of the work of the Monitoring Officer in respect of councillor code of conduct matters, 
the recommendations of the Committee on Standards in Public Life and the proposed 
timetable for the LGA model code.

Background Papers

None

Page 69

Agenda Item 10



.APPENDIX

SOUTH
Case Reference District 

or 
Parish

Nature of 
Complaint

Decision Comments

2018/2019 MUNICIPAL YEAR
S2018/2 Parish Complaint of 

aggressive and 
abusive 
behaviour

Local 
resolution

Apology 
provided.  
Matter not 
significant 
enough to 
justify public 
money/time on 
an 
investigation.

S2018/4 District Complaint 
about process 
at a meeting

No further 
action

Proper 
procedure was 
followed and 
the decision 
was properly 
taken in line 
with procedure.  

S2018/5 and /6 Parish Complaints of 
aggressive 
behaviour

No further 
action

Indications of 
errors of 
judgement on 
both sides.  
Apology 
provided.  
Matter not 
significant 
enough to 
justify public 
money/time on 
an 
investigation.

S2019/1 District Failed to meet 
several tests of 
the code 
regarding a 
planning 
application 

No further 
action

Decision on 
planning 
application was 
properly taken 
in line with 
procedure.  

S2019/3 Parish Abuse of use 
of council 
resources

No further 
action

Proper 
procedure was 
followed.  

2019/2020 MUNICIPAL YEAR
S201920/7 Parish Complaint 

about a conflict 
No further 
action

Interest 
declared and 

Page 70

Agenda Item 10



of interest in a 
planning 
application and 
aggressive 
behaviour

no parish 
council decision 
required on the 
matter. Issue of 
aggressive 
behaviour 
subject of 
previous 
complaints 
(S2018/5 and 
/6) on which no 
further action 
decision 
issued.

S201920/8 Parish Failure to 
register an 
interest 

No further 
action

Councillor 
updated 
register of 
interest form.
Matter not 
significant 
enough to 
justify public 
money/time on 
an 
investigation.

S201920/9,/10,/11,/12,/13 Parish Complaints 
about process 
for preparation 
of 
neighbourhood 
development 
plan and failure 
to register an 
interest 

No further 
action

Process 
followed in 
preparation of 
the plan or the 
merits of a plan 
is not a code of 
conduct matter. 
The relevant 
councillors 
completed a 
register of 
interests as 
required. 

S201920/14 Parish Complaint 
about process 
of running of 
meeting

No further 
action

Complaint 
relates to 
council 
procedures and 
is therefore not 
a code of 
conduct matter. 
A ‘high bar’ 
applies to 
dealing with 
complaints 
between 

Page 71

Agenda Item 10



councillors.  
Matter not 
significant 
enough to 
justify public 
money/time on 
an 
investigation.  

S201920/15 Parish Failure to 
declare a 
disclosable 
pecuniary 
interest

No further 
action

Incident 
happened in 
distant past and 
not significant 
enough to 
justify public 
money/time on 
an 
investigation.  

S201920/16 Parish Inappropriate 
comments on 
social media

No further 
action

Not acting in 
official capacity 
therefore not a 
code of conduct 
matter

S201920/17 Parish Inappropriate 
photograph 
posted on 
social media

No further 
action

Not acting in 
official capacity 
therefore not a 
code of conduct 
matter

S201920/18 Parish Complaint 
about handling 
of a complaint.

No further 
action

Complaint 
relates to 
council 
procedures. 
Not significant 
enough to 
justify public 
money/time on 
an 
investigation.  

S201920/19 Parish Complaint 
about use of 
information 
obtained at a 
parish council 
in a private 
capacity 

No further 
action

Matter subject 
of a hearing at 
another body. 
Investigation 
not merited and 
would not 
resolve issue 
between 
complainant 
and parish 
council. Not 
significant 
enough to 

Page 72

Agenda Item 10



justify public 
money/time on 
an 
investigation.  

S201920/20 Parish Inappropriate 
approaches to 
an employer 
and a social 
media post

No further 
action

Not acting in 
official capacity 
therefore not a 
code of conduct 
matter

VALE
Case 
Reference

District 
or Parish

Nature of 
Complaint

Decision Comments

2018/2019 MUNICIPAL YEAR
V2018/2 Parish Complaint about 

a conflict of 
interests in 
preparing 
neighbourhood 
plan 

No further 
action

Legal and political 
status of 
neighbourhood 
planning group is 
not a code of 
conduct matter.  
Matter not 
significant enough 
to justify public 
money/time on an 
investigation.  

V2018/3 Parish Complaint about 
aggressive 
behaviour

No further 
action

Incident happened 
in distant past and 
no attempt made 
by parties to seek 
local resolution.  

V2019/1, /2, 
/3 and /5

Parish Complaints 
about not 
following 
procedure

No further 
action

Not investigated as 
this was not a code 
of conduct matter

V2019/4 Parish Complaint about 
aggressive and 
abusive 
behaviour

No further 
action

A ‘high bar’ applies 
to dealing with 
complaints 
between 
councillors.  Matter 
not significant 
enough to justify 
public money/time 
on an investigation.  

2019/2020 MUNICIPAL YEAR
V201920/01 Parish Attendance at a 

rally with what 
was considered 

No further 
action

Not investigated as 
acting in private 
capacity. Subject of 

Page 73

Agenda Item 10



an offensive 
placard

complaint 
apologised for any 
offence caused.

V201920/02 Parish Complaint about 
not following 
procedure

No further 
action

Not investigated as 
this was not a code 
of conduct matter

V201920/03 Parish Complaint about 
not following 
procedure and 
threatening 
behaviour

No further 
action

Complaint relates 
to council 
procedures and is 
therefore not a 
code of conduct 
matter. A ‘high bar’ 
applies to dealing 
with complaints 
between 
councillors.  Matter 
not significant 
enough to justify 
public money/time 
on an investigation.  

Page 74

Agenda Item 10



\\savvpspfil02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk\modgov\data\AgendaItemDocs\3\5\2\AI00012253\$mqakqvkw.doc

Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Head of Legal and Democratic
Author: Margaret Reed, Head of Legal and Democratic
Telephone: 07801 203603
E-mail: margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk 
DATE: 22 September 2020

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
2000 Policy and Procedures

Recommendations

(1)  That the committee notes that surveillance is one of the tools available to the 
councils as part of their law enforcement functions. 

(2)  That the committee endorses the attached document, Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 Policy and Procedures, for use by council teams as part of their 
work.

 (3)  That the committee authorises the Head of Legal and Democratic to make such 
changes to the Policy and Procedures document as she may consider necessary 
from time to time to ensure ongoing compliance with the requirements of the 2000 Act 
and associated guidance.  

Purpose of Report

1. To inform the committee how the councils have deployed and will seek to deploy 
the use of covert surveillance in our enforcement work having proper regard to the 
principles of necessity, proportionality and lawfulness; and for the committee to 
endorse a policy and procedures document, designed to ensure compliance with 
the requirements of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA).

Strategic Objectives 

2. South ‘be tough on enforcement’ and Vale ‘running an efficient council’.  Working 
to adopted and agreed RIPA policies and procedures will facilitate the use of 
covert surveillance as a legitimate and effective tool in enforcement investigations.  
It will also help ensure the lawfulness of such activity, thereby avoiding potentially 
costly and harmful legal challenges to our actions.

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 75

Agenda Item 11

mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk


\\savvpspfil02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk\modgov\data\AgendaItemDocs\3\5\2\AI00012253\$mqakqvkw.doc

Background

3. The councils carry out a number of statutory functions that may require resort to 
enforcement action of many different types, and investigations carried out into 
breaches or suspected breaches of the law may lead the councils to take action in 
the courts, including criminal prosecutions.  Protecting the environment from harm, 
particularly from illegal waste disposal (fly-tipping), fraud, licensing, planning and 
various aspects of health and safety are all areas of the councils’ work where the 
councils and our residents are concerned to see effective enforcement action 
being taken against illegal activity.  The ability to take such effective action may 
give rise to a need for investigative work, and the deployment of a range of 
techniques by the service teams who are charged with regulatory enforcement.  
Directed covert surveillance, and the use of covert human intelligence source 
(CHIS) are techniques that the councils may deploy in investigative work, and 
RIPA establishes a legislative framework within which the councils may seek to 
legitimately undertake such activity.

4. The ‘law of RIPA’, and the parameters of the legislation, are set out in a degree of 
detail in the attached document, Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
Policy and Procedures, which this committee is asked to endorse.  The detail that 
is included in that document will therefore not be repeated in the body of this 
report.  It may be helpful however for councillors to understand that RIPA does not 
of itself provide local authorities with powers to undertake covert surveillance that 
they otherwise might not have.  What RIPA and its associated guidance does do, 
is to establish a framework of principles against which the lawfulness of such 
surveillance activity might be able to be judged.

5. The policy and procedures document that is attached to this report is therefore 
essentially intended to strike an appropriate balance between respecting individual 
rights to privacy on the one hand and the need for effective law enforcement on the 
other, based on concepts of necessity, proportionality and transparency.

6. It may therefore be noted that the councils’ service teams have in fact been quite 
sparing in their engagement of covert surveillance in their work over recent years, 
and that it has in fact been several years since a full RIPA authorisation for covert 
surveillance was applied for (and granted) as part of an investigation into 
suspected breaches of the criminal law.  The need for an up to date and well 
understood policy and procedures document remains strong however (a) to ensure 
that the councils’ teams are well placed to engage in surveillance activity as and 
when the need might arise and (b) to ensure that officers do not stray into 
unauthorised covert surveillance through unfamiliarity with the law and processes 
that regulate such activity.  It is for these reasons also, that the provisions in the 
attached policy and procedures document regarding training of officers are 
particularly important.

7. The policy and procedures document attached to this report, which the committee 
is being asked to endorse, represents the most recent iteration of a document that 
has evolved with the benefit of input and recommendations provided from time by 
the Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO), and previously the Office 
of Surveillance Commissioners, in the course of their oversight of this aspect of the 
councils’ work.  The presentation of the document to the committee as one to be 
endorsed is therefore supported by a good measure of independent verification.  
Consideration of this report and the attached document by the committee also ties 

Page 76

Agenda Item 11



\\savvpspfil02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk\modgov\data\AgendaItemDocs\3\5\2\AI00012253\$mqakqvkw.doc

in with the view that the IPCO has expressed, that councillors should have general 
awareness of RIPA issues, and a role in settling RIPA policy and procedures.   

Financial Implications

8. The training that will be required for officers who have or may have an involvement 
in RIPA issues and investigations should be able to be accommodated from 
budgetary provision which exists for training. 

Legal Implications

9. The legal implications and issues relevant to this report are dealt with in detail in 
the body of the report and the attached RIPA policy and procedures document.

Risks

10.Not having a policy and procedures in respect of RIPA endorsed by councillors, or 
not having a robust policy and procedures in place at all, would be likely to draw 
criticism from the IPCO.  It would also be likely to increase the risk of the councils 
acting unlawfully, inadvertently or otherwise.  This could have the effect of reducing 
the effectiveness of our enforcement work, both generally and on individual cases.  
Adherence to a robust RIPA policy and procedures will help avoid legal challenges 
to the lawfulness of the councils’ actions which would be likely to be costly and 
could potentially cause reputational harm.   

Other Implications

11.The councils operate a system of closed circuit television (CCTV) across six 
market towns in the districts.  There are 86 cameras in total, monitored from a 
control room within Abingdon Police Station, by staff employed by the councils.  
The management, operation and use of this system is undertaken in accordance 
with a code of practice and an operational handbook separate from the policy and 
procedures document accompanying this report, it being noted that CCTV of public 
place activity generally falls to be considered as overt rather than covert activity.  In 
similar vein, the presence of cameras which are deployed to detect and prevent 
the crime of fly tipping at ‘hotspot locations’ in the districts is normally accompanied 
by signage placed nearby, informing the public that surveillance takes place.  This 
means that the process of surveillance is not strictly subject to the requirements of 
‘full RIPA’, as the surveillance is overt.  The carrying out of this kind of surveillance 
activity however is still subject to a process of assessment based on principles of 
necessity and proportionality, and consideration of rights of privacy.    

Conclusion

12.The adoption of a policy and procedures document setting out the way in which the 
councils may seek to use covert surveillance as a tool in investigative work will 
facilitate effective enforcement work and will help ensure that the councils operate 
within the legal rules that regulate such activity.  The committee is therefore asked 
to endorse the document attached to this report, Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 Policy and Procedures, for adoption and use within the councils 
and to authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic to keep the document up to 
date as appropriate.  

Page 77

Agenda Item 11



Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
2000

POLICY AND PROCEDURES

July 2020

Page 78

Agenda Item 11



1. Introduction
1.1 Article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights confers on every individual a 

“right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his correspondence”.  
The convention provides there is to be no interference with this right unless it is in 
accordance with the law and it is necessary on specific grounds.

1.2 As the council has a number of functions to undertake which involve the 
enforcement of laws and regulations, officers will need to conduct investigations and 
where appropriate take legal proceedings.  The council will not normally make use of 
covert surveillance and similar activities unless it is necessary for an investigation.  
The council will undertake its enforcement role having regard to the Human Rights 
Act 1998 and also the Equality Act 2010, which requires the council, in the exercise 
of its functions, to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation.

1.3 Any covert surveillance conducted by the council can constitute an interference with 
the right protected by Article 8.  Section 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 provides 
that it is unlawful for a public body to interfere with those rights under the European 
Convention on Human Rights that are incorporated into the Act.

1.4 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) is the domestic law that 
regulates the way law enforcement agencies, and public bodies conduct surveillance 
for the purposes of law enforcement.  The fundamental requirement of RIPA is that 
when the council considers undertaking directed surveillance or using a covert 
human intelligence source (CHIS) it must only do so if:

a) the activity has been authorised by an officer with appropriate powers, and

b) the relevant criteria are satisfied.

1.5 Some activities of council teams (eg in the field of environmental protection, health 
and safety, licensing, fraud investigation and Planning enforcement) may bring into 
play the provisions of RIPA.

1.6 Compliance with RIPA will ensure any interference is in accordance with domestic 
law.  Compliance with RIPA assists to defend the council and its officers against 
complaints of interference with the right to respect for private and family life 
protected by Article 8 of the Convention.  The council can thus show any 
interference is “in accordance with the law”.  Provided the activities undertaken are 
also necessary and proportionate there will be no contravention of human rights 
legislation.

1.7 All investigations or enforcement actions involving covert surveillance or the use of a 
CHIS must comply with the provisions of RIPA.

1.8 This policy applies to all staff and agents working for the council.  A key purpose of 
the policy is to direct council enforcement officers and their managers on the 
procedures that should be followed where surveillance activities are contemplated, 
to ensure compliance with RIPA.

Page 79

Agenda Item 11



1.9 A central register of RIPA authorisations will be maintained by the council’s Head of 
Legal and Democratic, who is the council’s Senior Responsible Officer for the 
purpose of ensuring the integrity of the council’s RIPA processes under the Act, and 
statutory guidance issued in pursuance of the Act.  Day to day maintenance of the 
register and advice relating to RIPA issues is undertaken under the supervision of 
the Senior Responsible Officer by the council’s Litigation and Planning Team 
Leader, in the role of RIPA Coordinating Officer. 

1.10 This policy and procedures document and the council’s use of covert surveillance as 
a tool in investigations shall be reviewed at least every two years and also when 
circumstances warrant it.

1.11 The council will from time to time issue further guidance and procedures to staff.

2. RIPA regulated activities
2.1 If an investigating officer identifies a contemplated surveillance activity as regulated 

by RIPA, a written authorisation in accordance with this guidance should be 
obtained, before the activity commences.  If enforcement officers or their managers 
are in any doubt, they should seek the advice of the legal services team.

Activities covered by RIPA:

2.2 THE INTERCEPTION OF COMMUNICATIONS

This covers a situation where interception of the communication has not been authorised, 
or agreed by the sender and addressee of the communication.  These guidance notes do 
not cover this activity, as the council is extremely unlikely to undertake this activity.  The 
advice of the legal services team should always be sought should such an activity be 
contemplated.

2.3 THE USE OF COVERT HUMAN INTELLIGENCE SOURCES

The use of a covert human intelligence source (CHIS), and his or her conduct, would 
require authorisation under RIPA.  In practice, it is unlikely that there will be any 
circumstances which would require the council to either use a CHIS or operate under cover 
in the manner of a CHIS, and advice should be sought from the RIPA Coordinating Officer 
or the Senior Responsible Officer before any authorisation is applied for or granted.

A CHIS is defined as the use or conduct of an individual who establishes or maintains a 
personal or other relationship with a person for the covert purpose of obtaining information.  
These provisions would cover the use of professional witnesses to obtain evidence or 
information, or officers operating ‘under cover’.  Great caution should be exercised in these 
circumstances and the authorising officer must be satisfied that the authorisation is 
necessary, that the conduct authorised is proportionate to what is sought to be achieved 
and that arrangements for the overall management and control of the individual are in 
force.

The provisions of RIPA relating to CHIS do not apply where a situation would not normally 
require a relationship to be established for the covert purpose of obtaining information.  For 
example: where members of the public volunteer information to the council as part of their 

Page 80

Agenda Item 11



normal civic duties; or where members of the public are asked to keep diaries of incidents 
in relation to, say, planning enforcement, anti-social behaviour or noise nuisance.

If a CHIS is used, both the use of the CHIS and his or her conduct require prior 
authorisation.

Where engaged, the Home Office Code of Practice on Covert Human Intelligence Sources 
(2018) requires public authorities to ensure that arrangements are in place for the proper 
oversight and management of CHIS, including appointing individual officers as defined in 
the Act for each CHIS.  This is known as a ‘handler’ and the officer will have day to day 
responsibility for dealing with the CHIS on behalf of the authority concerned; directing the 
day to day activities of the CHIS; recording the information supplied by the CHIS; and 
monitoring the security and welfare of the CHIS.

The handler of a CHIS will usually be of a rank or position below that of the Authorising 
Officer.

In addition to a handler, a ‘controller’ will also be appointed.  This officer will be responsible 
for the management and supervision of the handler and general oversight of the use of the 
CHIS.

In view of the rigorous nature and importance of these requirements it is essential that 
CHIS activity is not undertaken by or on behalf of the council except under the strict control 
and supervision of officers who have been properly and recently trained for the specific 
purpose.

2.4 DIRECTED SURVEILLANCE

As this activity is the most likely to be carried out, this policy addresses this activity in more 
detail.  Where there is to be directed surveillance written authorisation must be obtained in 
accordance with the provisions of RIPA before the surveillance commences.  Directed 
surveillance is defined as surveillance which is covert, but not intrusive and which is 
undertaken for the purposes of a specific investigation, and which is likely to result in 
obtaining private information about a person and which is carried out otherwise than as an 
immediate response to events where it would be impracticable to obtain prior authorisation. 
Therefore, investigating officers need to consider a number of key questions to determine 
whether a proposed activity falls within this definition of directed surveillance: 

i) Is the proposed activity surveillance?
Surveillance is defined in wide terms as: any activity involving the monitoring, 
observing or listening to persons, their movements, their conversations or other 
activities or communications; the recording of anything monitored, observed or 
listened to in the course of surveillance; and the surveillance by or with the 
assistance of a surveillance device.

ii) Is the surveillance covert?
Surveillance is covert where it is carried out in a manner calculated to ensure that 
the subjects of the surveillance are unaware that it is, or may be taking place.  It is 
therefore the intention of the officer carrying out the surveillance which is relevant to 
this issue of covertness.

Page 81

Agenda Item 11



iii) Is the surveillance for the purposes of a specific investigation?
General observation, not forming part of any investigation into suspected breaches 
of the law and not directed against any specific person or persons is not directed 
surveillance eg CCTV cameras in council car parks are readily visible and if they are 
used to monitor the general activities of what is happening within the car park, it falls 
outside the definition.  If, however, the cameras are targeting a particular known 
individual, the usage will become a specific operation which will require 
authorisation.

iv) Is the surveillance undertaken in such a manner that is likely to 
result in the obtaining of private information about a person?
“Private information” is any information concerning a person’s private or family life.  
Whether information is personal in nature is relevant when deciding whether 
information is private.  The fact that observation of individuals occurs from the public 
highway will not prevent the discovery of private information.  When officers consider 
this question they should give due weight to the probability of discovering such 
information, as authorisation is not required if there is only a slight possibility of 
discovering private information.

v) Is the surveillance otherwise than by way of an immediate 
response to events or circumstances where it is not reasonably 
practicable to obtain prior authorisation?
If the surveillance is an immediate response to something happening during the 
course of an officer’s work, it would not be reasonable to obtain prior authority.  If 
this occurs, the officer must report the incident back to an authorising officer so a 
note can be made on the relevant department file and the central register.

vi) Is the surveillance intrusive?
The council is not authorised to carry out intrusive surveillance, but in any event it is 
extremely unlikely that the council would contemplate undertaking this activity.  
Surveillance is intrusive surveillance if it is carried out covertly in relation to anything 
taking place on residential premises or in a private vehicle and involves the 
presence of an individual on the premises or in the vehicle or is carried out by a 
surveillance device.

3.    Online covert activity/Use of social media

3.1. The growth of the internet, and the extent of the information that is now available 
online, presents new opportunities to view or gather information which may assist in 
preventing or detecting crime or carrying out other statutory functions, as well as in 
understanding and engaging with the public that the council serves.  It is important 
that the council is able to make full and lawful use of this information for its statutory 
purposes.  Much of it can be accessed without the need for RIPA authorisation; use 
of the internet prior to an investigation should not normally engage privacy 
considerations.  But if the study of an individual’s online presence becomes 
persistent, or where material obtained from any check is to be extracted and 
recorded and may engage privacy considerations, a RIPA authorisation may need to 
be considered.  The following guidance taken from the latest (August 2018) Home 
Office Code of Practice may assist in identifying when such authorisations may be 
appropriate.

Page 82

Agenda Item 11



3.2. The internet may be used for intelligence gathering and/or as a surveillance tool.  
Where online monitoring or investigation is conducted covertly for the purpose of a 
specific investigation or operation and is likely to result in the obtaining of private 
information about a person or group, an authorisation for directed surveillance 
should considered.  If a person acting on behalf of the council is intending to engage 
with others online without disclosing his or her identity, a CHIS authorisation may be 
needed (paragraphs 4.10 to 4.16 of the Covert Human Intelligence Sources Code of 
Practice 2018 provide detail on where a CHIS authorisation may be available for 
online activity).

3.3. In deciding whether online surveillance should be regarded as covert, consideration 
should be given to the likelihood of the subject(s) knowing that the surveillance is or 
may be taking place.  Use of the internet itself may be considered as adopting a 
surveillance technique calculated to ensure that the subject is unaware of it, even if 
no further steps are taken to conceal the activity.  Conversely, where the council 
may have taken reasonable steps to inform the public or particular individuals that 
the surveillance is or may be taking place, the activity may be regarded as overt and 
a directed surveillance authorisation will not normally be available (required).

3.4. Depending on the nature of the online platform, there may be a reduced expectation 
of privacy where information relating to a person or group of people is made openly 
available within the public domain, however in some circumstances privacy 
implications still apply.  This is because the intention when making such information 
available was not for it to be used for a covert purpose such as investigative activity.  
This is regardless of whether a user of a website or social media platform has sought 
to protect such information by restricting its access by activating privacy settings.

3.5. Where information about an individual is placed on a publicly accessible database, 
for example the telephone directory or Companies House, they are unlikely to have 
any reasonable expectation of privacy over the monitoring by public authorities of 
that information.  Individuals who post information on social media networks and 
other websites whose purpose is to communicate messages to a wide audience are 
also less likely to hold a reasonable expectation of privacy in relation to that 
information.

3.6. Whether there may be interference with a person’s private life includes a 
consideration of the nature of the council’s activity in relation to that information.  
Simple reconnaissance of such sites (ie preliminary examination with a view to 
establishing whether the site or its contents are of interest) is unlikely to interfere 
with a person’s reasonably held expectation of privacy and therefore is not likely to 
require a directed surveillance authorisation.  But where there is systematic 
collection and recording of information about a particular person or group, a directed 
surveillance authorisation should be considered.

3.7. In order to determine whether a directed surveillance authorisation should be sought 
for accessing information on a website as part of a covert investigation or operation, 
it is necessary to look at the intended purpose and scope of the online activity it is 

Page 83

Agenda Item 11



proposed to undertake.  Factors that should be considered in establishing whether a 
directed surveillance authorisation is required include:

 Whether the investigation or research is directed towards an individual or group;
 Whether it is likely to result in obtaining private information about a person or group 

of people;
 Whether it is likely to involve visiting internet sites to build up an intelligence picture 

or profile;
 Whether the information obtained will be recorded and retained;
 Whether the information is likely to provide an observer with a pattern of lifestyle;
 Whether the information is being combined with other sources of information or 

intelligence, which amounts to information relating to a person’s private life;
 Whether the investigation or research is part of an ongoing piece of work involving 

repeated viewing of the subject(s);
 Whether it is likely to involve identifying and recording information about third 

parties, such as friends and family members of the subject of interest, or information 
posted by third parties, that may include personal information and therefore 
constitute collateral intrusion into the privacy of these third parties.

4. Authorisations
4.1 No Authorising Officer shall grant an authorisation for the carrying out of directed 

surveillance or the use of a CHIS unless s/he believes:

(a) that an authorisation is necessary for the purpose of preventing or detecting 
crime, and in the case of directed surveillance that the offence in question 
carries a maximum sentence of at least six months imprisonment or relates to 
the sale of alcohol or tobacco to persons who are underage; and

(b) the authorised activity is proportionate to what is sought to be achieved by 
carrying it out.

4.2 The contemplated activity must be considered necessary in the particular 
circumstances of the case.

4.3 Proportionality is a key concept of RIPA.  An authorisation should demonstrate how 
an authorising officer has reached the conclusion that the surveillance activity is 
proportionate to what it seeks to achieve, including an explanation of the reasons 
why the method, tactic or technique is not disproportionate (the proverbial 
‘sledgehammer to crack a nut’).  Proportionality is not only about balancing the 
effectiveness of covert methods over overt methods but of explaining why the 
particular covert method, tactic or technique is the least intrusive.  It is insufficient to 
make a simple assertion or to say that the ‘seriousness’ of the crime justifies any or 
every method available.  It may be unacceptable to advance lack of resources or a 
potential cost saving as sufficient ground to use technological solutions which can 
be more intrusive than a human being.  This critical judgment can only properly be 
reached once all other aspects of authorisation have been fully considered.

4.4 A potential model authorisation would make clear that the following elements of 
proportionality had been fully considered:

Page 84

Agenda Item 11



(a) balancing the size and scope of the operation against the gravity and extent of 
the perceived mischief,

(b) explaining how and why the methods to be adopted will cause the least 
possible intrusion on the target and others,

(c) that the activity is an appropriate use of the legislation and the only reasonable 
way, having considered all others, of obtaining the necessary result, and

(d) providing evidence of other methods and why they were not implemented.

4.5 At the point in time immediately before the completion of the application for a RIPA 
authorisation and before it is presented to the Authorising Officer for his/her 
authorisation, the application should be delivered to the RIPA Coordinating Officer.  
This is to assist with the completion of the central record of authorisations and to 
provide for an additional element of ‘quality control’ over the content of the 
application.  Assuming it is granted by the Authorising Officer, the completed 
authorisation should also be returned to the RIPA Coordinating Officer and again 
assessed for quality before arrangements are made for a Magistrates Court to 
consider its approval (see the judicial approval section below).   

5. Judicial approval of RIPA 
authorisations
5.1 In addition to the pre-conditions and requirements for authorisations described 

above, no authorisation for directed surveillance or the use of a CHIS will take effect 
unless and until the relevant judicial authority (ie a Magistrate) has made an order 
approving the grant of the authorisation.  It is therefore vital that any surveillance for 
which authorisation has been sought does not start until such time as it has been 
approved by a Magistrate.

5.2 It is necessary for the council to obtain judicial approval for all initial RIPA 
authorisations/applications and renewals.  There is no requirement for a Magistrate 
to consider either cancellations or internal reviews.

5.3 The need for judicial approval from a Magistrate will require the RIPA Coordinating 
Officer or another lawyer under his supervision to contact the administration section 
at the local Magistrates Court to request a hearing for this stage of the authorisation.  
In advance of the hearing, the Authorising Officer should provide to the court the 
RIPA authorisation signed by him/her and a completed judicial application/order 
form, together with any other relevant supporting documents.  The hearing to 
consider the application will be held in private, and the Magistrate will consider the 
documentation provided, and ask questions to clarify points or gain reassurance on 
any matters of interest or concern.  Ordinarily, the person representing the council at 
this hearing will be the Authorising Officer, and this person should make sure that 
s/he takes to the hearing evidence of his/her own authorisation to grant 
authorisations and represent the council in court proceedings.

Page 85

Agenda Item 11



6. Authorising officers
6.1 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers (Directed Surveillance and Covert Human 

Intelligence Sources) Order 2010 No 521 prescribes the Authorising Officer must be 
at least a director, head of service, service manager or equivalent.

6.2 Under the constitution’s scheme of delegation, heads of service and the Chief 
Executive have delegated authority to issue RIPA authorisations, however further 
important provisions about Authorising Officers and about training are contained in 
section 7 below.  For a service manager to become an Authorising Officer, a written 
authority must be produced by the relevant head of service.

6.3 The Authorising Officer should not be part of the surveillance team.  S/he cannot 
grant a self-authorisation, and in the event that a head of service wishes to 
undertake the surveillance personally, or as part of the surveillance team, any 
authority should be issued by a different Authorising Officer.

6.4 Authorising Officers must be aware of the requirements of RIPA and how to properly 
consider requests for authority.  Authorising Officers must demonstrate that these 
requests have been properly considered when they complete the authorisation form. 

6.5 Where the surveillance is likely to lead to the obtaining of “confidential information” 
(as defined below), a RIPA authorisation can only be given by the Chief Executive 
(or in his absence, his deputy).  For these purposes confidential information has the 
following specific meaning, namely:

(a) legally privileged information eg communications between a professional legal 
adviser and a client

(b) confidential personal information, which is information kept in confidence and 
relating to a person’s physical or mental health or relating to spiritual 
counselling given to a person eg consultations between a health professional 
and a patient, information from a patient’s medical records or conversations 
between an individual and a Minister of Religion

(c) confidential journalistic information, held for the purposes of journalism on the 
basis that it or its source would not be revealed.

6.6 It is difficult to envisage circumstances in which the council’s investigative activities 
would either require, justify or otherwise result in the obtaining of confidential 
information and if any such information is obtained during surveillance, legal advice 
should be sought immediately.

6.7 The codes of practice referred to in paragraph 11.1 below provide further guidance 
relating to confidential material.

Page 86

Agenda Item 11



7. Training
7.1 The council will ensure that adequate training takes place for Authorising Officers 

and investigating officers.  Such training may be arranged and provided through 
officers’ own professional associations or through the use of outside agencies.  
Sharing training with other local authorities may also be appropriate.  The council’s 
legal services team can also assist with training and by giving guidance from time to 
time, either generally as legislation/guidance evolves or in specific cases.  As it is 
especially important for Authorising Officers to be able to demonstrate an up to date 
knowledge of RIPA and best practice, the delegation to grant authorisations should 
generally be exercised only by those officers who have undertaken and kept up to 
date RIPA training.  In order to assist this process, the Council’s RIPA Coordinating 
Officer under the general supervision of the Senior Responsible Officer for RIPA will 
maintain, monitor and review a central record of RIPA training attended by officers 
of the council along with a list of those officers who have undertaken training 
necessary to enable them to assess and grant authorisations.  It should further be 
noted that advice from the Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) is 
that officers engaged in RIPA activity and/or management should receive training 
appropriate to their roles at approximately 18 month intervals.

8. Forms of authorisation
8.1 RIPA itself does not contain prescribed forms of authorisation.  However, the 

adapted Home Office model forms below should be used.   This will ensure a 
consistent approach is adopted across service teams and ensure all relevant issues 
are addressed during the decision-making process.  Forms relating to directed 
surveillance are appended.  If any proposed investigation involves the interception 
of communications or the use of a covert human intelligence source the advice of 
the legal services team should be sought.  The appended forms comprise:

Appendix one Application for the use of directed surveillance

Appendix two Renewal of directed surveillance

Appendix three Review of the use of directed surveillance

Appendix four Cancellation of the use of directed surveillance

Page 87

Agenda Item 11



9. Duration of authorisation
9.1 A written authorisation for directed surveillance lapses, if not renewed, three months 

from the grant or last renewal (12 months in the case of a CHIS authorisation), and 
this period begins at the time of magistrates approval.  However, officers should 
ensure authorisations only last for as long as is considered necessary and 
proportionate.  Regular reviews of authorisations should be undertaken to assess 
the need for continued surveillance.  The Authorising Officer will specify the 
frequency of reviews on the authorisation form.

9.2 Any time before the authorisation would cease to have effect, the Authorising Officer 
may renew, in writing, if s/he still considers it necessary.

9.3 Authorisations may be renewed more than once provided they continue to meet the 
criteria for authorisations.  The renewal does not have to be authorised by the same 
authorising officer who granted the original authorisation.

9.4 The Authorising Officer who granted the authorisation or last renewed the 
authorisation must cancel it if satisfied the directed surveillance no longer meets the 
criteria upon which it was authorised.

10.Retention and security of forms and 
records

10.1 Decisions on requests for judicial approval, authorisations, requests for 
authorisation, renewals, and cancellations are confidential material.  The documents 
and any information contained therein must not be disclosed to any person who has 
no legitimate need to have access to the document, or to the information that it 
contains.  Authorising Officers must ensure that there are proper arrangements 
within their departments or services for the retention and security of such documents 
in accordance with the requirements of the Data Protection Act 1998 (or relevant 
successor legislation).

10.2 Such documents may need to be securely kept for a period (considered appropriate 
by the relevant head of service) following the completion of any surveillance, as they 
may have to be produced in court, or to the other party in court proceedings as part 
of legal disclosure requirements.  Superfluous copies should not be made or kept.

10.3 The council’s Head of Legal and Democratic holds the role of Senior Responsible 
Officer with general oversight of the council’s conduct of RIPA processes and 
maintains a secure central register of all judicial approvals, authorisations, reviews, 
cancellations and renewals issued.  Day to day management of the register and 
advice on RIPA issues is undertaken by the RIPA Coordinating Officer.  All officers 
should ensure that original signed documents are given to the RIPA Coordinating 
Officer (or in his absence to another lawyer in the legal services team) upon issue in 
order to keep this register up to date.  On receipt of a document to be included 
within the register, a date for review will be diarised.

Page 88

Agenda Item 11



10.4 The central register may be “weeded” of information that is more than seven years 
old, unless there are relevant outstanding court proceedings.  All documentation that 
is no longer needed to be kept should be destroyed by shredding.

11.Codes of practice
11.1 The Home Office has published a Code of Practice on Covert Surveillance and 

Property Interference (August 2018) and a Code of Practice on Covert Human 
Intelligence Sources (August 2018) which provide further guidance on the use of 
these activities.  These codes are available on the Home Office website and should 
be read by investigating officers and team leaders whose investigations may involve 
covert surveillance.

11.2 The codes of practice are admissible as evidence in criminal and civil proceedings.  
The council will normally follow the requirements of codes of practice issued by the 
Home Secretary unless there are exceptional circumstances justifying a departure 
from the recommended approach.

11.3    The IPCO also produces guidance from time to time on procedures and oversight 
arrangements for local councils on RIPA and its website offers a further valuable 
reference source. 

Annex

Officers of the council with designated RIPA roles

Senior Responsible Officer

Margaret Reed, Head of Legal and Democratic
margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk

RIPA Coordinating Officer

Litigation and Planning Team Leader

Authorising Officers

Andrew Down, Acting Deputy Chief Executive – Partnerships
andrew.down@southandvale.gov.uk

Paul Howden, Revenues and Benefits Manager
paul.howden@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 89

Agenda Item 11

mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.down@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:paul.howden@southandvale.gov.uk


Page 90

Agenda Item 11



Appendix one

APPLICATION FOR THE USE OF DIRECTED SURVEILLANCE

Page 91

Agenda Item 11



Page 92

Agenda Item 11



Page 93

Agenda Item 11



Page 94

Agenda Item 11



Page 95

Agenda Item 11



Page 96

Agenda Item 11



Page 97

Agenda Item 11



Page 98

Agenda Item 11



Appendix two

RENEWAL OF DIRECTED SURVEILLANCE

Page 99

Agenda Item 11



Page 100

Agenda Item 11



Page 101

Agenda Item 11



Page 102

Agenda Item 11



Appendix three

REVIEW OF THE USE OF DIRECTED SURVEILLANCE

Page 103

Agenda Item 11



Page 104

Agenda Item 11



Page 105

Agenda Item 11



Page 106

Agenda Item 11



Appendix four

CANCELLATION OF THE USE OF DIRECTED SURVEILLANCE

Page 107

Agenda Item 11



Page 108

Agenda Item 11



Page 109

Agenda Item 11



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of: Head of Corporate Services
Author: Sally Truman
Contact: Sarah James
Telephone:  01235 422600
Textphone: 18001 01235 422600 
E-mail: sarah.james@southandvale.gov.uk 

South Cabinet member:  Andrea Powell
Tel: 07882 584120
E-mail:  Andrea.Powell@southoxon.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 22 September 2020

Vale Cabinet member: Debby Hallett
Tel: 07545 241013
E-mail:  Debby.Hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Review of complaints received during 2018-19 and 
2019-20

Recommendation

That the committee reviews formal complaints received in 2018-19 and 2019-20 and 
performance in responding to complaints against timescales set out in our Corporate 
Complaints Policy.

Purpose of report

1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with a review of formal complaints 
we received during 2018-19 and 2019-20 in line with the corporate complaints procedure.

Strategic objectives 

2. This report sets out formal complaints received by the councils, it therefore underpins all of 
our Corporate Plan objectives; along with our ambitions to provide excellent customer 
service and transparency in decision-making.  By recording complaints, we can 
understand when things have gone wrong resulting in us failing to meet customer 
expectations, failure to provide a service or where we have not followed correct procedure.

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 110

Agenda Item 12

mailto:sarah.james@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Andrea.Powell@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:Debby.Hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


3. Appendix Two includes the official annual complaints reports received from the Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO).

The Complaints Process

4. Our corporate complaints policy and council-wide procedure for dealing with complaints 
ensures that:

 members of the public know what to do if they have a complaint and understand how 
we will deal with it

 staff are confident about what to do when they get a formal complaint

 customers are treated fairly and equally

 we can improve our services by analysing complaints

5. As stipulated in the LGSCO guidance on good practice: the purpose of a complaints 
system is to put right what has gone wrong, and to learn from it. Where a complainant has 
a justified grievance, there is a duty to put things right at the earliest opportunity. 
Depending on the seriousness and type of complaint, putting things right could involve a 
range of outcomes, from a simple written apology to a reimbursement of funds or a 
compensation payment.

6. Following a review of the councils’ corporate complaints process, the policy and procedure 
was updated in June 2019. The key changes made are:

 the timescale for responding to a formal complaint was revised from 21 calendar days 
to 15 working days; this adjustment was made to allow sufficient time for staff to 
investigate and respond, taking account of bank holidays and the Christmas 
closure. 

 responsibilities for response were changed – the service manager responsible for the 
team a complaint is about, now responds to a complaint at stage one, allowing the 
relevant head of service to review and provide a response if the complaint reaches  
stage two.  Previously the relevant head of service responded at stage one and 
another head of service at stage two.

Stage one

7. Each service has nominated officers responsible for logging stage one complaints. The 
relevant service manager will ensure that the complaint is investigated and that a 
response is sent to the complainant within 15 working days. 

Stage two

8. If the complainant is not satisfied with the stage one response, then they can ask for their 
complaint to be reviewed as a stage two within six weeks of the date of the stage one 
response. The complainant must explain why they are not satisfied with the response they 
received at stage one, and what outcome they would like to achieve in pursuing a stage 
two complaint.

9. The complaints team will inform the head of service for the relevant service area that the 
complaint has been received. However, if the Chief Executive or Head of Corporate 
Services considers it more appropriate, a complaint may be re-allocated to an alternative 
head of service.  The head of service will investigate the complaint and prepare a 
response within 15 working days of receipt.

Page 111

Agenda Item 12



The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman

10. If the complainant remains dissatisfied with the stage two response, they have the right to 
ask the LGSCO to investigate their complaint. The LGSCO investigates complaints of 
alleged injustice concerning Local Authorities.

Complaints reporting

11. Historically numbers of complaints have been reported twice yearly in the March and 
September board reports which are available on the councils’ website, and annual reports 
have been brought to this Committee. Reporting of the 2018-19 figures has been delayed 
pending work on a new corporate complaints database which has enabled us to simplify 
and improve the reporting process, and latterly due to relevant staff being involved in the 
response to the Covid19 pandemic.

12. Appendix One sets out the number of complaints received and our performance against 
target for issuing responses. 

13. Our report this year includes a comparison of previous years; as well as to date, 
unpublished data from 2018-19. A true comparison of service teams has not been possible 
this year due to the restructuring of service areas. The new database should allow for this 
in future reports.

South Oxfordshire District Council 
2019-20 saw an increase of only one complaint at stage one on the previous year, with a 
higher number of complaints at stage two than in the previous two years.  There was also 
a higher number being referred to the Ombudsman compared to previous years. 

      Vale of White Horse District Council
Vale received considerably less stage one complaints in 2019-20 compared to 2018-19, 
but a similar number to 2017-18. The noticeable difference is due to a fall in complaints 
received by Finance in 2019-20. Stage two complaints increased by one on the previous 
year, and there was an increase in those referred to the Ombudsman.

14. The LGSCO send annual letters with a summary of their decisions. This is available in 
Appendix Two of this document, it shows a comparison of our performance against other 
district councils. 

LGO investigations

15. The Ombudsman upholds complaints when they find fault in an authority’s actions, 
including where the authority accepted fault before their investigation. A focus on how 
often things go wrong, rather than simple volumes of complaints provides a clearer 
indicator of performance.

16. They recommend ways for authorities to put things right when faults have caused injustice. 
Recommendations try to put people back in the position they were in before the fault.  
Monitoring is carried out to ensure recommendations are complied with. 

17. The Ombudsman encourages the early resolution of complaints and credit authorities that 
have a positive and open approach to resolving complaints, and where satisfactory 
remedies have been provided. 

18. Of the 17 complaints received by the Ombudsman for Vale in 2019-20, five were 
investigated formally and two were upheld. The Ombudsman received 17 complaints for 
South, of which four were investigated and one upheld. This compares with no upheld 
complaints for either councils in the previous year 2018-19. 

Page 112

Agenda Item 12



19. The upheld complaint for South required a remedy of an apology to be sent to the 
complainant.

20. Summaries of the upheld complaints are available in Appendix Two.

Financial Implications

21. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

Legal Implications

22. There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.

Other implications

23. There are no other implications arising directly from this report.

Risks

24. It is important to have a robust and efficient complaints system in place to ensure that 
members of the public receive clear and fair responses to their queries and concerns; and 
to have oversight and review of the process.  This provides transparency for customers 
and manages reputational risk.

Conclusion 

25. This report sets out a review of formal complaints received during 2018-19 and 2019-20. 
The Committee is asked to review complaints received, and response times.

Background papers

 None 

Page 113

Agenda Item 12



Appendix One

South Oxfordshire District Council

     Number of formal complaints received and performance against 
agreed timescales 

1. The following charts show the number of complaints received at each stage of the 
process

2. The following charts show the number of complaints received in 2018-19 for each 
service area at each stage of the complaints process.

Page 114

Agenda Item 12



3. The following charts show the number of complaints received in 2019-20 for each 
service area at each stage of the complaints process.

4. The following charts show service area performance against target in responding to 
complaints in 2019-20.

Page 115

Agenda Item 12



5. The following charts show the outcomes of Ombudsman complaints received in 
2018-19 and 2019-20.

Page 116

Agenda Item 12



Appendix One

Vale of the White Horse District Council

     Number of formal complaints received and performance against 
agreed timescales 

6. The following charts show the number of complaints received at each stage of the 
process

 

7. The following charts show the number of complaints received in 2018-19 for each 
service area at each stage of the complaints process.

Page 117

Agenda Item 12



8. The following charts show the number of complaints received in 2019-20 for each 
service area at each stage of the complaints process.

9. The following charts show service area performance against target in responding to 
complaints in 2019-20.

Page 118

Agenda Item 12



10.The following charts show the outcomes of Ombudsman complaints received in 
2018-19 and 2019-20.

Page 119

Agenda Item 12



Appendix Two

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Summary 2019-20

11.The following charts are an extract from the Ombudsmans report, and show the 
performance of Ombudsman complaints for South Oxfordshire District Council, 
compared with other District Councils.

Upheld Complaints

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations

Satisfactory remedies provided by the authority

12.A summary of the South Upheld complaint:

Ombudsman reference 18 019 249 

Resident X and six other residents complained that the Council delayed and failed to take 
appropriate enforcement action for breaches of planning control on the occupiers of four plots of 
land near their homes. The Council was not at fault for how it carried out its enforcement 
investigation. It was at fault for failing to adequately communicate timescales and decisions to the 

Page 120

Agenda Item 12



complaints. It will apologise to Resident X and the six other residents for the uncertainty and time 
and trouble it caused.

What happened

Resident X and the other residents live in a village near four plots of land, A, B, C and D. 

The four plots are, for planning purposes, separate units of land. The four plots of land were used 
and occupied by gypsies and travellers from the same family. 

The Council’s complaint response to the residents

The Council responded to the resident’s stage one complaint. It said the case was complex and 
each plot of land required specific tailored action as it was individually owned. It acknowledged the 
enforcement process had taken a long time but said this was because it needed robust evidence to 
deal with the planning matters effectively. The Council said it was satisfied it had followed the 
correct processes in dealing with the matters. It said the planning enforcement manager had 
communicated with residents at a Parish Council meeting. It said the need for a multi-agency 
approach had added unforeseen delays.

The residents were unhappy with the Council’s response and wrote to the Council again at stage 
two. They said the Parish Council meeting did not clarify anything. They said the Council promised 
a timetable of enforcement action which it had still not supplied. The residents said the Council 
may have followed processes but had taken no enforcement action at all. The residents said their 
amenity had suffered harm for three years. They said they wanted the Council to enforce the 
planning conditions set out on plot A and wanted the occupiers of plots B and C evicted.

The Council responded to the residents. It told them it was taking formal enforcement action 
against plots B and C and was continuing its investigation into plot A. The Council said it was 
satisfied there was no unnecessary delay and had made its decision in line with the relevant 
guidance. The Council did not uphold the complaint.

The residents remained unhappy and complained to the Ombudsman in March 2019.

The Council’s communication with the residents

The residents said the Council failed to adequately communicate its progress to them. The records 
show the Council communicated with Resident X and the other residents at regular intervals since 
2016. Some information for reasons of confidentiality were correctly not shared with the residents. 
The Council acknowledged to the residents at the Parish Council meeting that some of the delay 
was down to staffing issues, however it should have procedures in place to deal with staff 
absences.

However, the Council’s policy says it will keep persons who report breaches of planning control 
informed of timescales and any decision it makes. The records show the Council agreed to do that 
following the Parish Council meeting at the start of December 2018 by providing timetable of its 
intended action. However, it did not provide anything until February 2019 within the stage 2 
complaint response. While the Council has explained to me the delay in serving the enforcement 
notices on plots B and C, I cannot see any evidence it was communicated to the residents. Given 
the lengthy investigation, I would have expected evidence of timescales and decisions being 
shared with the residents, in line with its policy. There is not, and that was fault. It caused the 
residents uncertainty and time and trouble.

Final decision and recommendation

The Council issued an apology as per the Ombudsman’s recommendation. Because the remedy 
was completed after the agreed date, they recorded a compliance outcome of Remedy complete 
late.

Page 121

Agenda Item 12



13.The following charts are an extract from the Ombudsmans report, and show the 
performance of Ombudsman complaints for Vale of the White Horse District 
Council, compared with other District Councils.

Upheld Complaints

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations

No recommendations were due for compliance in this period

Satisfactory remedies provided by the authority

14.Summaries of the Vale Upheld complaints: 

Ombudsman reference 18 012 758 - This complaint is where we provided a satisfactory 
remedy

The Ombudsman has not found fault in how the Council handled a planning application for 
development at a property neighbouring the complainant’s home. He has found evidence of fault in 
the Council’s handling of the complainant’s complaint, but he considers the Council’s apology 
adequately addresses the injustice caused by this. For these reasons he has ended his 
consideration of this complaint.

The Council’s handling of Mrs X’s complaint

The Ombudsman was satisfied the Council received Mrs X’s initial complaint but did not reply to it. 
This was fault and put Mrs X to the time and trouble of chasing the matter up with the Council and 
resubmitting her complaint. The Council has apologised to Mrs X and the Ombudsman considers 
this adequately addressed the injustice caused to her.

Final decision

Page 122

Agenda Item 12



I have ended my investigation of this complaint as I have not found any evidence of fault by the 
Council in its handling of the planning application. I found fault by the Council in its handling of Mrs 
X’s complaint, but I consider the apology issued to her addressed the injustice caused to her.

Ombudsman reference 19 008 303 

Ms X complained that the Council sent her copies of building control site visit notes that were 
factually incorrect. Ms X says she relied on the notes before seeking legal advice, and this is a cost 
she might have avoided. Ms X would like the Council to pay her legal costs. The Council accepts 
the notes are incorrect and it apologised to Ms X, but refused to pay her legal costs. There was 
fault in the way the Council acted because its site visit notes were incorrect. However, we cannot 
show the fault caused Ms X to incur legal costs, so we do not recommend a remedy.

What happened

Several years ago, Ms X had planning and building control approval to build an extension to her 
home. The plans that were approved included trench foundations infilled with concrete to be laid 
under external and internal walls.

A few years after the extension was complete, cracks began to appear on its walls. Ms X sought 
advice from the architect who had designed the extension, the project manager she had employed 
to oversee works and the builder.

Ms X was advised to contact the Council to get copies of its building control officer’s (BCO) notes. 
The Council provided a copy of its BCO’s notes, which said the builder had been advised to 
construct a concrete raft foundation instead of standard trench foundations.

Ms X says that after reading the notes, she immediately spoke to the builder, who denied the BCO 
had advised him to build a concrete raft foundation. Ms X says she had previously had a dispute 
with the builder and this along with the contents of the BCO’s note led her to conclude the builder 
was at fault.

A few months later there was an on-site meeting attended by all parties. Ms X had taken photos of 
different stages of the extension’s construction, which were dated. There were photos of the 
foundations, which showed:

o there was no concrete raft foundation;

o the builder had not followed the original plans as there were not trench foundations 
under internal walls, which were built on concrete slabs laid on the ground.

The builder claimed the Council had instructed him to build the internal walls on slabs, but the 
Council denied this. The Council denied advising a concrete raft foundation and said that its notes 
were incorrect and probably related to an entirely different site. It pointed out that the dates within 
the notes did not tally with the dates on Ms X’s photos, which showed when construction began. 
The Council said this proved its notes were incorrect.

Ms X complained to the Council. It accepted it was at fault and apologised to Ms X. However, it did 
not agree it should be held liable for her legal costs.

My findings

We are not an appeal body. Our role is to review the process by which the Council’s decisions are 
made. Where we find fault in the decision-making process, we decide whether it caused an 
injustice to the complainant. To do this, we need evidence to show that, but for the fault, the 
outcome would have been different.

Page 123

Agenda Item 12



Our decisions are made on the civil burden of proof, which is sometimes described as the balance 
of probabilities. It means we need evidence that shows that any claimed injustice was more likely 
than not to result from the fault we find.

The Council’s building control visit notes, that were sent to Ms X, were incorrect. They did not 
match the plans, fit with the recollections of the officers and builder or the dates on Ms X’s photos. 
This is fault.

Ms X says that because of the fault, she would not have instructed the solicitor and incurred costs. 
To recommend that the Council now pays these costs, I need evidence to show that it is more 
likely than not that, if the fault had not occurred, Ms X would not have instructed the solicitor. I do 
not consider I can make this recommendation, for the following reasons.

Ms X went straight to the solicitor without checking with all other parties why the BCO appeared to 
be making a different recommendation to the approved plan. Once the architect, project manager, 
the structural engineer and the Council’s BCOs had an opportunity to consider the evidence and 
what had happened, the circumstances changed.

Legal action always involves risk and recovering costs is never certain. Ms X says she had 
reasons, partly connected to her house insurance, why she acted so quickly, but I cannot say it 
was necessary for her to do so. We only rarely recommend councils pay professional fees and 
would only do so in circumstances where there was little choice other than to incur these 
costs. While I understand her reasons for seeking legal advice when she did, this was her choice 
and she might have acted differently and with less urgency. Ms X’s chosen path, while not 
unreasonable, was nevertheless a choice she made when other choices were available.

It is worth noting that requiring details of a complaint and a response to the complaint is the first 
part of our investigations. For most of our investigations, this basic information is considered 
essential before deciding whether to spend public money. Ms X might have made similar checks 
before incurring costs.

Ms X asked the Council for the BCO’s notes but she did not explain how she might use or rely on 
them. If the Council had notice of her intentions, it would have had the opportunity to check its 
records or to send the notes with a disclaimer to limit its liability.

The circumstances changed, but the cracks in the building remained. Even if the Council had acted 
without fault or if it had corrected its records before Ms X instructed her action, she may still have 
sought legal advice on what to do next. Because of this, the costs she incurred after reading the 
BCO’s site visit notes might have been incurred later.

For these reasons, there was fault in the way the Council acted, but I cannot say Ms X’s legal costs 
were caused by the fault.

Final decision

There was fault in the way the Council acted, because the information it sent to Ms X was 
incorrect. I have not recommended a remedy because I have seen no evidence to show the fault 
caused the injustice that is claimed. For these reasons, I have completed my investigation.

Page 124

Agenda Item 12



South Oxfordshire 
District Council
Audit planning report

Year ended 31 March 2020

P
age 125

A
genda Item

 14



2

September 2020

Dear Audit Committee Members

Audit planning report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the 
Joint Audit & Governance Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2019/20 audit in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of 
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to 
ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines our 
planned audit strategy in response to those risks. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee and management, and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 22 September 2020 as well as understand whether there are other matters which 
you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully 

Kevin Suter

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc

Joint Audit & Governance Committee
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
135 Eastern Avenue
Milton Park
Milton, OX14 4SB

P
age 126

A
genda Item

 14



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-
of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors 
and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit 
Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee and management of South Oxfordshire District Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee, and management of South Oxfordshire District Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Joint Audit & Governance Committee, and management of South Oxfordshire District 
Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our 
2019/20 audit 
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit 
materiality

04 Scope of our 
audit

05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit 
timeline07 Independence08

Value for 
Money Risks

03

V
F
M

P
age 127

A
genda Item

 14

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/


4

Overview of our 2019/20 audit  
strategy

01 01

P
age 128

A
genda Item

 14



5

Overview of our 2019/20 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus

Risk 
identified Change from 

PY
Details

Misstatements due to 
fraud or error

Fraud risk No change in 
risk or focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to 
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by 
overriding controls that would otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

Risk of fraud in 
revenue and 
expenditure 
recognition, through 
inappropriate
capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure

Fraud risk No change in 
risk or focus

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue 
recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial 
Reporting Council, which states that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements 
may occur by the manipulation of expenditure recognition. We have assessed the risk is most likely to 
occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure.

Valuation of Land and 
Buildings

Other risk No change in 
risk or focus The value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment Properties (IP) represent significant 

balances in the Council’s accounts and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and 
depreciation charges. Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation 
techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet, covering both those assets 
that are revalued within the year and the continuing material accuracy of those valued in prior periods.

Pension Liability 
Valuation

Other risk No change in 
risk or focus

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council to make extensive 
disclosures within its financial statements regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme administered by Somerset County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore management 
engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to 
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value 
estimates.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit Committee 
with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.  

P
age 129

A
genda Item

 14



6

Overview of our 2019/20 audit strategy

Materiality

Planning
materiality

£1.912m
Performance 

materiality

£0.956m
Audit

differences

£95.6k

Materiality has been set at £1.912m, which represents 2% of the prior year’s gross expenditure on provision of services.

Performance materiality has been set at £0.956m, which represents 50% of planning materiality (PM).  We have 
used 50% of PM due to the volume of errors found in the 2018/19 financial statements.   

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income 
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, and collection fund) greater than £95.6k.  Other 
misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit 
Committee.

P
age 130

A
genda Item

 14



7

Overview of our 2019/20 audit strategy 

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

▪ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of South Oxfordshire District Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2020 
and of the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

▪ Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

▪ Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
▪ Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
▪ The quality of systems and processes;
▪ Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and
▪ Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council. 

Taking the above into account, and as articulated in this audit plan, our professional responsibilities require us to assess independently the risks associated with 
providing an audit opinion, and to undertake appropriate procedures in response to that assessment. Our Terms of Appointment with PSAA allow them to vary the fee 
dependent on “the auditor’s assessment of risk and the work needed to meet their professional responsibilities”. PSAA are aware that the setting of scale fees has not 
kept pace with the changing requirements of external audit, with increased focus on, for example, the valuations of land and buildings, the auditing of groups, the 
valuation of pension obligations, the introduction of new accounting standards such as IFRS 9, 15 and 16 in recent years as well as the expansion of factors impacting 
the value for money conclusion. Therefore to the extent any of these are relevant in the context of South Oxfordshire District Council’s audit, we will discuss these 
with management as to the impact on the scale fee.

P
age 131

A
genda Item

 14



8

Audit risks02 01

P
age 132

A
genda Item

 14



9

Audit risks 

Our response to significant risks 

What will we do?

We will:

• Enquire of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in 
place to address those risks.

• Understand the oversight given by those charged with governance of 
management’s processes over fraud.

• Consider the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to 
address the risk of fraud.

• Perform mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified 
fraud risks, including testing of journal entries and other adjustments 
in the preparation of the financial statements.

• Review accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.

• Evaluate the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free 
of material misstatements whether caused by 
fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in 
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of 
its ability to manipulate accounting records 
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent 
financial statements by overriding controls that 
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We 
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every 
audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud 
or error*

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

P
age 133

A
genda Item

 14



10

Audit risks 

Our response to significant risks (continued) 

What will we do?

We will:

• Test PPE additions using lowered testing thresholds, to ensure they are 
appropriately supported by documentary evidence, and that the 
expenditure incurred and capitalised is clearly capital in nature; 

• Seek to identify and understand the basis for any significant journals 
transferring expenditure from non-capital codes to PPE additions or 
from revenue to capital codes on the general ledger at the end of the 
year; and

• If material, we will substantively test the balance of Revenue 
Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) to ensure 
that it complies with Local Government Act 2003 Regulation 25, and 
related regulations and directions (2017/18 Code Part 2 Appendix B 
4.6).

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that 
revenue may be misstated due to improper 
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this 
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which 
states that auditors should also consider the risk 
that material misstatements may occur by the 
manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

We have assessed that the risk is most likely to 
occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure, as there is an incentive to 
reduce expenditure which is funded from Council 
Tax. This could then result in funding of that 
expenditure, that should properly be defined as 
revenue, through inappropriate sources such as 
capital receipts, capital grants, or borrowing.

Risk of fraud in revenue and 
expenditure recognition, 
through inappropriate 
capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure*

Financial statement impact

We have assessed that the risk of 
fraud in revenue and expenditure 
recognition is most likely to occur 
through the inappropriate 
capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure. This would have the 
impact of reducing revenue 
expenditure and increasing 
additions to Property, Plant and 
Equipment.

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

P
age 134

A
genda Item

 14



11

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings, and Investment Properties.

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment 
Properties (IP) represent significant balances in the Council’s accounts 
and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and 
depreciation charges. Management is required to make material 
judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the 
year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

Covid-19 is likely to influence the valuation of the Council’s investment 
properties, and other assets.  The valuation of property can be impacted 
in an abnormal market where there is a lack of comparative market 
transactions, where income is suddenly and dramatically reduced, and 
where the viability of tenants may be uncertain. 

We will:
• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuers, including the adequacy of the 

scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work;

• Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation (e.g. 
floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre) and challenge the key 
assumptions used by the valuers;

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 5 
year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually for Investment 
Property. We will also consider if there are any specific changes to assets that have 
occurred and whether these have been communicated to the valuers;

• Review PPE assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 to confirm that the remaining 
asset base is not materially misstated; 

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; and

• Test to confirm that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial 
statements.

• Use our audit specialists to evaluate the material accuracy of a sample of properties, as a 
direct result of impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.

P
age 135

A
genda Item

 14



12

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Pension Liability Valuation
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the 
Council to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements 
regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
administered by Somerset County Council. 

The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and 
the Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance 
sheet. At 31 March 2019 this totalled £62.6 million. The information 
disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the 
actuary to the County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and 
judgement and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake 
the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to 
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the 
assumptions underlying fair value estimates. 

In the prior year the ‘McCloud’ judgement impacted the estimate and 
resulted in an amendment of the net pension liability. This will again be 
a key assumption in estimating the pension liability. We would expect 
the Authority’s actuary to be basing their assumptions taking into 
account the Authority’s specific membership profile and how it has been 
impacted by the judgement. We also note that there are further 
developments in this area, again coming after the balance sheet date 
with the Government’s consultation on the proposed resolution.

We will:
• Liaise with the auditors of Oxfordshire County Council Pension Fund,  to obtain 

assurances over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to South Oxfordshire 
District Council;

• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary including the assumptions they have used 
by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the National Audit 
Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by 
the EY actuarial team; and 

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s 
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.

P
age 136

A
genda Item

 14



13

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 137

A
genda Item

 14



14

Value for Money

Background

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion. 

For 2019/20 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise 
your arrangements to:

▪ Take informed decisions;
▪ Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
▪ Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework 
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required 
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of 
Audit Practice defines as:

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would 
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on 
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work 
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further 
work. We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper arrangements at both sector 
and organisation-specific level.

Our risk assessment therefore considers both the potential financial impact of the issues we have identified, 
and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other 
stakeholders. This has resulted in the identification of a significant risk at the planning stage of our audit to 
date, in terms of:  

• The impact of exit of the 5 C’s Contract; 

Our assessment is ongoing, and will be kept under review, 

V
F
M

Proper arrangements for 
securing value for money  

Informed 
decision making 

Working with 
partners and 
third parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

P
age 138

A
genda Item

 14



15

Value for Money

Value for Money Risks

V
F
M

What is the significant value for money risk? What arrangements 
does the risk affect?

What will we do?

The impact of the exit of the 5C’s contract 

In 2016, South Oxfordshire District Council (the Council) entered into two contracts for the 
provision of corporate services, in partnership with Hart District Council, Mendip District 
Council, Vale of the White Horse District Council and Havant Borough Council (known as the 
“Five Councils”). 

These contracts were designed to generate savings of over £50 million for the Five Councils 
across their lifetime of nine years but the Councils have previously had to renegotiate Lot 1 
and pulled out of Lot 2 due to the issues with the way the contracts were constructed and 
the implications for the practical implementation of them.  

The 5 Councils are now exiting the contract for some services as at 31 March 2020.  Given 
the short timescale for termination of the contract there is a risk that both the services and 
financial performance of the Council would be negatively impacted if new arrangements, 
from 1 April 2020, are difficult to implement or do not deliver the intended benefits in a 
sufficiently timely manner.

Deploy resources in a 
sustainable manner

Informed Decision 
making

We will:

• review the arrangements in place to 
monitor the exit of the 5 C’s contract 
for the relevant services.

• review the arrangements to plan and 
implement the revised delivery 
arrangements, including risk 
management processes. 

P
age 139

A
genda Item

 14



16

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 140

A
genda Item

 14



17

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2019/20 has been set at £1.912m. This
represents 2% of the Council’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services. It
will be reassessed throughout the audit process. We have set materiality using gross
revenue expenditure as our expectation is that users of the Council’s accounts are
focussed on how it uses its resources to provide services to local people. We have used
2% based on our assessment of the Council’s financial position, levels of public
interest, lack of planned reorganisations and sources of borrowing. We have provided
supplemental information about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£95.6m
Planning

materiality

£1.912m

Performance 
materiality

£0.956m
Audit

differences

£95.6k

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements 
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial 
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of 
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at 
£0.956m which represents 50% of planning materiality. This takes into 
account the level of issues raised during our 2018/19 audit.

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified 
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all 
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet and collection fund. 
Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and 
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves 
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be 
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Committee, 
or are important from a qualitative perspective. 

Specific materiality – We have also set a materiality of £1k for 
remuneration disclosures, related party transactions, members’ allowances 
and exit packages, which reflects our understanding that an amount less 
than our materiality would influence the economic decisions of users of the 
financial statements in relation to these areas.

Key definitions

We request that the Audit Committee confirm its understanding of, and agreement to, 
these materiality and reporting levels.

P
age 141

A
genda Item

 14



18

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 142

A
genda Item

 14



19

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit 

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK). 

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we 
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy

P
age 143

A
genda Item

 14



20

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves: 
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and

• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2019/20 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit, as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required 
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and 

• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.

We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for 
improvement, to management and the Policy & Organisation Board. The successful use of analytics and a technologically enabled audit is an underpinning concept of 
our contract with PSAA.  

Internal audit:
We will regularly meet with the Internal Audit Manager, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, 
together with reports from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit work, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial 
statements, the Narrative Statement or the Annual Governance Statement.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 144

A
genda Item

 14



21

Audit team06 01

P
age 145

A
genda Item

 14



22

Audit team

Audit team 
Audit team structure:

Working together with the Council

We are working together with officers to identify continuing improvements in communication and processes for the 2019/20 audit. 

We will continue to keep our audit approach under review to streamline it where possible.

Malcolm  Haines

Manager

MHaines@uk.ey.com

Kevin Suter

Associate Partner

ksuter@uk.ey.com 

P
age 146

A
genda Item

 14



23

Audit team

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the 
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings

Management’s valuation experts: 

- Lambert, Smith, Hampton as valuers for General Fund properties and investment properties.

Auditor Specialists:

- EY Real Estate.

Pensions disclosure
PwC as consulting actuary appointed by the NAO, and EY internal pensions specialists

Hymans Robertson– Actuary to Oxfordshire Pension Fund

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and 
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular 
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used; 

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

P
age 147

A
genda Item

 14



24

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 148

A
genda Item

 14



25

Audit timeline

Below is an indicative timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2019/20. The 
final timetable will depend on our ability to obtain sufficient, appropriate audit evidence to support our audit opinion.  The timetable has been impacted compared to 
normal circumstances, due to the delayed sign-off of the 2018/19 accounts, and the impact of Covid-19.

From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Joint Audit & Governance Committee and we will discuss them with the 
Committee Chair as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Audit phase Timetable Audit committee timetable Deliverables

Planning:

Risk assessment and setting of scopes

Walkthrough of key systems and 
processes

January – September 
2020

September 2020
Audit Planning Report

Interim audit testing and completion of 
walkthrough of key systems and 
processes March, April Report by exception only.

Year end audit fieldwork 

October – December 
2020

January 2021

Audit Results Report

Audit opinions and completion certificates

Audit Completion procedures January 2021 January 2021 Audit Results Report

Audit opinions and completion certificates

February 2021 Annual Audit Letter

P
age 149

A
genda Item

 14



26

Independence08 01

P
age 150

A
genda Item

 14



27

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis 
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we 
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these 
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.

We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to 
provide non-audit services that has been submitted.

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period, 
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and 
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY) 
including consideration of all relationships between 
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they 
are considered to be effective, including any 
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;

► Information about the general policies and process 
within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.

► Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply 
more restrictive independence rules than permitted 
under the Ethical Standard

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person, 
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit 
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to 
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties 
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these 
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address 
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to 
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;

► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any 
non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;

► Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;

► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit 
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy; 

► Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms; 
and

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

Introduction

P
age 151

A
genda Item

 14



28

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats, 
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only 
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services; 
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees. 

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.  

None of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 and the services have been approved in accordance with 
your policy on pre-approval. The ratio of non audit fees to audits fees is not permitted to exceed 70%.

At the time of writing, we have proposed to undertake the role of reporting accountant for the DWP’s Housing Benefit Assurance Process (HBAP). We have determined 
appropriate safeguards. 

A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We 
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance 
with Ethical Standard part 4.

There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report. 

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent 
and the objectivity and independence of Kevin Suter, your audit engagement partner, and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in 
the financial statements.

There are no self review threats at the date of this report. 

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of 
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report. 

P
age 152

A
genda Item

 14



29

Independence

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.

There are no other threats at the date of this report. 

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Other communications
EY Transparency Report 2019

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence 
and integrity are maintained. 

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm 
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2019 and can be found here: 

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/who-we-are/transparency-report-2019

P
age 153

A
genda Item

 14

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/who-we-are/transparency-report-2019


30

Appendices09 01

P
age 154

A
genda Item

 14



31

Appendix A

Fees
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published the fee scale for the audit of the 2019/20 accounts of opted-in principal local government and police bodies. 

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements 
of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

Note 1:  Explanation for 2018/19 additional fee:
• We have proposed a total additional fee of £28,371, to cover additional work on 

the errors and delays in the 18/19 financial statements , and the three value for 
money significant risks. This has yet to be finalised and agreed with management, 
and will also remain subject to approval by PSAA.

Note 2: 19/20 VFM work:  
• The planned fee for the 2019/20 VFM risk, set out on page 15, remains subject to 

final scoping and agreement with management.

Overall assumptions for 2019/20 Fee

The agreed fee presented is based on the following general assumptions:

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

► The production of materially accurate draft accounts;

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;

► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

► The Council has an effective control environment.

The outline timetable on page 25 is contingent on the above factors.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation to 
the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public and formal 
objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

General Commentary on Scale Fees:

For 2019/20, the scale fee will be impacted by a range of factors (see page 7) which 
will result in additional work comparative to when he scale fee was set.  As a result 
we do not believe the scale fee is not commensurate to the risks and inputs required 
do deliver a quality audit.  We set out the areas of the potential additional fee for this 
on the next two pages. 

All fees exclude VAT

Planned fee 
2019/20

Scale fee
2019/20

Final Fee
2018/19

£ £ £

Code work 37,103
Note 2

37,103 Note 1

Total audit 37,103
Note 2

37,103 Note 1

Other non-audit services not 
covered above (Housing
Benefits) 

9,905 N/a 10.933

Total fees 47,008 37,103

P
age 155

A
genda Item

 14



32

Summary of key factors

Fees
We do not believe the existing scale fees provide a clear link with both a public sector organisation’s risk and complexity.  For an organisation such as the Council, the scale 
fee does not adequately cover the time required to complete a quality audit.  A summary of the key factors is set out below. 

Appendix A

1. Status of sector.  Financial reporting and decision making in local government has become increasingly complex, for example from the growth in 

commercialisation, speculative ventures and investments. This has also brought increasing risk about the financial sustainability / going concern of bodies given 

the current status of the sector.

• To address this risk our procedures now entail higher samples sizes of transactions, the need to increase our use of analytics data to test more 

transactions at a greater level of depth.  This requires a continual investment in our data analytics tools and audit technology to enhance audit quality. 

This also has an impact on local government with the need to also keep pace with technological advancement in data management and processing for 

audit.

2. Audit of estimates.  There has been a significant increase in the focus on areas of the financial statements where judgemental estimates are made. This is to 

address regulatory expectations from FRC reviews on the extent of audit procedures performed in areas such as the valuation of land and buildings and pension 

assets and liabilities. 

• To address these findings, our required procedures now entail higher samples sizes, increased requirements for corroborative evidence to support the 

assumptions and use of our internal specialists. 

3. Regulatory environment.  Other pressures come from the changing regulatory landscape and audit market dynamics:

• Parliamentary select committee reports, the Brydon and Kingman reviews, plus within the public sector the Redmond review and the new NAO Code of 

Audit practice are all shaping the future of Local Audit.  These regulatory pressures all have a focus on audit quality and what is required of external 

auditors.

• This means continual investment in our audit quality infrastructure in response to these regulatory reviews, the increasing fines for not meeting the 

requirements plus changes in auditing and accounting standards.  As a firm our compliance costs have now doubled as a proportion of revenue in the last 

five years.  The regulatory lens on Local Audit specifically, is greater.  We are three times more likely to be reviewed by a quality regulator than other 

audits, again increasing our compliance costs of being within this market.

P
age 156

A
genda Item

 14



33

Summary of key factors (cont’d)

Fees

Appendix A

4. As a result Public sector auditing has become less attractive as a profession, especially due to the compressed timetable, regulatory pressure and greater 

compliance requirements. This has contributed to higher attrition rates in our profession over the past year and the shortage of specialist public sector audit staff 

and multidisciplinary teams (for example valuation, pensions, tax and accounting) during the compressed timetables. 

• We need to invest over a five to ten-year cycle to recruit, train and develop a sustainable specialist team of public sector audit staff. We and other firms 

in the sector face intense competition for the best people, with appropriate public sector skills, as a result of a shrinking resource pool. We need to 

remunerate our people appropriately to maintain the attractiveness of the profession, provide the highest performing audit teams and protect audit 

quality. 

• We acknowledge that local authorities are also facing challenges to recruit and retain staff with the necessary financial reporting skills and capabilities.  

This though also exacerbates the challenge for external audits, as where there are shortages it impacts on the ability to deliver on a timely basis. 

Next steps

• In light of recent communication from PSAA, we will need to quantify the impact of the above to be able to accurately re-assess what the baseline fee is for the 
Council should be in the current environment.  Once this is done we will be able to discuss at a more detailed level with you.

P
age 157

A
genda Item

 14



34

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Joint Audit & Governance Committee of acceptance of terms of 
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. 

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit 
approach 

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings from 
the audit 

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance

We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee.

P
age 158

A
genda Item

 14



35

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by 
law or regulation 

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected 

• Corrected misstatements that are significant

• Material misstatements corrected by management 

Audit results report

Fraud • Enquiries of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee to determine whether they have 
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties 
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity 

Audit results report

P
age 159

A
genda Item

 14



36

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 
and independence

Audit planning report

Audit results report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

Consideration of laws and 
regulations 

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and 
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation 
on tipping off

• Enquiry of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee into possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial 
statements and that the Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit results report

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies 
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed

• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

• Any non-audit work 

Audit planning report

Audit results report

P
age 160

A
genda Item

 14



37

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required 
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting. 

• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Reading other information published with the financial statements, and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our 
understanding and the financial statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and 
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Purpose and evaluation of materiality 

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, 
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial 
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the 
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements. 

Materiality determines:

• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the 
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could 
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

P
age 161

A
genda Item

 14



Vale of White Horse 
District Council
Audit planning report

Year ended 31 March 2020

P
age 162

A
genda Item

 14



2

September 2020

Dear Audit Committee Members

Audit planning report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the 
Joint Audit & Governance Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2019/20 audit in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of 
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to 
ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines our 
planned audit strategy in response to those risks. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee and management, and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 22 September 2020 as well as understand whether there are other matters which 
you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully 

Kevin Suter

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc

Joint Audit & Governance Committee
Vale of White Horse and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
135 Eastern Avenue
Milton Park
Milton, OX14 4SB

P
age 163

A
genda Item

 14



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-
of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors 
and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit 
Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee and management of Vale of White Horse District Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee, and management of Vale of White Horse District Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Joint Audit & Governance Committee, and management of Vale of White Horse District 
Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our 
2019/20 audit 
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit 
materiality

04 Scope of our 
audit

05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit 
timeline07 Independence08

Value for 
Money Risks

03

V
F
M

P
age 164

A
genda Item

 14

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/


4

Overview of our 2019/20 audit  
strategy

01 01

P
age 165

A
genda Item

 14



5

Overview of our 2019/20 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus

Risk 
identified Change from 

PY
Details

Misstatements due to 
fraud or error

Fraud risk No change in 
risk or focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to 
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by 
overriding controls that would otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

Risk of fraud in 
revenue and 
expenditure 
recognition, through 
inappropriate
capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure

Fraud risk No change in 
risk or focus

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue 
recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial 
Reporting Council, which states that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements 
may occur by the manipulation of expenditure recognition. We have assessed the risk is most likely to 
occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure.

Valuation of Land and 
Buildings

Other risk
No change in 
risk or focus

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment Properties (IP) represent significant 
balances in the Council’s accounts and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and 
depreciation charges. Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation 
techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet, covering both those assets 
that are revalued within the year and the continuing material accuracy of those valued in prior periods.

Pension Liability 
Valuation

Other risk No change in 
risk or focus

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council to make extensive 
disclosures within its financial statements regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme administered by Somerset County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore management 
engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to 
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value 
estimates.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit Committee 
with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.  

P
age 166

A
genda Item

 14



6

Overview of our 2019/20 audit strategy

Materiality

Planning
materiality

£1.821m
Performance 

materiality

£0.911m
Audit

differences

£91.1k

Materiality has been set at £1.821m, which represents 2% of the prior year’s gross expenditure on provision of services.

Performance materiality has been set at £0.911m, which represents 50% of planning materiality (PM).  We have 
used 50% of PM given the volume of errors found in the 2018/19 financial statements.   

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income 
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, and collection fund) greater than £91.1k.  Other 
misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit 
Committee.

P
age 167

A
genda Item

 14



7

Overview of our 2019/20 audit strategy 

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

▪ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Vale of White Horse District Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2020 
and of the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

▪ Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

▪ Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
▪ Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
▪ The quality of systems and processes;
▪ Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and
▪ Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council. 

Taking the above into account, and as articulated in this audit plan, our professional responsibilities require us to assess independently the risks associated with 
providing an audit opinion, and to undertake appropriate procedures in response to that assessment. Our Terms of Appointment with PSAA allow them to vary the fee 
dependent on “the auditor’s assessment of risk and the work needed to meet their professional responsibilities”. PSAA are aware that the setting of scale fees has not 
kept pace with the changing requirements of external audit, with increased focus on, for example, the valuations of land and buildings, the auditing of groups, the 
valuation of pension obligations, the introduction of new accounting standards such as IFRS 9, 15 and 16 in recent years as well as the expansion of factors impacting 
the value for money conclusion. Therefore to the extent any of these are relevant in the context of Vale of White Horse District Council’s audit, we will discuss these 
with management as to the impact on the scale fee.

P
age 168

A
genda Item

 14



8

Audit risks02 01

P
age 169

A
genda Item

 14



9

Audit risks 

Our response to significant risks 

What will we do?

We will:

• Enquire of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in 
place to address those risks.

• Understand the oversight given by those charged with governance of 
management’s processes over fraud.

• Consider the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to 
address the risk of fraud.

• Perform mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified 
fraud risks, including testing of journal entries and other adjustments 
in the preparation of the financial statements.

• Review accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.

• Evaluate the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free 
of material misstatements whether caused by 
fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in 
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of 
its ability to manipulate accounting records 
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent 
financial statements by overriding controls that 
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We 
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every 
audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud 
or error*

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

P
age 170

A
genda Item

 14



10

Audit risks 

Our response to significant risks (continued) 

What will we do?

We will:

• Test PPE additions using lowered testing thresholds, to ensure they are 
appropriately supported by documentary evidence, and that the 
expenditure incurred and capitalised is clearly capital in nature; 

• Seek to identify and understand the basis for any significant journals 
transferring expenditure from non-capital codes to PPE additions or 
from revenue to capital codes on the general ledger at the end of the 
year; and

• If material, we will substantively test the balance of Revenue 
Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) to ensure 
that it complies with Local Government Act 2003 Regulation 25, and 
related regulations and directions (2017/18 Code Part 2 Appendix B 
4.6).

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that 
revenue may be misstated due to improper 
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this 
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which 
states that auditors should also consider the risk 
that material misstatements may occur by the 
manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

We have assessed that the risk is most likely to 
occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure, as there is an incentive to 
reduce expenditure which is funded from Council 
Tax. This could then result in funding of that 
expenditure, that should properly be defined as 
revenue, through inappropriate sources such as 
capital receipts, capital grants, or borrowing.

Risk of fraud in revenue and 
expenditure recognition, 
through inappropriate 
capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure*

Financial statement impact

We have assessed that the risk of 
fraud in revenue and expenditure 
recognition is most likely to occur 
through the inappropriate 
capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure. This would have the 
impact of reducing revenue 
expenditure and increasing 
additions to Property, Plant and 
Equipment.

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

P
age 171

A
genda Item

 14



11

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings, and Investment Properties.

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment 
Properties (IP) represent significant balances in the Council’s accounts 
and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and 
depreciation charges. Management is required to make material 
judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the 
year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

Covid-19 is likely to influence the valuation of the Council’s investment 
properties, and other assets.  The valuation of property can be impacted 
in an abnormal market where there is a lack of comparative market 
transactions, where income is suddenly and dramatically reduced, and 
where the viability of tenants may be uncertain. 

We will:
• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuers, including the adequacy of the 

scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work;

• Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation (e.g. 
floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre) and challenge the key 
assumptions used by the valuers;

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 5 
year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually for Investment 
Property. We will also consider if there are any specific changes to assets that have 
occurred and whether these have been communicated to the valuers;

• Review PPE assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 to confirm that the remaining 
asset base is not materially misstated; 

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; and

• Test to confirm that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial 
statements.

• Use our audit specialists to evaluate the material accuracy of a sample of properties, as a 
direct result of impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.

P
age 172

A
genda Item

 14



12

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Pension Liability Valuation
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the 
Council to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements 
regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
administered by Somerset County Council. 

The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and 
the Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance 
sheet. At 31 March 2019 this totalled £47.7 million. The information 
disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the 
actuary to the County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and 
judgement and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake 
the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to 
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the 
assumptions underlying fair value estimates. 

In the prior year the ‘McCloud’ judgement impacted the estimate and 
resulted in an amendment of the net pension liability. This will again be 
a key assumption in estimating the pension liability. We would expect 
the Authority’s actuary to be basing their assumptions taking into 
account the Authority’s specific membership profile and how it has been 
impacted by the judgement. We also note that there are further 
developments in this area, again coming after the balance sheet date 
with the Government’s consultation on the proposed resolution.

We will:
• Liaise with the auditors of Oxfordshire County Council Pension Fund,  to obtain 

assurances over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to Vale of White Horse 
District Council;

• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary including the assumptions they have used 
by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the National Audit 
Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by 
the EY actuarial team; and 

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s 
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.

P
age 173

A
genda Item

 14



13

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 174

A
genda Item

 14



14

Value for Money

Background

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion. 

For 2019/20 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise 
your arrangements to:

▪ Take informed decisions;
▪ Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
▪ Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework 
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required 
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of 
Audit Practice defines as:

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would 
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on 
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work 
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further 
work. We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper arrangements at both sector 
and organisation-specific level.

Our risk assessment therefore considers both the potential financial impact of the issues we have identified, 
and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other 
stakeholders. This has resulted in the identification of a significant risk at the planning stage of our audit to 
date, in terms of:  

• The impact of exit of the 5 C’s Contract; 

Our assessment is ongoing, and will be kept under review, 

V
F
M

Proper arrangements for 
securing value for money  

Informed 
decision making 

Working with 
partners and 
third parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

P
age 175

A
genda Item

 14



15

Value for Money

Value for Money Risks

V
F
M

What is the significant value for money risk? What arrangements 
does the risk affect?

What will we do?

The impact of the exit of the 5C’s contract 

In 2016, Vale of White Horse District Council (the Council) entered into two contracts for the 
provision of corporate services, in partnership with Hart District Council, Mendip District 
Council, South Oxfordshire District Council and Havant Borough Council (known as the “Five 
Councils”). 

These contracts were designed to generate savings of over £50 million for the Five Councils 
across their lifetime of nine years but the Councils have had to previously renegotiate Lot 1, 
and pull out of Lot 2, due to the issues with the way the contracts were constructed and the 
implications for the practical implementation of them.  

The 5 Councils are now exiting the contract for some services as at 31 March 2020.  Given 
the short timescale for termination of the contract there is a risk that both the services and 
financial performance of the Council would be negatively impacted if new arrangements, 
from 1 April 2020, are difficult to implement or do not deliver the intended benefits in a 
sufficiently timely manner.

Deploy resources in a 
sustainable manner

Informed Decision 
making

We will:

• review the arrangements in place to 
monitor the exit of the 5 C’s contract 
for the relevant services.

• review the arrangements to plan and 
implement the revised delivery 
arrangements, including risk 
management processes. 

P
age 176

A
genda Item

 14



16

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 177

A
genda Item

 14



17

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2019/20 has been set at £1.821m. This
represents 2% of the Council’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services. It
will be reassessed throughout the audit process. We have set materiality using gross
revenue expenditure as our expectation is that users of the Council’s accounts are
focussed on how it uses its resources to provide services to local people. We have used
2% based on our assessment of the Council’s financial position, levels of public
interest, lack of planned reorganisations and sources of borrowing. We have provided
supplemental information about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£91.1m
Planning

materiality

£1.821m

Performance 
materiality

£0.911m
Audit

differences

£91.1k

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements 
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial 
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of 
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at 
£0.911m which represents 50% of planning materiality. This takes into 
account the level of issues raised during our 2018/19 audit.

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified 
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all 
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet and collection fund. 
Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and 
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves 
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be 
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Committee, 
or are important from a qualitative perspective. 

Specific materiality – We have also set a materiality of £1k for 
remuneration disclosures, related party transactions, members’ allowances 
and exit packages, which reflects our understanding that an amount less 
than our materiality would influence the economic decisions of users of the 
financial statements in relation to these areas.

Key definitions

We request that the Audit Committee confirm its understanding of, and agreement to, 
these materiality and reporting levels.

P
age 178

A
genda Item

 14



18

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 179

A
genda Item

 14



19

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit 

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK). 

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we 
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy

P
age 180

A
genda Item

 14



20

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves: 
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and

• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2019/20 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit, as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required 
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and 

• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.

We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for 
improvement, to management and the Policy & Organisation Board. The successful use of analytics and a technologically enabled audit is an underpinning concept of 
our contract with PSAA.  

Internal audit:
We will regularly meet with the Internal Audit Manager, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, 
together with reports from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit work, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial 
statements, the Narrative Statement or the Annual Governance Statement.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 181

A
genda Item

 14



21

Audit team06 01

P
age 182

A
genda Item

 14



22

Audit team

Audit team 
Audit team structure:

Working together with the Council

We are working together with officers to identify continuing improvements in communication and processes for the 2019/20 audit. 

We will continue to keep our audit approach under review to streamline it where possible.

Malcolm  Haines

Manager

MHaines@uk.ey.com

Kevin Suter

Associate Partner

ksuter@uk.ey.com 

P
age 183

A
genda Item

 14



23

Audit team

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the 
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings

Management’s valuation experts: 

- Lambert, Smith, Hampton as valuers for General Fund properties and investment properties.

Auditor Specialists:

- EY Real Estate.

Pensions disclosure
PwC as consulting actuary appointed by the NAO, and EY internal pensions specialists

Hymans Robertson– Actuary to Oxfordshire Pension Fund

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and 
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular 
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used; 

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

P
age 184

A
genda Item

 14



24

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 185

A
genda Item

 14



25

Audit timeline

Below is an indicative timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2019/20. The 
final timetable will depend on our ability to obtain sufficient, appropriate audit evidence to support our audit opinion.  The timetable has been impacted compared to 
normal circumstances, due to the delayed sign-off of the 2018/19 accounts, and the impact of Covid-19.

From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Joint Audit & Governance Committee and we will discuss them with the 
Committee Chair as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Audit phase Timetable Audit committee timetable Deliverables

Planning:

Risk assessment and setting of scopes

Walkthrough of key systems and 
processes

January – September 
2020

September 2020
Audit Planning Report

Interim audit testing and completion of 
walkthrough of key systems and 
processes March, April Report by exception only.

Year end audit fieldwork 

October – December 
2020

January 2021

Audit Results Report

Audit opinions and completion certificates

Audit Completion procedures January 2021 January 2021 Audit Results Report

Audit opinions and completion certificates

February 2021 Annual Audit Letter

P
age 186

A
genda Item

 14



26

Independence08 01

P
age 187

A
genda Item

 14



27

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis 
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we 
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these 
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.

We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to 
provide non-audit services that has been submitted.

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period, 
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and 
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY) 
including consideration of all relationships between 
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they 
are considered to be effective, including any 
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;

► Information about the general policies and process 
within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.

► Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply 
more restrictive independence rules than permitted 
under the Ethical Standard

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person, 
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit 
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to 
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties 
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these 
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address 
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to 
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;

► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any 
non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;

► Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;

► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit 
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy; 

► Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms; 
and

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

Introduction

P
age 188

A
genda Item

 14



28

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats, 
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only 
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services; 
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees. 

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.  

None of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 and the services have been approved in accordance with 
your policy on pre-approval. The ratio of non audit fees to audits fees is not permitted to exceed 70%.

At the time of writing, we have proposed to undertake the role of reporting accountant for the DWP’s Housing Benefit Assurance Process (HBAP). We have determined 
appropriate safeguards. 

A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We 
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance 
with Ethical Standard part 4.

There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report. 

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent 
and the objectivity and independence of Kevin Suter, your audit engagement partner, and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in 
the financial statements.

There are no self review threats at the date of this report. 

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of 
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report. 

P
age 189

A
genda Item

 14



29

Independence

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.

There are no other threats at the date of this report. 

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Other communications
EY Transparency Report 2019

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence 
and integrity are maintained. 

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm 
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2019 and can be found here: 

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/who-we-are/transparency-report-2019

P
age 190

A
genda Item

 14

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/who-we-are/transparency-report-2019


30

Appendices09 01

P
age 191

A
genda Item

 14



31

Appendix A

Fees
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published the fee scale for the audit of the 2019/20 accounts of opted-in principal local government and police bodies. 

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements 
of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

Note 1:  Explanation for 2018/19 additional fee:
• We have proposed a total (provisional) additional fee of £19,712, to cover 

additional work on the errors and delays in the 18/19 financial statements , and 
the two value for money significant risks. This has yet to be finalised and agreed 
with management, and will also remain subject to approval by PSAA.

Note 2: 19/20 VFM work:  
• The planned fee for the 2019/20 VFM risk, set out on page 15, remains subject to 

final scoping and agreement with management.

Overall assumptions for 2019/20 Fee

The agreed fee presented is based on the following general assumptions:

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

► The production of materially accurate draft accounts;

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;

► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

► The Council has an effective control environment.

The outline timetable on page 25 is contingent on the above factors.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation to 
the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public and formal 
objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

General Commentary on Scale Fees:

For 2019/20, the scale fee will be impacted by a range of factors (see page 7) which 
will result in additional work comparative to when he scale fee was set.  As a result 
we do not believe the scale fee is not commensurate to the risks and inputs required 
do deliver a quality audit.  We set out the areas of the potential additional fee for this 
on the next two pages. 

All fees exclude VAT

Planned fee 
2019/20

Scale fee
2019/20

Final Fee
2018/19

£ £ £

Code work 36,289
Note 2

36,289 Note 1

Total audit 36,289
Note 2

36,289 Note 1

Other non-audit services not 
covered above (Housing
Benefits) 

9,905 N/a 9,433

Total fees 46,194 36,289

P
age 192

A
genda Item

 14



32

Summary of key factors

Fees
We do not believe the existing scale fees provide a clear link with both a public sector organisation’s risk and complexity.  For an organisation such as the Council, the scale 
fee does not adequately cover the time required to complete a quality audit.  A summary of the key factors is set out below. 

Appendix A

1. Status of sector.  Financial reporting and decision making in local government has become increasingly complex, for example from the growth in 

commercialisation, speculative ventures and investments. This has also brought increasing risk about the financial sustainability / going concern of bodies given 

the current status of the sector.

• To address this risk our procedures now entail higher samples sizes of transactions, the need to increase our use of analytics data to test more 

transactions at a greater level of depth.  This requires a continual investment in our data analytics tools and audit technology to enhance audit quality. 

This also has an impact on local government with the need to also keep pace with technological advancement in data management and processing for 

audit.

2. Audit of estimates.  There has been a significant increase in the focus on areas of the financial statements where judgemental estimates are made. This is to 

address regulatory expectations from FRC reviews on the extent of audit procedures performed in areas such as the valuation of land and buildings and pension 

assets and liabilities. 

• To address these findings, our required procedures now entail higher samples sizes, increased requirements for corroborative evidence to support the 

assumptions and use of our internal specialists. 

3. Regulatory environment.  Other pressures come from the changing regulatory landscape and audit market dynamics:

• Parliamentary select committee reports, the Brydon and Kingman reviews, plus within the public sector the Redmond review and the new NAO Code of 

Audit practice are all shaping the future of Local Audit.  These regulatory pressures all have a focus on audit quality and what is required of external 

auditors.

• This means continual investment in our audit quality infrastructure in response to these regulatory reviews, the increasing fines for not meeting the 

requirements plus changes in auditing and accounting standards.  As a firm our compliance costs have now doubled as a proportion of revenue in the last 

five years.  The regulatory lens on Local Audit specifically, is greater.  We are three times more likely to be reviewed by a quality regulator than other 

audits, again increasing our compliance costs of being within this market.

P
age 193

A
genda Item

 14



33

Summary of key factors (cont’d)

Fees

Appendix A

4. As a result Public sector auditing has become less attractive as a profession, especially due to the compressed timetable, regulatory pressure and greater 

compliance requirements. This has contributed to higher attrition rates in our profession over the past year and the shortage of specialist public sector audit staff 

and multidisciplinary teams (for example valuation, pensions, tax and accounting) during the compressed timetables. 

• We need to invest over a five to ten-year cycle to recruit, train and develop a sustainable specialist team of public sector audit staff. We and other firms 

in the sector face intense competition for the best people, with appropriate public sector skills, as a result of a shrinking resource pool. We need to 

remunerate our people appropriately to maintain the attractiveness of the profession, provide the highest performing audit teams and protect audit 

quality. 

• We acknowledge that local authorities are also facing challenges to recruit and retain staff with the necessary financial reporting skills and capabilities.  

This though also exacerbates the challenge for external audits, as where there are shortages it impacts on the ability to deliver on a timely basis. 

Next steps

• In light of recent communication from PSAA, we will need to quantify the impact of the above to be able to accurately re-assess what the baseline fee is for the 
Council should be in the current environment.  Once this is done we will be able to discuss at a more detailed level with you.

P
age 194

A
genda Item

 14



34

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Joint Audit & Governance Committee of acceptance of terms of 
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. 

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit 
approach 

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings from 
the audit 

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance

We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee.

P
age 195

A
genda Item

 14



35

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by 
law or regulation 

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected 

• Corrected misstatements that are significant

• Material misstatements corrected by management 

Audit results report

Fraud • Enquiries of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee to determine whether they have 
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties 
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity 

Audit results report

P
age 196

A
genda Item

 14



36

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 
and independence

Audit planning report

Audit results report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

Consideration of laws and 
regulations 

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and 
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation 
on tipping off

• Enquiry of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee into possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial 
statements and that the Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit results report

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies 
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed

• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

• Any non-audit work 

Audit planning report

Audit results report

P
age 197

A
genda Item

 14



37

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required 
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting. 

• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Reading other information published with the financial statements, and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our 
understanding and the financial statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and 
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Purpose and evaluation of materiality 

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, 
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial 
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the 
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements. 

Materiality determines:

• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the 
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could 
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

P
age 198

A
genda Item

 14



1

Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

 Report of Head of Finance
Author: Emma Creed
Telephone: 01235 422498
Textphone: 18001 01235 422498
E-mail: emma.creed@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible for Finance:  Councillor Leigh Rawlins
Telephone:  01189 722565
Email:  leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk

VWHDC cabinet member responsible for Finance:  Councillor Andrew Crawford
Telephone:  01235 772134
Email:  andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee, Cabinet and Council
DATE: 22 September 2020 by Joint Audit and Governance Committee
            1 October 2020 (S) / 2 October 2020 (V) by Cabinet
            8 October 2020 (S) / 7 October 2020 (V) by Council

Treasury Outturn 2019-20
 
That Joint Audit and Governance Committee:

1.  notes the treasury management outturn report 2019/20, 

2.  is satisfied that the treasury activities are carried out in accordance with the 
treasury management strategy and policy, and

3.  make any comments and recommendations to Cabinets as necessary. 

That Cabinet:

Considers any comments from Joint Audit and Governance Committee and 
recommends Council to:

1. approve the treasury management outturn report for 2019/20;

2. approve the actual 2019/20 prudential indicators within the report.

Page 199

Agenda Item 15

mailto:emma.creed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


2

Purpose of report

1. This report fulfils the legislative requirements to ensure the adequate monitoring 
and reporting of the treasury management activities and that the councils’ 
prudential indicators are reported to the councils at the end of the year.  The report 
provides details of the treasury activities for the financial year 2019/20.

2. This complies with the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA’s) Code of Practice on Treasury Management.

Strategic objectives

3. Effective treasury management is required to help the councils meet their strategic 
objectives.

Background

4. The councils’ treasury activities are strictly regulated by legislation.  The CIPFA 
Prudential Code and CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice require a 
report to be provided to the councils at the end of the financial year.  

5. This report provides details on the treasury activity and performance for 2019/20 
against prudential indicators and benchmarks set for the year in the 2019/20 
Treasury Management Strategy (TMS), approved by each council in February 
2019.  Each council is required to approve this report.

6. Link Asset Services are the councils’ retained treasury advisors.  

7. Between 1 August 2016 and 31 March 2020, the operational treasury management 
staff were outsourced to Capita.  The executive decision making function remained 
with the head of finance throughout this time.  On 1 April 2020, the treasury 
management function was brought back inhouse.

8. There are three types of investment, the performance of which is covered in this 
report

a. True treasury investments – these investments are primarily for generating 
interest for the councils. Examples of these are loans to banks or other local 
authorities. It also includes investments in property funds.

b. Non-treasury loans – these are loans to third parties, which earn a return, 
but they do not fall under the strict definition of a treasury investment.  

c. Property investments - both councils have investment properties let on 
commercial basis. The primary purpose of holding these assets is for 
investment purposes and they are not part of regeneration schemes.     

9. The councils continue to invest with regard for security, liquidity and yield, in that 
order.

Page 200

Agenda Item 15



3

Economic conditions and factors effecting investment returns 
during 2019/20

10.UK bank base rates were held at 0.75 per cent until March 2020.  The coronavirus 
pandemic forced the Bank of England to make two rate cuts in quick succession, 
first to 0.25 per cent and then to 0.10 per cent on 19 March.  Link Asset Services 
provide a regular forecast of interest rates and the latest forecast is reproduced in 
appendix A.  This forecast shows that base rates are expected to remain at 0.10 
per cent for the foreseeable future. 

11.The TMS makes clear that investment priority is given to the security of principal in 
the first instance.  As a result, investments have only been made with 
counterparties of high credit quality and low risk. Since the global banking crisis 
and the downgrading of the credit ratings of many banks, it has become 
increasingly difficult to place money at competitive rates, as institutions with high 
credit ratings have been offering lower rates. 

12.Average treasury investment balances were higher for both councils than expected 
in the year.  This arose from a combination of accumulated revenue and capital 
surpluses/slippage and unbudgeted grant receipts. This was also the case in 
2018/19.  

13. Investments that have helped to keep yields up for both councils include longer 
term investments taken out when rates were higher, such as the CCLA property 
fund at both councils, and the unit trusts at South. 

14.Outlook for 2020/21 –interest rates are expected remain at 0.10 per cent for the 
next eighteen months.  There is a market expectation that a further cut in rates 
could happen in the latter half of 2021.  Concerns are mounting that unemployment 
will rise if those currently on furlough lose their jobs.  However, Monetary Policy 
Committee (MPC) members are hopeful we will see a good economic recovery 
post lockdown.

Summary of investment activities during 2019/20

15.Prudential limits (security).  Both councils are required by the Prudential Code to 
report on the limits set each year in the TMS.  The purpose of these limits is to 
ensure that the activity of the treasury function remains within certain parameters, 
thereby mitigating risk and reducing the impact of an adverse movement in interest 
rates.  However, if these limits are set to be too restrictive, they may impair the 
opportunities to reduce costs/improve performance.  These limits are shown in 
appendix B.

16.Yield - the performance of the two councils is summarised in the tables below.  

 

South Treasury 
investments 

£000

Non 
treasury 

loan    
£000

Sub 
Total 
£000

Property 
investment 

£000

Overall 
total 
£000

1 Average investment balance 159,706 15,000 174,706 7,800 182,505 
2 Budgeted investment income 2,184 623 2,807   
3 Actual investment income 2,620 623 3,243 391 3,634 
4 surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) 436 0 436   
5 Rate of return  (3) ÷ (1) 1.64% 4.15% 1.86% 5.01% 1.99%

Page 201

Agenda Item 15



4

 

Vale Treasury 
investments 

£000

Property 
investment      

£000

Overall total 
£000

1 Average investment balance 101,686 5,942 107,628 
2 Budgeted investment income 762   
3 Actual investment income 1,284 154 1,438 
4 surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) 522   
5 Rate of return  (3) ÷ (1) 1.26% 2.59% 1.34%

Note: £135,000 of treasury investment income relates to interest earned on Enterprise Zone balances

17.Both councils have exceeded treasury budgeted investment income this year in 
terms of actual income against budget and rates of return against benchmark.  
More detail on benchmarks is included in the appendices that follow this report. 

18.Detailed reports on the treasury activities for each council and performance for 
2019/20 against prudential indicators and benchmarks set for the year are 
contained in appendix C – South Oxfordshire DC and appendix D – Vale of White 
Horse DC.  

19.A detailed list of both councils’ treasury investments as at 31 March 2020 is shown 
at appendix E.

Debt activity during 2019/20

20.During 2019/20, there has not been a need for either council to borrow and both 
councils continue to take a prudent approach to their debt strategy.  The prudential 
indicators and limits set out in appendix B provide the scope and flexibility for the 
Council to borrow in the short-term, if such a need arose, for cash flow purposes to 
support the council(s) in the achievement of their service objectives.    

Financial implications

21.The treasury investments made in 2019/20 ensured over £3 million of actual 
investment income was achieved for SODC during the year and over £1 million for 
VOWHDC.  Income earned from investments supports the councils’ medium term 
financial plans and contributes to the councils’ balances or supports the in-year 
expenditure programmes.   

22.Looking forward, income is anticipated to remain stable with any increase due to 
ongoing surplus cash balances and rises in market rates offset by a general 
reduction in the balances available to invest.  This will be reflected in the councils’ 
future budgets and medium term financial plans.

Legal implications

23.There are no significant legal implications.  Compliance with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services and the DCLG Local 
Government Investment Guidance provides assurance that the councils’ 
investments are, and will continue to be, within their legal powers.

Page 202

Agenda Item 15



5

Conclusion

24.Despite a difficult operating environment, both councils continued to make 
investments during 2019/20 that maintained security and liquidity whilst providing a 
return that exceeded market benchmarks.    

Background papers

 Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA) code of practice 
for treasury management in the public sector.

 DCLG Local Government Investment Guidance
 CIPFA treasury management in the public services code of practice and cross 

sectoral guidance notes
 Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 – Councils in February 2019.

Appendices

A. Interest rate forecasts
B. Prudential limits 
C. SODC – Treasury activities 2019-2020
D. VWHDC – Treasury activities 2019-2020 
E. Treasury investments as at 31 March 2020
F. Glossary of terms

Page 203

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A

Interest rate forecast as at July 2020 

The table below shows Link Asset Services’ forecast of the expected movement in medium term interest rates:

 Sep 20 Dec 20 Mar 21 Jun 21 Sep 21 Dec 21 Mar 22
BANK RATE 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
3 m LIBID 0.40 0.35 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30
6 m LIBID 0.55 0.50 0.45 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40
12 m LIBID 0.70 0.65 0.60 0.55 0.55 0.55 0.55
     
5 yr PWLB 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10
10 yr PWLB 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30
25 yr PWLB 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70
50 yr PWLB 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.50

P
age 204

A
genda Item

 15



Appendix B
Prudential limits (indicators) as at March 2020

Prudential indicators as at 31 March 2020      
 Vale South
  

 
Original 

estimate
Actual 

position
Original 

estimate
Actual 

position
 £m £m £m £m
Authorised limit for external debt  
Borrowing 30 0 30 0
Other long term liabilities 5 0 0 0
 35 0 30 0
  
Operational boundary for external debt  
Borrowing 25 0 25 0
Other long term liabilities 5 0 0 0
 30 0 25 0
Investments  
Interest rate exposures  
Limits on fixed interest rates % 100% 87% 100% 84%
Limits on variable interest rates £ 50 10 50 9
Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days  
Upper limit for principal sums invested > 364 days £ 40 23 70 26
Limit to be placed on investments to maturity  

1 - 2 years NA NA NA NA
2 - 5 years NA NA NA NA
5 years + NA NA NA NA

      

Prudential indicators – explanatory note

Debt

There are two limits on external debt: the ‘Operational Boundary’ and the ‘Authorised 
Limit’.   Both are consistent with the current commitments, existing plans and the 
proposals in the budget report for capital expenditure and financing, and with approved 
treasury management policy statement and practices.  They are both based on 
estimates of most likely, but not worst case, scenario.  
The key difference is that the Authorised Limit cannot be breached without prior 
approval of the Council.  It therefore includes more headroom to take account of 
eventualities such as delays in generating capital receipts, forward borrowing to take 
advantage of attractive interest rates, use of borrowing in place of operational leasing, 
“invest to save” projects, occasional short term borrowing to cover temporary revenue 
cash flow shortfalls as well as an assessment of risks involved in managing cash flows.  
The Operational Boundary is a more realistic indicator of the likely position.

Interest rate exposures

The maximum proportion of interest on borrowing which is subject to fixed/variable rate 
of interest.

Page 205

Agenda Item 15



Appendix B

Investments

Interest rate exposure

The purpose of these indicators is to set ranges that will limit exposure to interest rate 
movement. The indicator required by the Treasury Management Code considers the net 
position of borrowing and investment and is based on principal sums outstanding.

Principal sums invested

This indicator sets a limit on the level of investments that can be made for more than 
364 days.

Page 206

Agenda Item 15



Appendix C

1

SODC treasury activities in 2019/20

Council treasury investments as at 31 March 2020

1. The council’s treasury investments, analysed by age as at 31 March 2020 were as 
follows: 

Table 1: maturity structure of investments at 31 March 2020:
    
 £000 % holding  
Call 500 0%  
Money market fund 8,462 6%  
Cash available within 1 week 8,962 6%  
Up to 4 months 53,000 36%    
5-6 months 14,000 9%  
6 months to 1 year 30,000 20%  
Over 1 year 26,000 17%  
Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander 222 0%  
Total cash deposits 132,184 88%  
CCLA Property Fund 6,831 5%  
Equities 10,006 7%  
Total investments 149,021 100%  

2. Most of the funds invested are held in the form of fixed interest rate and term cash 
deposits. These provide some certainty over the investment return. 

3. The investment profile is organised in order to ensure sufficient liquidity for 
revenue and capital activities, security of investments and to manage risks within 
all treasury management activities.

4. The chart below shows in percentage terms how the portfolio above is spread 
across the investment types:

Banks - UK Fixed 
Deposits
 £32,000

 21%

Building societies - 
fixed deposits

 £69,000
 46%

Local Authorities
 £12,000

 8%

Housing Associations
 £10,000

 7%

Money Market Funds
 £8,462

 6%

CCLA
 £6,831

 5%

Unit Trusts
 £10,006

 7%

Banks - UK Call 
accounts

 £500
 0%

Portfolio analysis £000

Treasury investment income 

Page 207

Agenda Item 15



Appendix C

2

5. The total income earned on investments during 2019/20 was £2.6 million, 
compared to the original budget of £2.2 million, as shown in table 2 below:

Table 2:  Investment interest earned by investment type
 
 Annual Actual Variation
Investment type Budget Interest  
  £000 £000 £000
  
Fixed term and call 1,429 1,758 329
Equities 456 574 118
CCLA property fund  299 288 (11)
  2,184 2,620 436

6. The actual return achieved was £0.4 million more than the original budget. This 
was due to:

 Interest earned on cash deposits was £0.3 million higher than forecast 
principally due to balances available to invest being more than predicted in 
the 2019/20 budget setting. 

 Dividend received on equities was £118,000 higher than forecast. The value 
of our equities holding tracks the FTSE.  For most of the financial year this 
rose, resulting in an increase in dividends received.  When the coronavirus 
pandemic struck at the beginning of 2020 the FTSE fell sharply, which 
resulted in the year end losses seen in tables four and five below.

7. The actual average rate of return on treasury investments for the year was 1.64 
per cent (1.33 in 2018/19). 

Performance measurement

8. A list of treasury investments as at 31 March 2020 is shown in appendix E.  All 
investments were with approved counterparties.  The average level of 
investments held was £160 million. Table 3 below shows in summary the 
performance of the council’s treasury investments against the benchmarks set out 
in the TMS.  These benchmarks are used to assess and monitor the council’s 
treasury investment performance for each type of investment.

9. The £160 million does not represent the council’s usable, cash backed reserves, 
which at 31 March 2020 totalled £118 million.  The difference represents the 
council’s working capital balance and capital grants received in advance of spend.   

Table 3: Treasury investment returns achieved against benchmark  

  
Benchmark 

Return
Actual 
Return

Growth 
(Below)/above 

Benchmark Benchmarks
  
Bank & Building Society 
deposits - internally managed 0.64% 1.64% 1.00% 3 Month LIBID
Equities (21.89%) (23.46%) (1.57%) FTSE All Shares Index
Property related investments 
(excluding SOHA loan)*

3.69% 5.77% 2.08% IPD balanced property 
unit trust index

      

Page 208

Agenda Item 15



Appendix C

3

Note: the benchmark return for unit trusts and CCLA includes the movement in 
capital value.  All other benchmarks reflect earnings of treasury investment 
income.  

10.Returns on Bank and building society deposits (Call accounts, money market 
funds and fixed term deposits) are benchmarked against the three-month LIBID 
rate, which was an average of 0.64 per cent for 2019/20.  The performance for the 
year of 1.64 per cent exceeded the benchmark by 1.00 per cent.  

11. It remained difficult to place investments because of continued financial 
uncertainty. Some good rates were achieved which contributed to the increase in 
investment income during the year. 

12.The CCLA property fund principal investment of £5 million (March 2013) 
increased in value during 2019/20 to £6.8 million.  Dividends received in the year 
totalled £0.3 million. Both the capital appreciation and the interest earned are 
included in the performance of 5.77 per cent achieved above.  The capital gain is 
however not realised and so for comparison purposes, the actual rate of return is 
interest as a factor of market value of holding being 3.69 per cent. 

Equities 

13.The council’s holdings with the Legal & General (L&G) UK 100 Index Trust were 
purchased in 2000/01 at an initial cost of £10 million.  This is an authorised unit 
trust incorporated in the United Kingdom and regulated by the FSA.  The trust’s 
objective is to track the capital performance of the UK equity market as 
represented by the FTSE 100 index which represents 98-99 per cent of the UK 
market capitalisation.

14.The index shows the performance of all eligible companies listed on the London 
Stock Exchange main market and today covers 616 constituents with a combined 
value of nearly £1.9 trillion.  It is recognised as the main benchmark for unit trusts.  

Table 4: Unit Trusts - Movement in capital   
 £ £
Market Value as at 31.3.20 10,006,338
  
Less:  
Dividends received in year           443,923  
Accrued dividends           130,231  
        (574,154)
  
Amended market value as at 31.3.20 9,432,184
  
Market value as at 1.4.19 12,322,880
  
Decrease in Market Value in year   (2,890,696)

15.The decrease above is compared to the performance of the stock market as a 
whole using the benchmarking in table 5 below.  The fund’s under performance of 
1.57 per cent compared with the stock market equates to £193,172 in real terms.    

Page 209

Agenda Item 15



Appendix C

4

Table 5: Unit Trust performance  
   
Decrease in FTSE all share was (21.89%)
  
Decrease in Market Value (23.46%)
  
Under-performance (1.57%)
   
 £
Market value as at 1.4.19       12,322,880 
  
Adjusted for FTSE change           (2,697,523) 
  
Benchmark Market Value at 31.3.20       9,625,356 
  
Amended market value as at 31.3.20       9,432,184 
  
Under performance              (193,172) 

16.The performance of the fund over the past three years is summarised in table 5.1 
below. The justification for holding this investment is regularly reviewed.

Table 5.1 Unit Trust past performance 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
  
Performance against FTSE all share % 0.71% 0.60% (1.57%)
(Under)/Over  
Performance against FTSE all share £000            95,067           70,350      (193,172) 
(Under)/Over  
    

  

17.Dividends received of £0.6 million were reinvested to acquire additional fund 
units. 

18. Officers monitor the performance of the unit trust holding on a regular basis.  
When the market value reaches £14 million, a disposal of £2 million is made. No 
disposal took place during 2019/20.

 

Non-treasury investment loan

19.During 2013/14, the council entered into a secured loan agreement with SOHA to 
enable them to finance affordable housing schemes.  The Council lent £15 million 
over 20 years at a fixed rate of 4.15 per cent.  Interest is paid quarterly and during 
2019/20, the council received £0.6 million. 

Land and property

20.The Council holds a portfolio of investment properties, which includes land, 
depots, garages, and shops that are let on a commercial basis. These assets are 
valued on an annual basis and had average net book value of £7.8 million during 
2019/20 (£6.46 million at 31 March 2019).  Income generated was £0.39 million in 
2019/20 (£0.32 million in 2018/19) giving a gross rate of return of 5.01 per cent.  

Page 210

Agenda Item 15



Appendix C

5

21.Due to movement in property values and the exclusion of whole life costs, these 
rates of return should not be taken as a direct comparison with the treasury rates.

Liquidity and yield

22.The council uses short-term investments to meet daily cash-flow requirements 
and aims to invest a proportion of the portfolio over longer dated cash deposits 
where possible.  

23.The amount maintained for liquidity was £9 million. 

Page 211

Agenda Item 15



Appendix D

1

VWHDC detailed treasury performance in 2019/20

Council treasury investments as at 31 March 2020

1. The council’s treasury investments analysed by age as at 31 March 2020 were as 
follows: 

Table 1: maturity structure of investments at 31 March 2020:
    
    
 £000 % holding  
Call 0 0%  
Money market fund 9,910 11%  
Cash available within 1 week 9,910 11%  
Up to 4 months 5,000 5%    
5-6 months 10,000 11%  
6 months to 1 year 43,500 46%  
Over 1 year 23,000 24%  
  
Total cash deposits 91,410 97%  
  
CCLA Property Fund 2,606 3%  
  
Total investments 94,016 100%  

2. Most of the funds invested are held in the form of fixed interest rate and term cash 
deposits. These provide some certainty over the investment return.  

3. The investment profile is organised in order to ensure sufficient liquidity for 
revenue and capital activities, security of investments and to manage risks within 
all treasury management activities.

4. The chart below shows in percentage terms how the portfolio above is spread 
across  investment types:

Banks - UK fixed 
deposits  £22,000  23%

[CATEGORY NAME] 
[VALUE]

 [PERCENTAGE]

Local authorities  
£6,500  7%

[CATEGORY NAME] 
[VALUE]

 [PERCENTAGE]

Money Market Funds  
£9,910  11%

CCLA  £2,606  3%

Portfolio Analysis (£000)

Page 212

Agenda Item 15



Appendix D

2

Treasury investment income
5. The total interest earned on treasury investments during 2019/20 was £1.5 million 

compared to the original budget estimate of £0.7 million as shown in table 2 below:

Table 2: Investment interest earned by investment type  
  
 Annual Actual Variation
Investment type Budget Interest  
 £000 £000 £000
Fixed term and call                648 1,169                521 
CCLA Property Fund                114 115                    1 
Total Interest  762 1,284 522 

Note: £135,000 of treasury investment income relates to interest earned on Enterprise Zone balances

6. The actual return achieved was £0.5 million higher than the original budget. This 
was primarily due to average balances throughout the year remaining higher than 
forecast. 

7. The total actual average interest rate achieved for the year was 1.26 per cent.

Performance measurement
8. A list of treasury investments as at 31 March 2020 is shown in appendix E. All 

investments were with approved counterparties. The average level of investments 
held was £102 million.  At 31 March 2020 the council’s usable, cash backed 
reserves totalled around £40 million.  The difference represents working capital 
and capital grants received in advance. Table 3 below shows in summary the 
performance of the council’s treasury investments against the benchmarks set out 
in the TMS. These benchmarks are used to assess and monitor the council’s 
treasury investment performance for each type of investment.

Table 3: Treasury investment returns achieved against benchmark
 Benchmark 

return
Actual 
return

Growth 
(below)/above 

Benchmark

Benchmarks

Internally managed - Bank & 
Building Society deposits

0.64% 1.26% 0.62% 3 month LIBID

Property related funds (CCLA)* 3.69% 5.77% 2.08%

IPD balanced 
property unit trust 

index
 *Source: CCLA Local Authorities Property Fund Report March 2020

9. Returns on bank and building society deposits (internally managed cash deposits) 
are benchmarked against the 3-month LIBID rate, which was an average of 0.64 
per cent for 2019/20.  The performance for the year of 1.26 per cent exceeded the 
benchmark by 0.62 per cent. 

Page 213

Agenda Item 15



Appendix D

3

10. It remained difficult to place investments because of continued financial 
uncertainty. Some good rates were achieved which contributed to the increase in 
investment income during the year.

11.The CCLA property fund principal investment of £2 million (April 2013) increased in 
value during 2019/20 to £2.6 million.  Dividends received in the year totalled £0.1 
million. Both the capital appreciation and the interest earned are included in the 
performance of 5.77 per cent achieved above.  The capital gain is however not 
realised and so for comparison purposes, the actual rate of return is interest as a 
factor of market value of holding being 3.69 per cent. 

Land and Property
12.The council holds a portfolio of investment properties, which includes land, offices 

and shops that are let on a commercial basis.  These assets are valued on an 
annual basis and had an average net book value of £5.9 million during 2019/20 
(£7.1 million as at 31 March 2019).  Income generated was £0.2 million (£0.4 
million in 2018/19).  This is equivalent to a gross return of 2.59 per cent.

13.Due to movement in property values and the exclusion of whole life costs, these 
rates of return should not be taken as a direct comparison with the treasury rates.

Liquidity and yield

14.The council uses short-term investments to meet daily cash-flow requirements and 
has also aims to invest a proportion of the portfolio over longer dated cash 
deposits where possible.  

15.The amount maintained for liquidity was £9.9 million.

Page 214

Agenda Item 15



Appendix E
South Oxfordshire District Council investments (excluding KSF) as at 31 March 2020

Counterparty Deposit Type Maturity Principal Rate
Date

West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Apr-20 3,500,000 1.22%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Apr-20 2,000,000 1.03%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Apr-20 3,000,000 1.03%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Apr-20 2,500,000 1.30%
Principality Building Society Fixed Apr-20 2,000,000 1.20%
Close Brothers Fixed Apr-20 2,000,000 1.25%
Close Brothers Fixed Apr-20 2,000,000 1.25%
Principality Building Society Fixed May-20 2,500,000 1.15%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed May-20 2,000,000 1.22%
National Counties Building Society Fixed May-20 1,000,000 1.26%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed May-20 2,500,000 1.10%
Principality Building Society Fixed May-20 1,500,000 1.16%
National Counties Building Society Fixed May-20 1,500,000 1.26%
National Counties Building Society Fixed May-20 1,000,000 1.25%
Nottingham Building Society Fixed May-20 1,000,000 1.18%
Saffron Building Society Fixed Jun-20 2,500,000 1.17%
Nottingham Building Society Fixed Jun-20 1,000,000 1.15%
Principality Building Society Fixed Jun-20 3,000,000 1.15%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Jun-20 2,000,000 1.30%
Principality Building Society Fixed Jul-20 4,000,000 1.10%
Cumberland Building Society Fixed Jul-20 3,000,000 1.00%
Principality Building Society Fixed Jul-20 2,000,000 1.10%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Jul-20 1,000,000 1.20%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Jul-20 2,500,000 1.15%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Jul-20 2,000,000 1.20%
Kingston upon Hull City Council Fixed Aug-20 3,500,000 2.70%
Kingston upon Hull City Council Fixed Aug-20 1,500,000 2.70%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Aug-20 2,000,000 1.25%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Aug-20 2,000,000 1.25%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Sep-20 3,000,000 1.05%
Newbury Builiding Society Fixed Sep-20 2,000,000 1.20%
Cambridge BS Fixed Oct-20 3,000,000 1.15%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Oct-20 1,000,000 1.10%
Cambridge BS Fixed Oct-20 2,000,000 1.15%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Oct-20 2,000,000 1.10%
Newbury Builiding Society Fixed Nov-20 1,000,000 1.10%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Nov-20 2,000,000 1.03%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Nov-20 2,000,000 1.03%
Nottingham Building Society Fixed Dec-20 3,000,000 0.90%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Dec-20 2,000,000 1.02%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Jan-21 2,000,000 1.45%
Kingston upon Hull City Council Fixed Jan-21 2,000,000 2.50%
Close Brothers Fixed Mar-21 3,000,000 1.50%
Close Brothers Fixed Mar-21 2,000,000 1.00%
Close Brothers Fixed Mar-21 2,000,000 1.00%
Close Brothers Fixed Mar-21 1,000,000 1.50%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed Apr-21 3,000,000 1.75%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Apr-21 3,000,000 1.70%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed Apr-21 3,000,000 1.78%
Places for People Fixed May-21 2,000,000 1.70%
Places for People Fixed Jun-21 3,000,000 1.70%
Bury MBC Fixed Jul-21 5,000,000 1.50%
Lloyds Bank Fixed Jul-21 2,000,000 1.30%
Close Brothers Fixed Nov-21 3,000,000 1.30%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed Feb-23 2,000,000 2.46%

Santander Call 401,256 0.40%
Royal Bank of Scotland Call 2,343 0.25%
Royal Bank of Scotland Call 96,095 0.25%
Goldman Sachs MMF 7,772,000 Variable
Blackrock MMF 690,000 Variable
L&G Equities Unit trust 10,006,338 Variable
CCLA - property fund Property fund 5,000,000 3.69%

GRAND TOTAL 146,968,032 Page 215

Agenda Item 15



Appendix E
Vale of White Horse District Council investments as at 31 March 2020
Counterparty Deposit Type Maturity Principal Rate

Date
Progressive Building Society Fixed Jun-20 3,000,000 1.22%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Jun-20 1,000,000 1.25%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Jul-20 1,000,000 1.26%
Kingston upon Hull City Council Fixed Aug-20 2,000,000 2.70%
Newbury Building Society Fixed Sep-20 1,000,000 1.20%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Sep-20 1,000,000 1.05%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Sep-20 1,000,000 1.20%
Principality Building Society Fixed Sep-20 3,000,000 1.06%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Sep-20 2,000,000 0.95%
Cambridge Building Society Fixed Oct-20 2,000,000 1.15%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Oct-20 2,000,000 0.95%
Principality Building Society Fixed Nov-20 1,500,000 0.95%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Nov-20 1,500,000 1.03%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Nov-20 1,500,000 1.05%
Principality Building Society Fixed Nov-20 500,000 1.00%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Nov-20 1,000,000 1.00%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Dec-20 1,500,000 1.20%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Dec-20 5,000,000 0.91%
Principality Building Society Fixed Dec-20 2,000,000 1.00%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Dec-20 2,000,000 0.90%
Kingston upon Hull City Council Fixed Jan-21 2,000,000 2.50%
North Tyneside Council Fixed Jan-21 2,500,000 0.95%
Lloyds Bank Fixed Jan-21 10,000,000 1.10%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Feb-21 1,500,000 1.20%
Cambridgeshire County Council Fixed Feb-21 2,000,000 1.45%
Southern Housing Group Fixed Mar-21 5,000,000 1.60%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Apr-21 2,000,000 1.70%
Places For People Homes Ltd Fixed Jun-21 2,000,000 1.70%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Jun-21 2,000,000 1.70%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Jul-21 1,000,000 1.60%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Sep-21 2,000,000 1.30%
Places for People Homes Ltd Fixed Oct-21 1,000,000 1.70%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Nov-21 2,000,000 1.30%
Worthing Borough Council Fixed Nov-21 3,000,000 1.30%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Jan-22 4,000,000 1.30%
Places For People Homes Ltd Fixed Feb-22 2,000,000 1.80%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Mar-22 2,000,000 1.30%

Goldman Sachs MMF 9,690,000 Variable
LGIM MMF 220,000 Variable
CCLA Property fund 2,000,000 3.69%
GRAND TOTAL 93,410,000

Note – these do not reconcile to table 1 figures seen in appendix c and d as these are 
original investment levels whereas the values in table 1 are the fair values of 
investments held.

Page 216

Agenda Item 15



Appendix F

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Basis point (BP) 1/100th of 1%, i.e. 0.01%

Base rate Minimum lending rate of a bank or financial institution in the UK.

Benchmark A measure against which the investment policy or performance 
of a fund manager can be compared.

Bill of Exchange A non-interest-bearing written order used primarily in 
international trade that binds one party to pay a fixed sum of 
money to another party at a predetermined future date. 

Callable Deposit A deposit placed with a bank or building society at a set rate for a 
set amount of time.  However, the borrower has the right to repay 
the funds on pre agreed dates, before maturity.  This decision is 
based on how market rates have moved since the deal was 
agreed.  If rates have fallen the likelihood of the deposit being 
repaid rises, as cheaper money can be found by the borrower.

[Cash] Fund 
Management

Fund management is the management of an investment portfolio 
of cash on behalf of a private client or an institution, the receipts 
and distribution of dividends and interest, and all other 
administrative work in connection with the portfolio.

Certificate of 
Deposit (CD)

Evidence of a deposit with a specified bank or building society 
repayable on a fixed date.  They are negotiable instruments and 
have a secondary market; therefore the holder of a CD is able to 
sell it to a third party before the maturity of the CD.

Commercial 
Paper

Short-term obligations with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days 
issued by banks, corporations and other borrowers.  Such 
instruments are unsecured and usually discounted, although 
some may be interest bearing.

Corporate Bond Strictly speaking, corporate bonds are those issued by 
companies.  However, the term is used to cover all bonds other 
than those issued by governments in their own currencies and 
includes issues by companies, supranational organisations and 
government agencies.

Counterparty Another (or the other) party to an agreement or other market 
contract (e.g. lender/borrower/writer of a swap/etc.)

Credit Default 
Swap (CDS)

A swap designed to transfer the credit exposure of fixed income 
products between parties.  The buyer of a credit swap receives 
credit protection, whereas the seller of the swap guarantees the 
credit worthiness of the product.  By doing this, the risk of default 
is transferred from the holder of the fixed income security to the 
seller of the swap.

Page 217

Agenda Item 15



Appendix F
Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 
(CFR)

The amount the council has to borrow to fund its capital 
commitments.

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.

CLG [Department for] Communities and Local Government.

Derivative A contract whose value is based on the performance of an 
underlying financial asset, index or other investment, e.g. an 
option is a derivative because its value changes in relation to the 
performance of an underlying stock.

Debt 
Management 
Account Deposit 
Facility (DMADF)

Deposit Account offered by the Debt Management Office, 
guaranteed by the UK government

European 
Central Bank 
(ECB)

European Central Bank – sets the central interest rates in the 
EMU area.  The ECB determines the targets itself for its interest 
rate setting policy; this is the keep inflation within a band of 0 to 
2%.  It does not accept that monetary policy is to be used to 
manage fluctuations in unemployment and growth caused by the 
business cycle.

European and 
Monetary Union 
(EMU)

The Economic and Monetary Union (EMU) is an umbrella 
term for the group of policies aimed at converging the economies 
of all member states of the European Union.

Equity A share in a company with limited liability.  It generally enables 
the holder to share in the profitability of the company through 
dividend payments and capital appreciation.  Equity values can 
decrease as well as increase.

Forward Deal The act of agreeing today to deposit funds with an institution for 
an agreed time limit, on an agreed future date, at an agreed rate.

Forward 
Deposits

Same as forward dealing (above).

Fiscal Policy The government policy on taxation and welfare payments.

GDP Gross Domestic Product.

[UK] Gilt Registered UK government securities giving the investor an 
absolute commitment from the government to honour the debt 
that those securities represent.

LIBID London inter-bank bid rate

LIBOR London inter-bank offered rate.   

Page 218

Agenda Item 15



Appendix F
Money Market 
Fund

A well rated, highly diversified pooled investment vehicle whose 
assets mainly comprise of short-term instruments.  It is very 
similar to a unit trust, however in a MMF.

Monetary Policy 
Committee 
(MPC)

Government body that sets the bank rate (commonly referred to 
as being base rate).  Their primary target is to keep inflation 
within plus or minus 1% of a central target of 2% in two years 
time from the date of the monthly meeting of the committee.  
Their secondary target is to support the government in 
maintaining high and stable levels of growth and employment.

Other Bond 
Funds

Pooled funds investing in a wide range of bonds.

PWLB Public Works Loan Board.

QE Quantitative Easing.

Retail Price 
Index

Measurement of the monthly change in the average level of 
prices at the retail level weighted by the average expenditure 
pattern of the average person.

Sovereign Issues 
(excl UK Gilts)

Bonds issued or guaranteed by nation states, but excluding UK 
government bonds.

Supranational 
Bonds

Bonds issued by supranational bodies, e.g. European Investment 
Bank.  The bonds – also known as Multilateral Development 
Bank bonds – are generally AAA rated and behave similarly to 
gilts, but pay a higher yield (“spread”) given their relative 
illiquidity when compared with gilts.

Treasury Bill Treasury bills are short-term debt instruments issued by the UK 
or other governments.  They provide a return to the investor by 
virtue of being issued at a discount to their final redemption 
value.

Page 219

Agenda Item 15



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme

Audit and Governance
Work Programme

containing Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee work to be undertaken 

2 SEPTEMBER 2020

      

What is the work programme?

The Audit and Governance Work Programme belongs to South Oxfordshire District Council’s and Vale of White Horse District Council’s 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee and sets out a schedule of work for the period shown above.  It is a rolling plan, subject to 
change at each committee meeting; however, the councils may allocate additional work without notice.  

Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes
Internal audit plan 
2020/21

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 22 
Sep 2020

Victoria Dorman-
Smith 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service.

To approve the internal 
audit plan for 2020/21.

Code of conduct 
annual report

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 22 
Sep 2020

Margaret Reed
margaret.reed@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk 

The Committee has 
responsibility for having 
an overview of the 
standards of conduct 
framework for 
councillors, any co-
opted members and 
parish councillors.

To review operation of 
the code of conduct.

P
age 220

A
genda Item

 16

mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme

Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers 
Act 2000 - policy and 
procedures

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 22 
Sep 2020

Margaret Reed 
margaret.reed@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk 

Review of complaints 
received 2018-19 and 
2019-20

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 22 
Sep 2020

Sally Truman
sally.truman@so
uthandvale.gov.u
k 

The committee is 
responsible for 
monitoring the councils' 
comments and 
complaints.

To review the 
comments and 
complaints received 
during 2018/19.

External auditor's audit 
planning reports 
2019/20

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 22 
Sep 2020

Simon Hewings
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

The external auditor to 
report on how it intends 
to carry out its 
responsibilities as 
auditor.

To consider the 
external auditor's 
report.

Treasury outturn 
2019/20

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 22 
Sep 2020

Simon Hewings 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

The committee is 
responsible for 
monitoring the councils' 
treasury management 
activity.

To consider the 
2019/20 outturn report 
and make 
recommendations to 
Cabinet.

Internal audit activity 
report - First and 
second quarters 
2020/21

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 
22 Sep 2020

Victoria Dorman-
Smith 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan 
2020/21.  The report will 
summarise the 
outcomes of recent 
internal audit activity for 
the committee to 
consider.

The committee is 
asked to review the 
report and main issues 
arising and seek 
assurance that action 
has been or will be 
taken where 
necessary.

This is a recurring 
agenda item and 
is updated at 
each meeting.  

P
age 221

A
genda Item

 16

mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sally.truman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sally.truman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sally.truman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme

Internal audit 
management report - 
First and second 
quarters 2020/21

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 
22 Sep 2020

Victoria Dorman-
Smith 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The committee monitors 
the effectiveness of 
internal audit each 
quarter against the 
approved audit plan.

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise progress 
against the 2020/21 
audit plan and 
summarise the 
priorities and planned 
audit work for the next 
quarter.

This is a recurring 
agenda item and 
is updated at 
each meeting.  

Statement of accounts 
2019/20

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 11 
Jan 2021

Simon Hewings
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

Each year the 
committee must 
approve each council's 
statement of accounts 
and ensure that they 
comply with the 
requirements of 
accounting practice.

The committee is 
asked to approve each 
council's statement of 
accounts and 
supporting documents 
for final sign-off by the 
committee's co-chairs 
and the councils' 
external auditor.

The requirement 
to approve the 
statement of 
accounts has 
been delayed in 
2020 due to the 
Covid-19 
pandemic.  

Risk management Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 11 
Jan 2021

Yvonne Cutler-
Greaves 
yvonne.cutlergrea
ves@southandva
le.gov.uk 

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
progress reports on the 
implementation of the 
risk management 
framework.

To review and 
comment on progress.

Health and safety Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 11 
Jan 2021

Sally Truman 
sally.truman@so
uthandvale.gov.u
k 

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
progress reports on 
health and safety.

P
age 222

A
genda Item

 16

mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:yvonne.cutlergreaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:yvonne.cutlergreaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:yvonne.cutlergreaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sally.truman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sally.truman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sally.truman@southandvale.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Internal audit plan 2020/21
	Appendix 1 - Schedule of Auditable Activity 2020-2021
	Appendix 2 - Internal Audit Allocation 2020-2021
	Appendix 3 - Proposed Internal Audits 2020-2021

	8 Internal audit activity report quarters 1 and 2, 2020/21
	9 Internal audit management report quarters 1 and 2, 2020/21
	Appendix 1 - Progress Against Audit Plan 2020-2021
	Appendix 2 - Progress Against Audit Plan 2019-2020
	Appendix 3 - Q2 Audit Plan Schedule 2020-2021

	10 Annual report on the councillors' code of conduct for 2018-19 and 2019-20
	11 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 - policy and procedures
	Policy & Procedures 2020 Revision

	12 Review of complaints received 2018-19 and 2019-20
	14 External auditor's audit planning reports for South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse
	20 VOHW - Audit Planning Report

	15 Treasury outturn 2019/20
	Appendix A - Interest rate forecasts 2019-20
	Appendix B - Prudential Limits 2019-20
	Appendix C -  South Treasury activities 2019-2020
	Appendix D -  Vale Treasury activities 2019-2020
	Appendix E - Treasury Investments as at 31 March 2020
	Appendix F - Glossary of terms

	16 Audit and governance work programme

